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Corporate Profile
DR

China Precious Metal Resources Holdings Co., Ltd. A& & B ERI%E
R AEPR A F] (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
were established in 1999.

The shares (the “Shares”) of the Company have been listed on the main
board (the “Main Board”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) since 12 October 2004 (Stock code: 1194).

The Group is a leading and the largest non state-owned Chinese gold
mining company in the The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in
terms of production volume in 2013 with a particular focus on the central
and western regions of the PRC. The Group currently owns five operating
gold mines located in the central, western and northern regions of the
PRC, namely Jinxing Mine and Luanling Mine in Henan Province, Mojiang
Mine and Hengyi Mine in Yunnan Province, and Yongfeng Mine in Inner
Mongolia, with total gold resources of approximately 7.4 million ounces.
The Group produced 124 Koz and 146 Koz of gold for the years ended
31 December 2012 and 2013, respectively.

JINXING GOLD MINE IN HENAN

Jinxing Mine is currently our largest mine in terms of total gold resources.
Jinxing Mine is located in Luanchuan County, Henan Province. It is
approximately 6 km from the regional town of Baitu and approximately
110 km southwest of Luoyang City, Henan Province. It has Australasian
Code for Reporting of Exploration Results, Mineral Resources and Ore
Reserves (“JORC code”) and its equivalent gold resources of 79.9 tonnes
(2,569 Koz) with average grade of 4.6g/t.

Exploration activities first took place in 1956 and production commenced
in 1982.

Jinxing Mine consists of four mining areas, namely Xingshuya mining
area, Xingxingyin mining area, Moshigou mining area and Xiaonangou-
Houmusi mining area. Aggregate mining area under the mining license is
approximately 22.2 km?,
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD

Jinxing Mine is located at the junction between the southern margin
of the Qinling complex structural zone and the Xinhuaxia Taihang
uplift zone. Jinxing Mine is a polymetallic mine. The majority of the
mineralisation is contained within fresh rock due to the limited weathering
profile in the region. Two styles of mineralisation are identified, namely
pyrite bearing that contains silver, lead and copper in addition to the
gold mineralisation, and lead/gold bearing that is composed of lead and
gold mineralisation with minor silver. Mineralisation occurs within quartz
veins which are located within fracture zones to form stock work style
deposits. Ten vein groups have been identified within the mining area.

LUANLING GOLD MINE IN HENAN

Luanling Mine is located in Luanchuan County, Henan Province. It
is approximately 40 km from Jinxing Mine. It has JORC code gold
resources of 63.4 tonnes (2,039 Koz) with average grade of 3.2g/t.

Exploration activities first took place in the 1950s and production
commenced in 1989.

Luanling Mine consists of two mining areas with different characteristics
of mineralisation, namely the Northern mining area and the Southern
mining area. Aggregate mining area under the mining license is
approximately 9 km?.

Luanling Mine is located at the junction between the southern margin
of the Qinling complex structural zone and the Xinhuaxia Taihang uplift
zone. Mineralised zones in two mining areas are defined. The major
gold zones include nine veins. The mineralised material is dominated by
pyrite, secondarily marcasite, with small amount of galena and altaite (lead
minerals). The major gangue minerals include quartz, albite, sericite and
chlorite. The gold minerals include electrum, with a little calaverite and
petzite.
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Corporate Profile
R

MOJIANG GOLD MINE IN YUNNAN

Mojiang Mine, located in Pu’er City, Yunnan Province is currently our
largest mine in terms of gold production. It is approximately 300 km
southwest of Kunming City, Yunnan Province. It has JORC code gold
resources of 19.2 tonnes (621 Koz) with average grade of 1.4g/t.

Exploration activities first took place in 1945 and production commenced
in 1976.

Mojiang Mine is located in the Ailaoshan Fold Belt of the San Jiang
Metamorphic Fold System.

Mojiang Mine holds one mining license covering an area of approximately
7.2 km?.

Apart from gold deposit in Mojiang Mine, there is also rich nickel metal.
The nickel ore bodies occur parallel to the gold ore bodies and belong to
a typical hydrothermal type that are mainly sulfides.

HENGYI MINE IN YUNNAN

Hengyi Mine is located in Zhenyuan County, Yunnan Province. It is
approximately 380 km southwest of Kunming City, Yunnan Province. It
has JORC code gold resources of 52.3 tonnes (1,679 Koz) with average
grade of 2.7g/t.

Hengyi Mine is located between the Mojiang-Jinping Fold Belt and the
Ailaoshan Fold Belt of the San Jiang Metamorphic Fold System.

Exploration activities first took place in the 1950s and production
commenced in 2003.

Hengyi Mine consists of two mining areas, namely Bianfushan mining
area and Shangzhai mining area. Total area under the mining licences is
approximately 9.1 km?. It also holds four exploration licences in adjacent
areas with aggregate area of approximately 36.7 km?.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD

YONGFENG GOLD MINE IN INNER MONGOLIA

The Yongfeng Mine is located in Honghuagou, Inner Mongolia. It
currently holds seven mining licenses covering a total mining area of
0.92 km®. The mine is an underground mine located in Honghuagou
mineralisation belt of Inner Mongolia that has relatively high gold grade.
It has gold resources of 16.4 tonnes (529 Koz) with average grade of
9.50/t.
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Locations of Our Mines
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Gold production increased by 18%
to 4.5 tonnes (146 Koz). Completed
Mojiang Mine’s Mineral Resource
and Ore Reserve Statements in
accordance with the JORC code.
JORC code resources of Mojiang
Mine are 19.2 tonnes (a 25%
increase) and reserves are 12.2
tonnes (maiden reserves). Revenue
decreased by 4% to HKD$1,562
million, EBITDA decreased by 11%
to HK$1,005 million, the effect of
increase of production was offset by
the significant drop of gold price.
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Financial Highlights
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD
PREEEBERERERLT

cPM

Major Financial Highlight FENBBEBERE
Financial Data Summary FY 2013 FY 2012 Movement %
MREERE 2013 & 20124 B4t %
Gold output (thousand ounces) HeEE(THA) 146 124 18%
Revenue (HK$’000) Wz (F8T) 1,562,409 1,626,023 (4%)
Gross profit (HK$’000) EM(FET) 857,160 1,039,325 (18%)
EBITDA (HK$’000) BT iER
B (%) 1,004,645 1,131,328 (11%)
Net profit (HK$’000) w A (FET) 181,383 445,078 (59%)
Total assets (HK$’000) wEE(THEL) 11,716,331 9,305,986 26%
Total debts* (HK$’000) w@EE (F8T) 4,623,597 1,841,418 151%
Cash and bank balances* He MIRTTHEER
(HK$’000) (F%&71T) 980,625 184,653 431%
Net debts* (HK$’000) FEIE (FHT) 3,642,972 1,656,765 120%
Total equity (HK$’000) @Rz (TAT) 5,922,847 5,605,068 6%
Notes*: PR&E™

—  Total debts are bank and other borrowings and convertible bonds.

—  Cash and bank balances include pledged bank deposit.
— Net debts are total debts less cash and bank balances.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

Dear Shareholders,

First and foremost, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to our
shareholders for your continuous support and trust in us as we grow to
become a fast growing, highly efficient, low cost and committed gold
producer in China. Our deepest appreciation also goes to all of our
employees and management, especially our directors — we would not be
where we are today without your hard work dedicated to the Group.

During 2013, the Group continued with its goal of expanding the
operations and increasing production. We are very pleased with the
operational progress, especially with our Mojiang Mine and Hengyi Minge,
production of which increased by 45% and 269% respectively compared
to 2012. As a result, the Group achieved a record production of 4.5
tonnes (146 Koz) in 2013, which represents an 18% increase compared
to the same period of 2012 (3.8 tonnes, 124 Koz).

With regard to exploration activities, the most notable achievement is
that independent technical consultant — RungePinkcockMinarco (“RPM?),
together with the assistance from our technical and operation teams
of Mojiang Mine has successfully completed the exploration drilling
program, followed by a JORC code Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves
Statement issued by RPM. The Group is very pleased by the outcome,
with JORC code resources increased to 19.2 tonnes (25% increase to its
previous resources) and maiden reserves of 12.2 tonnes.

We are responsible for the local communities, and “Operating in a Safe
and Environmentally Friendly Manner” is our philosophy. We managed
to combine this philosophy with satisfactory operational and financial
performance, and create a win-win situation for the Company and the
communities where our operations are. In 2013, the Group has once
again for the 5th consecutive year received numerous recognitions
and rewards by the local government for being an industry leader in
harmonious mines development.

2013 has seen severe volatility of gold price, and we believe it will still be
influenced by the Federal Reserve’s decisions on the pace and timing of
QE tapering. In the meantime, we expect the worst is behind us because
the severe fluctuation of gold price in 2013 has at least partially digested
the change in monetary policy.
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Looking forward we will continue with our efforts on exploration, organic
expansion as well as cost control in an environmentally friendly manner.
With our growing and profitable mines, a jurisdictionally diverse portfolio
of high-quality gold mines and with the skills and expertise of our
management and employees, the Group is very well positioned to deliver
another successful year 2014 and in the future.

As | reflect back on the successful year 2013 of growing our gold
resources/reserves and production, | realise that our greatest asset is not
the metal in the ground but our team of dedicated, bright, competent
and inspired people. We believe that our employees are the key to the
Group’s growth and success. | would like to thank all members of our
team of the Group. Your remarkable efforts and commitments have
ensured another good year for the Group. We greatly appreciate our
board and shareholders as well, who continue to support and trust in our
efforts.

Sincerely,

Lam Cham
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2014
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD Cp"
FEREEERERERAT

Management Discussion and Analysis
BB AR

The Group is one of the largest non state-owned gold mining enterprises in
the PRC and one of the few consolidators in the gold mining industry recognised by
the local governments. The gold mines of which the Group currently has mining rights
are located in Henan, Yunnan and Inner Mongolia.

A E ARRARF AR R EEEZ— « 5 B BRI E ST
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KEY HIGHLIGHTS FERBER

e Gold production increased significantly by 18% to 4.5 tonnes (146 o  EoEEAREINN18% E4.5M8(146
Koz) as compared to 3.8 tonnes (124 Koz) in 2012 FHA) MZT—ZF K38

(124 F#&7])

e Completed Mojiang Mine’s Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves ® & JORCIZETTR T 2T S EHTREE
Statement in accordance with the JORC code. JORC code BRENMBEORER - JORCIREER
resources and reserves are 19.2 tonnes (a 25% increase to its IRER19.20F - WER ERE LM
previous resources) and 12.2 tonnes (maiden reserves), respectively 25% ' JORCEE R 12.2WF * BEHRX

WERE

e Revenue decreased by 4% to HK$1,562,409,000 (2012: e Wz 4%Z=1,562,409,000/%8 (=
HK$1,626,023,000). The effect of increase in production was offset T — 4 :1,626,023,000/87T) * ®
by significant drop in gold price B NEEIE T ESEMAIAK K

e Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, and amortisation e B % 37 & # 85 A7 F B & & F 5 D

(“EBITDA”) decreased by 11% to HK$1,004,645,000 (2012: 11% % 1,004,645,000% 7t( = =T
HK$1,131,328,000) compared with last year —=% 1,131,328,000/87L)
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEN BRI

REVIEW OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the reporting period, the Group achieved a total gold output of
4.5 tonnes (146 Koz), an 18% increase compared to the same period
of 2012 (3.8 tonnes, 124 Koz) as a result of expansion of production
capacity of its Mojiang Mine and Hengyi Mine. Gross profit of HK$857
million, fell 17% year over year. Net profit of the Group was HK$181
million compared to HK$445 million of 2012. Net profit decreased due to
the decline of the gold price, coupled with an increase in finance costs.

GOLD MARKET OUTLOOK

In 2013, the gold market saw 21% growth in demand from consumers
which contrasted with outflows of 881 tonnes from Exchange Traded
Funds (“ETFs”). The net result was that global gold demand in 2013 was
15% lower than that in 2012, with a full year total of 3,756 tonnes.

Consumers around the world bought gold in record amounts in 2013, led
by demand in China and India, with China becoming the world’s biggest
gold market, according to the World Gold Council. In Western markets
consumer demand also remained strong with the United States (“US”), in
particular, having a robust year in the jewellery, gold bar and coin sectors.

Annual global investment in gold bars and coins reached 1,654 tonnes,
up from 1,289 tonnes in 2012, a rise of 28%, being the highest figure
since a decade ago.

For the full year, Chinese and Indian investment in gold bars and coins
was up by 38% and 16%, respectively. Although markets were much
smaller in terms of volume, in the US, gold bar and coin demand was
up 26% to 68 tonnes, and in Turkey it was up 113% to 102 tonnes,
demonstrating solid support on a global basis.
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Meanwhile, demand for jewellery, the other component of consumer
demand, increased by 29% from 519 tonnes to 669 tonnes in China, and
by 11% from 552 tonnes to 613 tonnes in India, reaching 2,209 tonnes
globally, the highest figure since the onset of the financial crisis in 2008.

Federal Reserve decisions on the pace and timing of QE tapering
will continue to influence gold. The slump in gold prices due to the
expectations of tapering implies that the market has at least partially
factored in a change in monetary policy. It is expected that physical
demand trends in the emerging world will largely define gold price
movements in 2014. China alone is absorbing the equivalent of half the
world’s gold mine production. A possible recovery in Indian demand,
should the authorities reduce gold import tariffs, is potentially supportive.

As for the gold supply, efforts to reduce costs by global producers
may help limit production going forward; 2014 output may be below
2013’s record levels according to estimate by World Gold Council. In
China, gold miners are undergoing consolidation process. As indicated
by the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology (“MIIT”), China
government has reduced over 700 gold producing enterprises at
the end of the Eleventh Five-Year Plan to approximately 600 through
consolidation. By 2015, gold output of large and medium gold
enterprises will take more than 70% of the total gold output in the
country. The growth strategy of the Group is in line with the guidance of
the MIIT, which will provide policy and regulatory support for the Group’s
on-going expansion through further merger and acquisition, and to
increase gold resources and reserves base.

cPM
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Management Discussion and Analysis
IEE __’LHHH& $ﬁ'

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the reporting period, gold production of Hengyi Mine and Mojiang
Mine has increased significantly, while production of Jinxing Mine and
Luanling Mine was relatively stable as compared to 2012. Total gold

E 3 eI

RBEHE BRI ISENES
EEAREN MERSBENEBSEN
EER_T-—FHLAUEHEE - &

production was 4.5 tonnes (146 Koz), an 18% increase from 2012, Gold ©MREE /458 (146 TH 7))  W=F
production by mine is as follows: —ZFHEMN18% - EeBEESESNT ¢
Au metal Jinxing Luanling Mojiang Hengyi Yongfeng
Mine Mine Mine Mine Mine
cEB SHRETE BRESHE BTISHE 15 35 & 8 KELTE
2018 —ZT—=F%
Kg = 1,335 1,012 1,574 362 237
Koz T#7A 43 33 51 11 8
2012 —ZT—=fF
Kg = 1,407 1,028 1,090 98" 237
Koz TF#7] 45 33 35 & 8

* production since the acquisition by the Group

Henan Jinxing Mine

Henan Jinxing Mine is located approximately 6 km from the regional town
of Baitu and approximately 110 km southwest of Luoyang City, Henan
Province. It is the largest mine in terms of gold resources of the Group. It
is an underground mine and consists with two areas, namely Jinxing area
and Xiepojing area. Gold production started since 1982, while exploration
activities commenced as early as 1956. The Group acquired Jinxing Mine
in 2010. Ten vein groups have been identified within the mining area, with
similar orientation, size and shape. The variation of overall continuity of
the thickness and grade of the vein is also relatively consistent, which
suggested good potential for further resources expansion. Jinxing Mine
has received the environmental approval and safety approval for its
new tailings yard and has started the construction work. It has JORC
code and its equivalent gold resources of 79.9 tonnes (2,569 Koz) with
average grade of 4.6g/t. Gold production in 2013 was 1.3 tonnes (43
Koz) which remained consistent with that of 2012.
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Henan Luanling Mine

Luanling Mine is located in Luanchuan County, Henan Province, 40 km
away from Jinxing Mine. It is composed of Northern underground mining
site and Southern open-pit and underground mining site and is contained
within a single mining licence with an area of 9 km’. Exploration activities
commenced in 1950s and small-scale production started in 1989. The
Group acquired the mine in 2010 and realised full scale production in
2012. It has JORC code gold resources of 63.4 tonnes (2,039 Koz)
with average grade of 3.2g/t. Gold production in 2013 was 1 tonne (33
Koz) which remained consistent with that of 2012. Ongoing exploration
activities are conducted in Luanling, providing high potential for near-term
resource expansion.

Yunnan Mojiang Mine

Mojiang Mine, as the largest mine in terms of production of the Group,
is located in Mojiang County, Pu'er City, Yunnan Province, approximately
300 km southwest of the provincial capital — Kunming. It lies on the
famous Mojiang-Jinping and Ailaoshan Fold, implying favourable geology
attributions. Exploration activities began in 1945 and production started
in 1976. The Group acquired the Mojiang Mine in 2010.

During the reporting period, the Group has significantly improved the
production efficiency at Mojiang Mine by upgrading mine site facilities
and reconstructing the Mojiang processing plant, which included tailings
regrinding conveyer project, cyanidation plant renovation project,
carbon conveyer project, tailrace re-adsorption project, processing plant
anticorrosive coating project as well as phase 2 pit mouth rehabilitation
project. In addition, the Group has also started the early works of
underground mining.

According to the latest JORC code Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves
statement, the mine has JORC code resources of 19.2 tonnes (621 Koz)
with an average grade of 1.4g/t, reserves of 12.2 tonnes (392 Koz) of
Au metal with an average grade of 1.3g/t. Mojiang Mine produced 1.6
tonnes (51 Koz) of gold, a 45% increase as compared with 1.1 tonnes (35
Koz) in 2012.

cPM

BHA0ORE - RE WAL H TS R
MR ER R TRIZANK - HEERIF
FRBHE —RBITAIEMMRE - Z2E
R EREL50FRABETREE - WK
—NN\NFRENREAE - REERZ
T-TFYEZE IRT——F2
HEBRBELEE - ZBHIORCEREEES
ERE/63.4M (2,039 F#&A) © FH M
fIR32%R /M —T—=FHNESES
A1WE(33F&HA]) BT ——FRIF—
B BESTEMRGBEMTETP - TN
BIRIET B NRPER -

BI2RARNEERESNRADE @ U
NEMEEETERIE bEgRAMHE
AR MAKIB00 A B AR o 2 HE LA &2
T-2FRAREFILAES  EBERERF
B REE - BREFHN - NLEAFH
B —NERFEFRBLEE - ARER -
E-EFEWRERTISNRE -

R EHRE - NEBE BT RIRES R R
BERRTEBM SR o BEEEREKE
Rt BIEBERSLEBBEH XL
2 BUEEMBETRR  REEIRE B
IKBRMTE  ERMINEZEEEE X
K2HLAMRETIR - B4 - AEBE TR
saI NRRATAI TS

B IE ¥ JORCIZHERE = B R = B2 1% A ik
EX Z&BEHBIORCERE19.2M
(621 F#& 7)) » FHBAA1.457 W - &#
212208 (392 F&%&Al) w8 - FHmAL
1.3%, /W - BT SEEE16ME (51 TH
AES BRZTE-—FM11ME35T
& a]) AN 45% ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 —Z—=££# 15



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEN BRI

Yunnan Hengyi Mine

Hengyi Mine is located in the southwest of Yunnan Province. It lies
approximately 380 km southwest from Kunming. It holds two mining
licenses, namely Shangzhai and Bianfushan.

Hengyi Mine is located between the Mojiang-Jinping Fold Belt and the
Ailaoshan Fold Belt of the San Jiang Metamorphic Fold System. The San
Jiang Metamorphic System is situated on the southwest margin of the
Yangzi Platform and the northeast margin of the Simao Block between
the Honghe and Amojiang Faults.

Since the Group’s acquisition of Hengyi Mine in October 2012, the
Group has been working on ramping up its production capacity. Heap
leaching has been practised for several years at the mine. The Group
has significantly increased its recovery rate and operating efficiency by
utilising its gold operation experience and enlarged its heap leaching
scale. It has JORC code resources of 52.3 tonnes (1,679 koz) with an
average grade of 2.7g/t.Total gold production reached 362kg (11 Koz) in
2013, a 269% increase from 2012.

The Group has also started the construction work of a 450t/day
processing plant in preparation for its underground operation.

Inner Mongolia Yongfeng Mine

Yongfeng Mine is an underground mine which was acquired by the
Group in 2009. Yongfeng Mine consists of two mining areas, namely
Lianhuashan mining area and Honghuagou mining area, which are
further divided into seven sub-mining areas. Yongfeng Mine is located
in the middle segment of the northern margin of the North China Plate,
adjacent to the Inner Mongolia Fold Belt in the North. Seven mineralised
veins were identified. The mineralised veins have similar characteristics
with an average width between 1 and 1.5 metre and occur as gold-
bearing quartz veins. It has resources of 16.4 tonnes (529 Koz) with
an average grade of 9.5g/t. The output of Yongfeng Mine in 2013 was
237kg (8 Koz), which was the same as that of 2012.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD

GOLD RESOURCES/RESERVES

At the end of year 2013, the Group had total resources of 231.2 tonnes
which is compliant with the JORC code and/or its equivalent. Measured
and indicated resources (inclusive of proved and probable reserves)
were 95.8 tonnes (2012: 91.7 tonnes) and inferred resources were 135.4
tonnes (2012: 138.5 tonnes). The measured and indicated resources
(inclusive of proved and probable reserves) for Jinxing Mine, Luanling
Mine, Mojiang Mine, Hengyi Mine and Yongfeng Mine were 40.4 tonnes,
19.4 tonnes, 15.7 tonnes, 15.0 tonnes and 5.3 tonnes respectively. The
inferred resources for Jinxing Mine, Luanling Mine, Mojiang Mine, Hengyi
Mine and Yongfeng Mine were 39.5 tonnes, 44.0 tonnes, 3.5 tonnes,
37.3 tonnes and 11.1 tonnes respectively. The gold grade ranged from
1.4g to 9.5¢g per ton of resources.

- CPM

FEEEBERERERLA

ETERE HE

RZT—=FFK  KNEBIZIORCIEAE
K,/ SEfELERE H231.20F - fREFE
THERE (BIEEEEMERFE) £95.8
WE(—ZE——F :01.70) M HEHERE
135.4M3( —ZF — —4F : 138.5) - &
TR HELE RBILE EXSE
RxEeBENRARIEHERE (RIEE
FEMEHES) DB A240.40F - 19.4 W -
1578 ~ 15.0M8 K2 5.3MF - & &7 -« £
BEoR RTSE BB IoKESE
BT EIRE 5 Bl A39.5W8  44.0M8 -
350 37.3MERA1AME - &4 RN TF
RERENE1.472E 9557 °

Updated mineral resources table" FHREEERR"
Au Metal (t) Au Metal (koz)
&8 (W) 2B (T&H7)
Measured + Measured +
Indicated®  Inferred Total Indicated® Inferred Total
A + R +
@ B a5t 2@ i3] =X
Jinxing Mine ST 40.4 39.5 79.9 1,299 1,270 2,569
Luanling Mine HESE 19.4 44.0 63.4 624 1,415 2,039
Mojiang Mine RITIENE 15.7 3.5 19.2 508 113 621
Hengyi Mine B e 15.0 37.3 52.3 480 1,199 1,679
Yongfeng Mine sk E&1E 5.3 11.1 16.4 172 357 529
Total 45 95.8 135.4 231.2 3,083 4,354 7,437

(1) All the mines’ resources and reserves are JORC code compliant and/or its

equivalent.

(2)  Measured and Indicated resources are inclusive of proved and probable

gold reserves.

(1) R LBHERFELBIORCIFER, ~
LHAFLITE

0 REREHEFEOHELR
f8 -
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ANNUAL REVIEW - EXPLORATION AND INFRASTRUCTURE FEMEE -#MHERERZZRE
DEVELOPMENT

The Group continued its exploration work in all of its 5 mines, and in ~ AEBERHE IS5 ERLFELEHET
total has completed trenching of approximately 69,000m and diamond — F * Tk Itk TI2E 769,000 K - &R
drilling of approximately 23,000m. The most notable achievement is ~ LTi2E4923,000K o &7BE HIPKE AL
that independent technical consultant-RungePincockMinarco (‘RPM”),  $:1i7 & & RungePincockMinarco ([ RPMJ)
together with the assistance from our technical and operation teams of &I SERM R LEBZONHEIT - B
Mojiang Mine has successfully completed the exploration and drilling #1525 28 )T & 1% & $& 1§ 12 28 B H U 48
program in 2013, followed by a JORC code Mineral Resources and R + I F]3 JORC iF & = & R B & 4
Ore Reserves Statement issued by RPM. Details of the exploration and =3k o #IFERERZTEFIBLOT ¢
infrastructure construction work are as below:

Jinxing Mine

1) Exploration activities
L {AE7 S )

18

i) Exploration area and size

b PRI e S B m A

i) Exploration project
BRI A2

i) No. of drillholes

B ERRLE A

iv) Average size of drillholes

BB AN

v) Average depth of drillholes
BRI TRE

Development/construction activities

WERR ERIH

i) Area

e[ 2 7

i) Infrastructure construction

Jinxing (5km?)
SEGFEHFRE)

Trenches (27,956m) ;
diamond drilling (15,121m)
TR (27,956 5K ) -

R (15,121 K)

2 drilling spots of each of

41 mine mouths, 100 drillholes
Ha1{@0 - HEHRA
g2 & T EmE - 100 &L

Trenching of 2.2*2m;
Diameter of drillholes of
75mm and 33mm
2.2 K -

B EE75=2KM33=ZK

151m
151K

Jinxing

G

Development of mine mouths No.
18,28,19,3,Xingshuya,Moshigou,
Houmusi, Qiaogou,

Xiaobeigou tunnels, etc.

1851 ~ 2841 ~ 1941 ~ 341
B - ERE - FEF - BE -
MEBSERBERTE

Xiepojing (0.05km?)
R H (0.05FHRE)

Trenches
(5,333m)
LR
(5,333K)

4 drilling spots of each of
4 mine mouths
4@ O
FELT O 19 4 @ TIEE

Trenching of 2.2*2m
i 2.2*2 3K

N/A
NER

Xiepojing
AR

Development of the
main tunnel of Xiepojing,
extension of slope mine
R ERTIENR
AT R



Luanling Mine

CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD Cp"
FEREEERERERAT

HESH

1) Exploration activities
BEHERES

)

i

i

Exploration area and size

WiREE K EEmE

Exploration project

BEIE

No. of drillholes

EEFRAKAE

iv) Average size of drillholes

2) Development/construction activities

BB IR

BERR EREH

Area

e

Infrastructure construction

EE SRR

South Area (2.7km?)
ME(7FARE)

Trenches (6,660m)
L (6,660 K)

5 drilling points of each of
9 mine mouths
Ho@EmA
BEH A FE5EIER

Trenching of 2.2*2m
P8 2.22 K

South Area
&=

Development of tunnel

No.307,301,309,305,304 and

slope extension project
of tunnel No.301

3074t ~ 301 T ~ 30937 -
3053 * 304 TR ITIE -
301 FTIHARRIHER

North Area (6km?)
tEBFEFRE)

Trenches (10,360m)
4% (10,360 K)

4 drilling spots of each of
24 mine mouths

Ho4 @A -

BE A FH4EIED

Trenching of 2.2*2m
P8 2.22 K

North Area
ib&

Development of tunnel
Dongpo No.100 and 13,
Huichungou

No.201 and No.200,
Wangzhuang No.401
RIL 1005 ~ 1341
1% 201 51~ 20047 -
401 BERIRE
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Yunnan Mojiang Mine EFETILHE
1) Exploration activities

BEHHRES

i) Exploration area and size Open Cut (0.4km?) Underground (3km?)
BhiRIE 8 & E B A BEXRE(04FHRE) HTERE(BFEFRE)

i) Exploration project Diamond drilling (4,206m) Trenches (7,070m)
H)E T2 $BIF (4,2063K) HUER (7,070K)

i) No. of drillholes 40 drillholes 5 drillings spots of each
[mEi-¢7 SRR ¢=! 40 fE & L of 6 mine mouths

HefEmA -

FEOFH5EIEm

iv) Average size of drillholes Diameter of 76mm Trenching of 2.2*2m

B EHROR LK) BIETT75ZXK P38 2.272 3K

v) Average depth of drillholes 105m N/A

EHERRLTFRE 105K A R
Development/construction activities

BERRE BREH

i) Area Open Cut Underground

e BRKR R

i) Infrastructure construction Construction of a four-stage mining 2# bulkhead wall for

EEREER stope to separate the stripping mining junkyard,

and mining area, phase two mine mouth mining

and 10 other heap leaching plants and rehabilitation project

HEAHES - 95 HEE - 2P IZREAETIR -
BRAE - HEMERM101E “HIBFORRRBETR
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD

During the reporting period, Mojiang mine completed a series of drilling
program for tailings, leaching pads, open pits and underground areas
designed by RPM. Results of the drilling program were incorporated
into the geological databases that formed the basis for the JORC code
resource and reserve estimate.

In total, RPM reviewed 867 channel samples, 15,349 drill samples and
72 trench samples (in total 16,288 samples) and issued an updated
Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves Statement.

JORC code resources and reserves of Mojiang Mine are 19.2 tonnes
(@ 25% increase to its previous resources) and 12.2 tonnes (maiden
reserves). The Statement of Mineral Resources for the open pit
operation, underground operation, tailings dams and leach pads, as at
31 December 2013, is as follows:

cPM

FEEEBEERERERLF

REREHIRE - 2T BT — £ % A RPM
REHRTE - HER B - BRI M B
EHERIEE - BRIEBEREHAME
HIEE - BJORCIEEEZ RKFEEMATIR
fHEELAE o

RPM #t 2 9 867 & £ 1% 15 & + 15,349 &
EiEsm R 72 B FEE R (A516,288 &
Ko WEEHERENREERREA
HERX -

21BN JORCIEEERRLHEE /R19.2
WE (R E BT ERIEMN25%) K 12.2M8 &
REEHME N_T—=F+-_A=+—
H - BXE- T~ EXE  BRERERS
WIRESRESEHNAT

JORC Cut off Tonnage
Area Classification Grade (g/t) (Mt) Au (g/1) Au Metal (t)
BRAm
EE JORC 78 (%, W) LR @NED) & (53, %) c&E ()
Open Pit Indicated 0.5 3.1 2.5 7.6
BRIE ZH
Inferred 0.5 1.6 1.7 2.7
ido
Grand Total 0.5 4.7 2.2 10.3
Be
Underground Indicated 1 1.8 2.6 4.8
TR |
Inferred 1 0.2 2.2 0.4
HERR
Grand Total 1 2 2.6 5.2
BE
Leach Pad Indicated 0.1 5.4 0.5 2.7
RS 1l
Inferred 0.1 0.9 0.5 0.4
iido
Grand Total 0.1 6.3 0.5 3.1
HBE
Tailings Dam Process Dam Indicated 0.1 0.2 0.7 0.2
EEE BRE 4
Yutang Dam Indicated 0.1 0.5 0.8 0.4
BiERE 1l
Grand Total 0.1 0.7 0.8 0.6
BE
Total Indicated N/A 11 14 15.7
#st 5 TEA
Inferred N/A 2.7 1.3 3.5
biid ] THEA
Grand Total N/A 13.7 1.4 19.2
wme TEA
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The Statement of Ore Reserves for the open pit operation, underground RZ-ZT—=F+=—A=+—H ' BXE -
operation, tailings dams and leach pads, as at 31 December 2013, is as it NE¥ « BIEERMEIIGHIBELHEE

follows: BT :
JORC Cut off Tonnage
Area Classification Grade (g/t) (Mt) Au (g/t) Au Metal (t)
BARm
) JORC 73 (% W) WE (731 cACYA ) S8 (i)
Open Pit Probable 0.5 1.51 3.1 4.6
BRIE i
Underground Probable 1.0 1.95 2.2 4.3
TR RS
Leach Pad Probable 0.4 5.56 0.5 2.7
HIRI5H TR B
Tailings Dam Process Dam Probable 0.4 0.22 0.7 0.2
= EIEES 1L B
Yutang Dam Probable 0.4 0.48 0.8 0.4
BIEE 1L B
Total Probable N/A 9.72 1.3 12.2
et B TEA
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Yunnan Hengyi Mine EMEm TR

Exploration activities

BEHFREE

)  Exploration area and size Shangzhai (7km?)
BRI i R S E A A FRGTFEHFRE)

i) Exploration project Trenches (7,494m) ;
BRIE diamond drilling (3,600m)
LB (7,494 K) -~ $BHR (3,600K)

i) No. of drillholes 5 drilling spots of each
BB RILEE of 8 mine mouths,
36 drillholes
He @A - FEHT A
T 5 ELIEM -
36 fE#EFL
iv) Average size of drillholes Diameter of drillholes of
EEBEORFL RN 75mm, Trenching of 2.2*2m
B EE75mm

i 2.272 K

v) Average depth of drillholes 100m
EERRLTFIORE 100K

Development/construction activities

BERR BREDH

i) Area Shangzhai
[ 4 It

i) Infrastructure construction Development of
HEM R reiER Langnitang’s midpoint of pit

mouths of 1350 and 1400
JRYEIE 1350 HF EX AN 1400 B
ERERIRE
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Yongfeng Mine KEDHE
Exploration activities
EEHFEE

i) Exploration area and size Honghuagou (0.76km?) Lianhuashan (0.17km?)

BRI 5 N S E A MIEE (076 FHRE) B (017 FAHRE)

i) Exploration project Trenches (3,444.4m) Trenches (616.6m)

BRTZ HLER (8444.4K) 4R (616.6 K)

i) No. of drillholes 3 drilling points of each of 2 drilling spots of each

EERRLEE 5 mine mouths of 2 mine mouths

H5ERD - SEL O 2@ A - FEH A

T3 EI(EE F52 BT Em

iv) Average size of drillholes Trenching of 2.2*2m Trenching of 2.2*2m

B EHROR LK) frig2.272 K P38 2.272 3K

Development/construction activities

BERR EREH
i) Area Honghuagou Lianhuashan
B 5 A ALIEA siel
i) Infrastructure construction Development of Daxian area, Development of the
RS iEER vein no.10, vein no.9 main tunnels of
RNEFKE - 105RIKERE no. 4 and no. 6;
OMRIKE BRI reconstruction of vertical

shaft and extension
PUsk ~ NIREREESHEA R
RYITE - BHMEENRER
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD

EXPLORATION, DEVELOPMENT AND MINING PRODUCTION
EXPENDITURES

During the year, the Group had capital expenditures of HK$1,318 million
for exploration, development and mining production and entered into
certain significant contracts with certain independent contractors for
provision of exploration and infrastructure development of the Group.
Details of the relevant exploration and infrastructure development work
are set in above section headed “ANNUAL REVIEW — EXPLORATION
AND INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT”. Details of the Group’s capital
commitments are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

During the year, the Group incurred production costs of HK$686
million which included raw materials of HK$66 million, amortisation
and depreciation of HK$335 million, wages and subcontractors’ fees
of HK$198 million, resources compensation fees and taxes of HK$44
million and other miscellaneous mining and processing costs of HK$43
million.

MERGERS AND ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL

During the reporting period, there was no major merger, acquisition
or disposal by the Group. In compliance with the Group’s strategy to
retain our position as one of the low-cost producers, we will focus on
identifying and acquiring low cost, high quality, high growth potential gold
projects in central and western China.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

During the year, the revenue of the Group was approximately
HK$1,562,409,000, representing a decrease of 4% compared to last
year of HK$1,626,023,000. The decrease in revenue was attributable to
the drop in gold price.

Results

During the year, the Group’s EBITDA decreased by 11% to
HK$1,004,645,000 (2012: HK$1,131,328,000) compared with last year.
Net profit of the Group decreased by 59% to HK$181,383,000 (2012:
HK$445,078,000) compared with last year. Net profit decreased due to
the decline of the gold price, coupled with an increase in finance costs.

cPM
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FRAEEERYE  FAEEARED
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HMEA1SEES T BRHBEBRHEN
T8 44 8 8 7 70 2 MR TR ERE K i T AR
A3EEATT o

FRERHE

RBELRE - AEBRBERHBREE
AE)  RNANKEER REKRAEER
Mz KA - NEBSEFTEEHNE
e kRBERE  EE  FERE
ZEEHER -

B iEE R
A

RAFEE - KREBI A %1,562,409,000
BT REFH1,626,023,000 7 7T
4% o WA D EBRNEE VBT -

s g

m==R

RAFE  AEBEBKERES BT E#
AT F) 8 4 1,004,645,0008 L ( — & — —
F :1,131,328,000/8 70 ) * B EF T &
11% o ANEEE F A 181,383,000/8 (=
LT — —4F : 445,078,000 T) * BWEFRE
L59% o HmFHKD - EEAESERRD
IN_EBA TSR ANSE NP R o
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Earnings Per Share

During the year, the earnings per share attributable to the owners of the
Company decreased by 66% to HK4.17 cents (2012: HK12.2 cents)
compared with last year.

Selling and Distribution Costs

During the year, the Group’s selling and distribution costs was
HK$13,380,000 (2012: HK$11,917,000), representing an increase of
12% compared with last year.

Administrative Expenses

During the year, the Group’s administrative expenses was
HK$189,362,000 (2012: HK$184,646,000), which was approximate with
last year.

Finance Costs

During the year, the Group’s finance costs was HK$334,510,000 (2012:
HK$218,872,000), representing an increase of 53% compared with last
year. The increase in finance costs was mainly due to interest expenses
incurred on new convertible bonds of the Company issued during the
year. Details of the convertible bonds are set out in note 25(b) to the
financial statements.

During the year, the Group early settled RBI Loan of US$40 million
and agreed with RBI the voluntary surrender premium of the warrants
attached with RBI Loan reduced to US$4,603,000, provided that
any of the warrants will not be exercised at maturity day in August
2014. The Group recognised a loss of early settlement of RBI
loan of HK$32,554,000 and a gain on fair value of the warrants of
HK$26,799,000 during the year. Details of RBI Loan and warrants are set
out in notes 24(a) and 26(a) to the financial statements.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD

Deferred Tax

As at 31 December 2013, deferred tax amounted to HK$657,151,000
(2012: HK$675,729,000), which represented the estimated tax effects
of the temporary differences arising from mergers and acquisition of
gold mines by the Group in previous years and was calculated at PRC
income tax rate of 25% on the increase in fair value of mining rights. The
deferred tax liability balance will be subsequently reversed and credited
to the consolidated income statement as a result of tax effect of the
amortisation of the mining rights. Such liabilities were accounted for in
accordance with the accounting principle and therefore no repayment is
required.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash flow of the Group remains healthy. As at 31 December 2013, the
Group’s cash and bank balances (including pledged bank deposits)
were HK$980,625,000 (2012: HK$184,653,000). Net assets were
HK$5,922,847,000 (2012: HK$5,605,068,000) and net current liabilities
were HK$787,814,000 (2012: HK$655,118,000).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year, no share options of the Company were exercised. As
at 31 December 2013, the total number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company was 4,350,727,315 shares (2012: 4,350,727,315 shares),
each of HK$0.125.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

As the Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United States dollars,
the Company’s board of directors (the “Board”) is of the view that the
Group’s exposure to exchange rate risk is limited.
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group employed approximately 1,100
employees in the PRC and Hong Kong. All employees are remunerated
according to their performance, experience and prevailing industry
practices. Both on-the-job and professional training are provided as
well. The Group provides retirement benefits in the form of Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance to its employees in Hong Kong. The Group
provides defined contribution retirement benefit schemes organised by
the relevant local government authorities in the PRC to its employees in
the PRC.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES

The Group has implemented a share option scheme to reward eligible
employees according to their individual performance. Through dedication
and efforts of our management and employees, we aim to maximise
the value of our shareholders, investors, management, and employees.
Details of the share option scheme granted to the Group’s employees
are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

PRODUCTION SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

We operate in a responsible manner to ensure the health and safety
of our employees and the communities in which we operate. We are
committed to meeting applicable legal requirements and where possible
seek to implement leading industry standards in our operations. We have
established a dedicated safety and environment enhancement team that
is responsible for the occupational health and safety of our mines and
operations.

We are subject to various PRC laws and regulations with respect to the
prevention and treatment of occupational diseases, the prevention of
worksite accidents and the handling of industrial injuries. Production
safety permits have been obtained for our mines.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD

We have adopted a comprehensive set of internal occupational health
and safety policies for our mines. We conduct staff training, review
internal safety procedures, carry out regular on-site safety inspections
and continuously monitor the implementation of safety policies.
Protective equipment and clothing are regularly provided to our mine
personnel, and we regularly check proper usage of such equipment. In
addition, each of our mines has been equipped with a real-time visual
monitoring system to monitor mine operation and safety. We have also
set up an inspection and detection system in the explosive warehouses
in each of our mines to provide comprehensive protection to the usage
and security of daily explosives.

We require our third-party contractors to possess requisite production
safety licences and relevant qualifications for the work they contract from
us and to undertake appropriate safety measures.

We have been in compliance with all relevant PRC laws and regulations
regarding occupational health and safety in all material respects. We
have not had any material accident involving death or personal injury at
any of the mines operated by us.

RELATIONSHIP WITH GOVERNMENT AND AWARDS

The Group has established and maintained good relationships with the
local government where the mines are located.

In July 2012, the Group signed the cooperation framework agreement
on mineral resources exploration and development with the local
government of Yunnan Province. According to the agreement, with
the local government’s strong support and assistance on exploration
development and consolidation of gold resources, the Group will have
the priority rights to access to the gold mining assets in the region.
Moreover, the local government will provide support on infrastructure,
including power, water and logistics.

In 2011, the Group also signed the similar framework agreement with
local government of Henan Province. According to the agreement,
the local government will provide full support in terms of the Group’s
consolidation of precious metal resource sector in the region. The group
is also subject to the subsidy policy tailored for foreign investment as well
as the favourable policy for land acquisition and other approvals.
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Following the various awards granted to Jinxing Mine, Luanling Mine
and Mojiang Mine in 2012, the Group was again granted a number of
provincial and local government awards in 2013. Yunnan Government
granted the Group’s Mojiang Mine with the award of Top 10 Foreign
Investment Company as well as Outstanding Privately-Owned Enterprise
(“BFEREMDE"), Trust-worthy Enterprise (“<F{E12%”), Top 10 Tax-
paying Enterprise (“TZE#T105812%"). Mojiang Mine was also
rewarded as Yunnan Province Advanced Gold Mining Group (“EmE&
wRITEIHLESER") by Yunnan Gold Administration and Yunnan Gold
Industry Association. Luanling Mine was again granted the award of
“Enterprise with Outstanding Contribution” by the People’s Government
of Tantou County, Henan Province.

CORPORATE STRATEGY AND CORPORATE PROSPECT
Continuous capacity expansion of our existing mines

There is great potential of production expansion for all of our 5 gold
mines. We will continue to expand production at our existing mines.
We will also expand the production capacity of our on-site processing
facilities to meet the planned expansion of our ore output at those mines.
For example, we are in the process of (i) constructing a new processing
facility at Jinxing Mine, (i) constructing two new processing facilities at
Luanling Mine and expanding the existing open-pit mining operation, (i)
expanding the existing open-pit mining operation at Mojiang Mine and (iv)
constructing two new processing facilities at Hengyi Mine.

Maximise the investment return by speeding up construction work
of the capacity expansion and improve the efficiency of exploration
work

In the backdrop of volatile gold market, maximising return of the
investment into the mines has become more important. We have started
and will further optimise our budget management, closely follow up
with project approval processes and construction work, and make
sure the project development timeline meet the schedule. Apart from
the Group’s internal professionals, we also consults external experts
for our cost-saving projects. With regard to geological exploration, the
Group will continue to carry out breakthroughs in exploration, by means
of strengthening its geological scientific research efforts, mobilising
inventories and drilling potential, with emphasis on reserves upgrade and
enhance output, so as to continue to maximise the result of geological
exploration.
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Continue to conduct further exploration to increase and upgrade
our resources and reserves

We have 4 exploration permits and 12 mining permits covering an
aggregate area of approximately 36.7 km® and 48.4 km?, respectively, in
Henan Province, Yunnan Province and Inner Mongolia. The area covered
by our exploration permits in Yunnan Province, based on the opinion
of an independent technical expert, is considered to have excellent
exploration potential with high probability to increase our resources with
additional drilling and/or trenching due to the multiple stacked vein style
of mineralisation which is known to extend at depth and the identification
and potential further discovery of blind veins in that area. The Group
will continue to look for breakthroughs of new resources identification
and implement the comprehensive utilisation of geological resources.
For Hengyi Mine, the Group will mainly focus on Hepingyakou and
Bianfushan areas and will use both trenching and diamond drilling for
exploration activities. For Mojiang Mine, diamond drilling will be used
for open cut and trenching for underground mining area for resources
exploration. For Jinxing Mine, the focus will be Xiepojing and Xingxingyin
areas and both trenching and diamond drilling will be used. For Luanliing,
trenching in the North area will be our focus to further increase resources
and reserves.

Continue our expansion through future acquisitions of high-quality
gold mining assets, with a particular focus on the central and
western regions of the PRC

We have achieved our rapid historical growth through a series of
acquisitions of high-quality gold mining assets. We believe there are
substantial growth opportunities in the growing but fragmented gold
mining industry in the PRC. We intend, therefore, to continue expanding
our business through further acquisitions of high-quality gold mining
assets, especially those which are underexplored and underdeveloped
but have potential to generate significant value through additional
exploration, production expansion and technological innovation, with
a particular focus on the central and western regions of the PRC. We
have a dedicated team that consists of experienced geological, finance
and legal personnel to identify and evaluate high-quality gold resources
for potential acquisition. In addition, we believe our recognition as a
“principal consolidator” in the gold mining industry by local governmental
authorities in Henan Province and Yunnan Province would also help
facilitating our continued expansion through acquisitions in those
provinces.
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Further improve production safety and environmental protection

We believe that operating in a safe and responsible manner is essential
to our success and future growth. We are operating in a green and low-
carbon manner relying on a strict environmental monitoring system. By
improving the level of safety and environmental management, the Group
continues to create its core eco-mining culture. Meanwhile, the Group
attach great importance to environmental safety issues. By focusing on
tailings, safety protection, zero-emission etc., the Company continues
with sustainable development at the minimal expense of environmental
damage, so as to achieve green, ecological and harmonious
development.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has committed to maintain high standards of corporate
governance and procedures to ensure integrity, transparency and
quality of disclosure in order to promote the ongoing development of the
best long term interest of the Company and enhance value for all the
shareholders.

The Company complied with all the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange throughout the year ended 31 December 2013.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all directors (“Directors”) of
any non-compliance with the Model Code during the financial year ended
31 December 2013, and they have all confirmed their full compliance
with the required standard as set out in the Model Code.

THE BOARD

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board. The major responsibilities of the Board include formulation
of strategic plans, adoption of corporate strategies, assessment of
investment projects, monitoring and controlling the Group’s operating
and financial performance, assessment and management of risk to which
the Group is exposed. The managements of the Group are responsible
for the execution of the Board’s decisions and day-to-day operation of
the Group.
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COMPOSITION

As at 31 December 2013, the Board consists of 9 Directors, with 6
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Cham (Chairman), Mr. Dai Xiaobing
(Co-Chairman), Mr. Zhang Shuguang, Mr. Zhang Liwei, Mr. Chang
Yim Yang and Mr. Deng Guoli. 3 independent non-executive Directors,
namely Professor Wong Lung Tak, Patrick, BBS, pPhD, J.R, Mr. Chan Kin
Sang and Professor Xiao Rong Ge.

Save that Mr. Zhang Shuguang is the brother of Mr. Chang Yim Yang,
there are no financial, business, family or other material relationships
among members of the Board.

In 2013, the positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
were held separately. The role of Chairman was held by Mr. Lam Cham,
Co-chairman was held by Mr. Dai Xiaobing and Chief Executive Officer
was held by Mr. Zhang Shuguang. The segregation of duties of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer ensures a clear distinction in
the Chairman’s responsibility to manage and provide leadership for the
Board and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility to manage the
Company’s business.

The Company has appointed a sufficient number of independent non-
executive Directors with suitable professional qualifications, such as
expertise in accounting and financial management, in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules. They actively bring their valuable
experience to the Board for promoting the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders. The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

As permitted under the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”), the Company has arranged Directors’ and Officers’ Liability
Insurance for which Members of the Board and officers of the Company
do not have to bear any excess.
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The term of office of the Directors (including independent non-executive
directors) is 3 years. In accordance with the Articles, at each annual
general meeting of the Company, one third of the Directors for the time
being or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, the number nearest to,
but not less than, one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

In 2013, the Company held 8 Board meetings and 1 general meeting.
The attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings and general
meetings during the year is as follows:

EX(BREFTES) NERBA=
F o REBEARZRTE - RARBEFERR
BEXReL Zoz2HEESR(HRESF
WI=s=2F& - MARKEEBETIR
=P Z—Z ANBUAWmERE MEBLE
FELE=FWERET K-

RIZB—Z=F  ARRABITT\REFE
RN RERAE - FRENESNE
SEBNMBERAGNHFERMT

Meetings attended/held
HESERY BTEERY
Board General
meetings meetings
Name of Directors EEpg Exges BREAE
Mr. Lam Cham, Chairman WEEE 5 8/8 1/1
Mr. Zhang Shuguang, Chief Executive Officer RN LA TTEAAE 8/8 01
Mr. Zhang Liwei, Chief Financial Officer RO@ERSE  BIFaE 8/8 0/1
Mr. Dai Xiaobing, Co-chairman BNEEYE  BELE 8/8 0/1
Mr. Chang Yim Yang REBLE 8/8 0/1
Mr. Deng Guoli BB A5 A4 8/8 0/1

Professor Wong Lung Tak, Patrick, HEREEHK

BBS, PhD, J.P. HEALE - 151 XF#T 8/8 1/1
Mr. Chan Kin Sang PREEAEL A 8/8 0/1
Professor Xiao Rong Ge EESE 65 8/8 0/1

The minutes of Board meetings are prepared by the company secretary
of the meeting. The draft minutes are circulated to all Members of the
Board for their comments and the final version of the minutes is sent to
all Members of the Board for their records within a reasonable time after
the meeting. The minutes are also open for inspection by all Members of
the Board at the Company’s registered office.

36

EXega BB neanERE &
SRERENAERHEAN - SHRCHER
REXTEFEMBEREUHRKEER
MERERRBXEEETSMEXE A
FCEk - BRCHETBHFERNR B MM E
B AHREFEEMEKEEH -



CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD CP"
PREEEBERERERLT

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT EEREERRRE

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional ARG BESD2HEBFET LR -
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The — LAZE[RE N 5B ¥R SR AN M R EE - R A A
Company has arranged in-house trainings for Directors in the form EZEBRITHFN S RAESREFZIIE
of seminar and provision of training materials. A summary of training £ - BESZLHRHEI - RIFZEFRME
received by Directors during the relevant period according to the records ~ RYFRREE * EENEAREZE X MEIIBE

provided by the Directors is as follows: LU
Training on corporate
governance, regulatory
development and
other relevant topics
TEER EERER
Name of Directors EEMS H b iaRE =R
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lam Cham M5t v
Mr. Dai Xiaobing B/EEE v/
Mr. Chang Yim Yang REBS LA v/
Mr. Deng Guoli BB A 5 A4 v/
Mr. Zhang Liwei SRNMESTE v/
Mr. Zhang Shuguang SREEH ST v
Independent Non-Executive Directors By k#{TEE
Professor Wong Lung Tak, EREEHUX - HEHEE v
Patrick, BBS, PhD, J.P 1+ X F#+
Mr. Chan Kin Sang PR i A S A v
Professor Xiao Rong Ge EEJEI ¢ v/
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit committee

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) under the Board. The Audit Committee comprised three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Professor Wong Lung Tak,
Patrick, BBS, PhD, J.R, Mr. Chan Kin Sang and Professor Xiao Rong Ge.
Professor Wong Lung Tak, Patrick, BBS, PhD, J.R is the Chairman of the
Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee’s duties are mainly to review the Company’s
financial reports, make recommendations on the appointment, removal
and remuneration of independent auditors and approve audit and audit-
related services, and supervise the Company'’s internal financial reporting
procedures and management policies.

At least two meetings of the Audit Committee will be convened annually
to review the accounting policies, internal control and the relevant
financial and accounting issues, so as to ensure fairness and accuracy of
the Company’s financial statements and other relevant information. The
minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are prepared by the secretary
of the meeting. The draft minutes are circulated to the Committee
Members for comments and the final version of the minutes is sent to
the Committee Members for their records within a reasonable time after
the meeting. The minutes are also open for inspection by the Committee
Members at the Company’s registered office.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there were two Audit
Committee meetings held to review the interim and annual financial
results and reports, financial reporting and compliance procedures,
and internal control matters. All members of the Audit Committee have
attended all meetings during the year.

Remuneration committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”). The Remuneration Committee consists of
two independent non-executive Directors, Professor Wong Lung Tak,
Patrick, BBS, phD, J.£ and Mr. Chan Kin Sang, and one executive Director,
Mr. Lam Cham. Professor Wong Lung Tak, Patrick is the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The Company has formulated written terms
of reference for the Remuneration Committee in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies and in
overseeing and evaluating remuneration packages of the Directors.
Its duties include making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management. It takes into consideration factors such as salaries
and compensation packages paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of Directors. It also takes into account
whether the emoluments offered are appropriate to the duties and
performance of the respective individuals concerned and whether such
emoluments are competitive and sufficiently attractive to retain such
individuals.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there was one Remuneration
Committee meeting held. All members of the Remuneration Committee
attended the meeting.

Competitive remuneration packages are structured to be commensurate
with individual responsibilities, qualification, experience and performance.

The remuneration of a Director is determined with reference to his
duties and responsibilities with the Company and the prevailing market
situation. Details of the emoluments of Directors during the year ended
31 December 2013 are set out in note 8 to the financial statements of
this annual report. The emoluments paid to senior management during
the year ended 31 December 2013 were within the following bands:
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) under the Board. Members of the Nomination Committee
consists of two independent non-executive Directors, Professor Wong
Lung Tak, Patrick, BB8S, PhD, J.R. and Mr. Chan Kin Sang, and one
executive Director, Mr. Lam Cham. Mr. Lam Cham is the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for the following:

° reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and making
recommendations on proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

° identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

° assessing the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and

o making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the chairman and the chief executive.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy to comply with a
new code provision on board diversity. The policy aims to set out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board to ensure that the Board has
the balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, knowledge and skills. In identifying suitable
candidates, the Nomination Committee will consider candidates with the
objective criteria with due regard of the benefits of diversity on the Board.
There was no addition to the Board after the new code provision took
effect.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there was one Nomination
Committee meeting held. All members of the Nomination Committee
attended the meeting.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD

Corporate Governance Committee

The Group has established a corporate governance committee (the
“Corporate Governance Committee”). The Corporate Governance
Committee consists of three executive Directors, Mr. Lam Cham, Mr.
Zhang Shuguang and Mr. Zhang Liwei. Mr. Lam Cham is the Chairman
of the Corporate Governance Committee.

The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for the following:

° developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the Board;

° reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

° reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements;

° developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to employees and Directors; and

° reviewing the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in this Corporate Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there was one Corporate
Governance Committee meeting held. All members of the Corporate
Governance Committee attended the meeting.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company and ensure that they are prepared
in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors also ensure the timely publication of such
financial statements.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company, Messrs Crowe
Horwath (HK) CPA Limited, with regard to their reporting responsibilities
on the Company’s financial statements is set out in the Auditor’s Report
on pages 64 to 65.
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AUDITORS” REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external auditors
(including any entity under common control, ownership or management
with the external auditors or any entity that a reasonable and informed
third party having knowledge of all relevant information would reasonably
conclude as part of the audit firm nationally or internationally) during the
year ended 31 December 2013 is as follows:
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2013
—E-=

HK$’000

FHBxT

Audit services EZIRTE 2,500
Non-audit services IEEAZ RS

Interim review A HRZR B 550

Internal control review SRR 280

3,330

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities to maintain a sound and effective
internal control system of the Group to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Company’s assets. The Group has established
guidelines and procedures for the approval and control of expenditure.
Operating expenditures and capital expenditures are subject to the
overall budget control and approval process prior to commitment.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee of the Company,
conducted the annual review of the effectiveness of the Company’s
system of internal controls for the year ended 31 December 2013. The
review covered all material controls including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions. There were no
significant control failings, weaknesses or significant areas of concern
identified during the year which might affect shareholders.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Ms. Yim Siu Hung, is responsible for facilitating
the Board process, as well as communications among Board members,
with shareholders and management. Ms. Yim’s biography is set out in
the “Biographical Details of the Directors and the Senior Management”
section on page 48. During the year, Ms. Yim took not less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training to update her skills and knowledge.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company’s annual general meeting and extraordinary general
meeting provide the principal channels of communication with its
shareholders. They provide opportunities for shareholders to share views
with the Board.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening extraordinary general meeting and putting forward
proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

Under the Company’s Articles, the Board, on the requisition of
shareholders of the Company holding not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company by sending a written notice to the Board or
the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong, shall convene an extraordinary general meeting to address
specific issues specified in such requisition of the Company within 21
days from the date of deposit of written notice. The same requirement
and procedure also apply to any proposal to be tabled at shareholders’
meetings for adoption.

ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Enquiries may be put to the Board through the Company’s Principal
Place of Business in Hong Kong at Room 3107-9, Shun Tak Centre
West Tower, 200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong (email:
info@cpmgroup.hk).

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there is no change in the
Company’s constitutional documents.
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Cham (##2), aged 55, was appointed as chairman of the
Board and executive director of the Company on 3 March 2011 and
27 January 2004, respectively. Mr. Lam is one of the founders of the
Company. He has over 20 years of experience in business management
and development and is primarily responsible for the Group’s overall
strategic planning and business management. Mr. Lam currently is
a member of the Yunnan Committee of Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference.

Mr. Zhang Shuguang (FREE>), aged 44, was appointed as executive
director and Chief Executive Officer on 6 September 2011 of the
Company. Mr. Zhang holds a master degree in Engineering from Nippon
Institute of Technology and possesses the professions in mining field. Mr.
Zhang has over fifteen years of experience in mergers and acquisition
and business management. He is primary responsibility for the Group’s
acquisition strategies and operation management. Mr. Zhang is the
brother of Mr. Chang Yim Yang.

Mr. Zhang Liwei (5&k 7 #E), aged 35, was appointed as an executive
director and chief financial officer of the Company on 1 January 2012
and 12 June 2012 respectively. Mr. Zhang was most recently Senior Vice
President with Macquarie Capital. Mr. Zhang has 10 years’ experience in
providing investment-banking services to natural resource companies on
mergers and acquisitions, divestments, debt and equity capital raisings.
Throughout his career, Mr. Zhang has worked for various international
companies, such as N M Rothschild & Sons, Citigroup, HSBC and
Macquarie Capital. Mr. Zhang received his Bachelor degree in Economics
with First Class Honors from London School of Economics and Political
Science in United Kingdom.

Mr. Chang Yim Yang (3R &%), aged 51, was appointed as executive
director of the Company on 19 June 2008. Mr. Chang was awarded
post-graduate diploma by University of Shenzhen in International
Finance. Mr. Chang is experienced in mergers and acquisitions as well
as capital market operations. He is well versed in investment operations
in Mainland China and has more than twenty years of experience in this
industry. Mr. Chang is the brother of Mr. Zhang Shuguang.
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Mr. Dai Xiaobing (&#/)E&), aged 46, was appointed as executive
director of the Company on 16 November 2009 and as Chief Executive
Officer on 21 January 2010. On 6 September 2011, Mr. Dai has resigned
as the Chief Executive Officer and was appointed as the Co-chairman
of the Company. Mr. Dai was awarded a PhD in Econometrics by Jilin
University School of Business (& # A2 £ 057). Mr. Dai is experienced
in the corporate finance sector as well as merger and acquisitions
and corporate structuring of companies in the PRC. He is also familiar
with the capital market in the PRC. Mr. Dai is an independent director
of Jiangxi Ganneng Co., Ltd. (I Faz&RERR D BR A F]) (Stock code:
000899), a company listed on the stock exchange of Shenzhen and
an executive director and chairman of the Board of Sino Oil and Gas
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 702), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Deng Guoli (BBl Fl), aged 48, was appointed as executive director
of the Company on 3 March 2011. Mr. Deng holds a bachelor’s degree
in Geology from East China Geological Institute, a Master degree in
Business Administration from the Management School of Xi An Jiao Tong
University (FAZ 2 A2 E IR ER). He is currently a senior geological
engineer. Mr. Deng worked in Geological Team 211 (Northwestern) of
China’s Nuclear Industry Authority (FFBI#Z TEE L ———E X
Fx) and had respectively held the positions of Geological Technician,
Assistant Engineer, Engineer and Senior Engineer, Project Technology
Supervisor and Project Supervisor. He also served as the Assistant to
Mine Manager at Shanxi Pangjiahe Gold Mine (5 74 &g 57 & &% = B
I#). Mr. Deng had long been engaging in the investigations for regional
mineral production, surveys, exploration, mine exploitation and gold
heap leaching. He has extensive experience and knowledge in the areas
of geological evaluation of mines, mine construction, mine selection and
production, and operational management. He was appointed as the
vice-president and chief engineer of the Group on 21 January 2010.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Professor Wong Lung Tak, Patrick (E& &), B85S, J.P, aged 66, was
appointed independent non-executive Director of the Company on 19
June 2004. Professor Wong is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising)
in Hong Kong and Managing Practicing Director of Patrick Wong CPA
Limited. He is also a Chartered Secretary and a Certified Tax Advisor. He
has over 30 years’ experience in the accountancy profession. Professor
Wong was accorded Doctor of Philosophy in Business, was awarded a
Badge of Honour by the Queen of England, was appointed a Justice of
the Peace and was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) by the Hong
Kong Government of SAR. He was appointed Adjunct Professor, School
of Accounting and Finance, The Hong Kong Polytechnic University from
2002 to 2013. Professor Wong is currently an independent non-executive
director of Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited, CC Land Holdings
Limited, Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited, Guangzhou Baiyunshan
Pharmaceutical Holdings Company Limited, Water Oasis Group Limited,
Real Nutriceutical Group Limited, National Arts Entertainment and Culture
Group Limited, Winox Holdings Limited and Excel Development (Holdings)
Limited, all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan Kin Sang (Bf#24), aged 62, was first appointed as
independent non-executive Director on 19 June 2004. Mr. Chan is
currently the sole proprietor of Messrs. Peter K.S. Chan & Co., Solicitors
and Notaries. Mr. Chan has been a practising solicitor in Hong Kong
since 1982. Mr. Chan graduated from the University of Hong Kong with
a bachelor’s degree in laws in 1979. Mr. Chan was admitted as a notary
public in 1997 and as a China-appointed attesting officer in 2000. Mr.
Chan is currently a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr.
Chan is currently an independent non-executive director of Luxking
Group Holdings Limited and non-executive director of Pan Hong Property
Group Limited. The shares of both companies are listed on Singapore
Stock Exchange Limited. Mr. Chan is also an independent non-executive
director of China Taifeng Beddings Holdings Limited and Tianjin TEDA
Biomedical Engineering Company Limited and a non-executive director
of Combest Holdings Limited. The shares of all of these companies are
listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Professor Xiao Rong Ge (H#% M), aged 65, was appointed as
independent non-executive Director and member of Audit Committee
of the Company on 21 January 2010. Professor Xiao obtained his
PhD in Professional Geology from the China University of Geosciences
(Beijing). He is currently a professor of Professional Geology and mentor
to doctoral students at the China University of Geosciences (Beijing).
Professor Xiao has long been conducting research work in the fields of
geology, mineral exploration and economic evaluation. He participated in
the fieldwork of geological inspection of metal minerals by an integrated
exploration team of the geological exploration company of the Ministry
of Metallurgical Industry of China, mainly at the regions of Langshan
mountain Bayan Obo, Manzhouli and Daxinganling of Inner Mongolia,
PRC. He also took part in the geological research work of the Three-River
Area of Yunnan and the system research of meso-cenozoic geological
minerals and sylvite and copper minerals in Yunnan. As a post-doctoral
researcher at the Institute of Geochemistry Chinese Academy of
Sciences, he engaged in geological geochemistry research, focusing
in research on the formation of meso-cenozoic sandstone-type copper
minerals. He is currently specialised in gold and silver deposits research,
and has splendid achievement in hydrothermal fluid and hydrothermal
sedimentary rock research. His monograph named “Mineralisation Rule
and Anticipation of Gold Minerals in the Innermost Part of Xiao Qin
Ling” {/NRIRFEERSSTEAIEREEKETE A was published in 2009.
Professor Xiao had engaged in the projects of the National Science
Foundation of China, basic technical research projects of the Department
of Technology, Ministry of Land and Resources, national geological
inspection projects, open laboratory projects on geochemistry of the
Chinese Academy of Sciences and related provincial projects of the
Department of Land and Resources and various mining enterprises
projects, and was awarded a Third Class Award of Technological
Progress by the Ministry of Geology and Mineral Resources, a First
Class Award and a Second Class Award of Technological Achievement
by the Ministry of Land and Resources. Professor Xiao had engaged in
consultant services for mining investment, valuation for financing, mining
rights valuation and technical inspection, and had conducted valuation of
mining resources for various mining enterprises.
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Senior Management

Mr. Zhou Yuliang (B R), aged 44, is vice president of the Group and
has joined the Group since 2008. Mr. Zhou holds a master’s degree in
finance from Hunan University. Prior to joining the Company, he worked
in financing departments for a few leading banks based in Shenzhen.
Prior to this he served for 6 years in a fund company specialised in
mining sector.

Mr. Wang Junxian (E£&%), aged 52, is the chief geological engineer
of the Group and has joined the Group since 2010. He graduated from
Chengdu University of Technology (Bk#3E TAZ) (formerly known as
Chengdu College of Geology (B #BihE ) majored in geology and
mining. Mr. Wang has engineer title. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang
worked for the Chinese People’s Armed Police Gold Force (F B Z =S
BBFx%) and Shanxi Tongguan County Weinan City Gold Mine (%% /& B8 &
B M ETE) as chief engineer and deputy general manager respectively.
Mr. Wang has more than 26 years experience in geology, mining, mine
processing, mining technologies and mine management.

Ms. Yim Siu Hung (BXf&4I), aged 49, was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 12 June 2012. Ms. Yim holds a degree
in law and a degree in accountancy. She is a fellow member of both
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. She has years of extensive
experience in the company secretarial sector and has worked for
international accounting and law firms and listed companies in Hong
Kong.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD

Report of the Directors
EFERE

The Directors hereby submitting the annual report and the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set forth in note 18 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set
out in the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 66 and 67.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 208 and 209.

RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of change in
equity on pages 71 and 72 and in note 30 to the financial statements
respectively.

FIXED ASSETS

Particulars of the movements in fixed assets of the Group during the
financial year are set forth in note 14 to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank and other borrowings of the Group and the
Company as at 31 December 2013 are set out in note 24 to the financial
statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Particulars of convertible bonds of the Group and the Company as at
31 December 2013 are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.
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WARRANTS

Particulars of warrants of the Group and the Company as at
31 December 2013 are set out in notes 26 and 30(c) to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in
note 30(b) to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Cham, Chairman

Mr. Zhang Shuguang, Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Zhang Liwei, Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Dai Xiaobing, Co-chairman

Mr. Chang Yim Yang

Mr. Deng Guoali

Independent non-executive Directors:

Professor Wong Lung Tak, Patrick, BBS, PhD, J.P
Mr. Chan Kin Sang
Professor Xiao Rong Ge

50

TR REE
KREBRARARWZ_ZE—=F+=_AH
Z+—BRBREE ZFBEHN SRR
¥ 26 K& 30(c) °

N

AR 2 BEFFIEH R HREM T
30(b) °

55

FARBEEAREASR  EF0T -

HITES -
MR E - 5
REEH I - TTHARH
RN - BB
WR%E  BEEE
REBSEE
BRI S A

BYFIITES !
HREYR  WEHEE  H1 A TF#L

PREEAE KA
H REHIR



The service contract of Mr. Lam Cham was renewed for a fixed term
of three years commencing from 19 June 2013. The service contract
of Mr. Chang Yim Yang was renewed for a fixed term of three years
commencing from 19 June 2011. The service contract of Mr. Dai
Xiaobing was renewed for a fixed term of three years commencing from
16 November 2012. The service contract of Mr. Deng Guoli was renewed
on 3 March 2014 for a term of three years. Mr. Zhang Shuguang was
first appointed as executive Director on 6 September 2011 for a term of
three years. Mr. Zhang Liwei was first appointed as executive Director on
1 January 2012 for a term of three years. The service contract of each
of the independent non-executive Directors Professor Wong Lung Tak,
Patrick, BBS, PhD, J.R and Mr. Chan Kin Sang was renewed for a term
of three years commencing from 19 June 2013. The service contract
of Professor Xiao Rong Ge as independent non-executive Director was
renewed for a term of three years commencing from 21 January 2013.

There is no specific clause in all the service contracts providing for the
amount of compensation in case of early termination. Each Director was
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual
general meetings in accordance with the Articles. Pursuant to Article
87(1) of the Articles, Mr. Deng Guoli, Mr. Chan Kin Sang and Professor
Xiao Rong Ge shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company and shall be eligible for re-election.

Other than as disclosed above, no Director has a service contract which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

During the year, no consideration was provided to or receivable by third
party for making available the service of director or in any other capacity
while director.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of its independent
non-executive Directors independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES” INTEREST IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests of the Directors and chief
executives in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)), which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and/or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange are

as follows:

EERITHAZRRG 2
=

RZT—=F+ZA=+—H 2RI
BEBRNARR R EAREE (EERE
7 R EIEGRD ([ 85 R BREERD ) EXV
#) z Bty - R REST - AR
BESLPEERIEXVEET R8O EZ
RECHEARRA LB ez (B2
RERIEREF MBS
SR BEA RN TRE)
7 M EE R0 3 352 R 2 17 TE R E A
fERprtt B et < sk ¢ SRIBIRE ST AR
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Number of
underlying
shares held
Approximate under equity
Nature of Total percentage derivatives (d)
interest number of of interest Long/ BAR 674
Name of Directors and capacity the Shares B4z short position IARKEZ
BExpg EatERED LEnEt BOL ¥R/ %R HERAGHA ()
Mr. Lam Cham Corporate (a) 257,196,670 5.91% Long
e NSIIC) )
Personal (a) 7,400,000 0.17% Long 20,000,000
fELA () o)
Mr. Chang Yim Yang Corporate (b) 543,432,382 12.49% Long
RERG LA 27 (b) e
Personal (b) 119,730,000 2.75% Long 20,000,000
fEA (b) o)
Mr. Dai Xiaobing Personal 11,000,000 0.25% Long 20,000,000
B/ ERE fEA 1)
Mr. Zhang Shuguang Personal 10,300,000 0.24% Long 20,000,000
RENEE fEA e
Mr. Deng Guoli Personal - - - 20,000,000
BRI 55 A EPN
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Approximate

- CPM

Number of
underlying
shares held
under equity

Nature of Total percentage derivatives (d)
interest number of of interest Long/ URASTE
Name of Directors and capacity the Shares #A%ERE short position IAEEZ
EEng ERtER SR 13 48 8 Botk BE /%A HBERGEHEE ()
Professor Wong Lung Tak, Personal () 800,000 0.02% Long 3,000,000
Patrick, BBS, PhD, J.P. A () He
HEERE  HEHEE
féi— C K FHA
Mr. Chan Kin Sang Personal (c) 800,000 0.02% Long 3,000,000
PRIEA L4 fEA () e
Professor Xiao Rong Ge Personal (c) - - - 3,000,000
EEJE € fEA (c)

(@  Aswell Group Limited (“Aswell Group”) is a company beneficially owned as (@)  Aswell Group Limited ([ Aswell Group])
to approximately 29.4% by Mr. Lam Cham. Accordingly, Mr. Lam Cham is B—HEMNEEEERERL29.4%H#
taken to be interested in the Shares held by Aswell Group. mZAamEe Al MELXERRAER

Aswell Group P57 8B B #E AR ©
Apart from his indirect interests through Aswell Group, 7,400,000 Shares B i 1B Aswell Group FARZERN
are directly and beneficially owned by Mr. Lam Cham. MEZEEEZE R ETHEA 7,400,000 AKX
{/'\ °

() Lead Pride Holdings Limited (“Lead Pride”) is wholly-owned by Mr. Chang (b))  Lead Pride Holdings Limited ([ Lead
Yim Yang. Accordingly, Mr. Chang Yim Yang is taken to be interested in the PrideJ) HREGEEEEHESR - Bt -
Shares held by Lead Pride. RE 5w R A Lead Pride FTiF B

E’Jﬁxf’ﬁqﬂ AR o
Apart from his indirect interests through Lead Pride, 119,730,000 Shares R i 8 Lead Pride 5 & MmN
are directly and beneficially owned by Mr. Chang Yim Yang. Bkt EREREHRES 119,730, OOOHX
f&4n ©

€0  Mr. Chan Kin Sang, Professor Xiao Rong Ge and Professor Wong Lung  (¢) FREEE%RLE - BREHE REEREHE
Tak, Patrick are independent non-executive Directors. BHRBIIERNITES -

(d)  These represent the interests in underlying shares in respect of the share  (d) T34 R IR H 2 BERRES K& 2 R

options granted by the Company, the details of which are set out in the
sub-section entitled “Share Options” below.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the
Directors nor chief executive of the Company nor their associates, had
any interest in long position or short position in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provision of the
SFO, or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which required, pursuant to
the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTIONS

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a written resolution of the then shareholders passed on
18 September 2004.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the Company
with a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to any executive directors, non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors of the
Group and any advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners, joint venture business partners,
promoters, service providers to the Group whom the Board considers,
in its sole discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the Group,
subject to and in accordance with all applicable laws (the “Participants”).

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
commencing on 18 September 2004, being the date on which the Share
Option Scheme was adopted.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit”), unless the Company obtains a fresh approval from the
shareholders.
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At the Annual General Meeting held on 26 May 2011, the Company
obtained the approval from the shareholders to refresh the limit in respect
of the granting of share options under the Share Option Scheme and all
other share option scheme(s) up to 10% of the total number of Shares
in issue as at the date of approval of such refreshment by passing of an
ordinary resolution by the shareholders.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Share Option Scheme, the
maximum number of the Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 30% of the total number of Shares in issue from time to
time.

Unless approved by the shareholders, the total number of the Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
Participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in
issue.

Offer of an option (“Offer”) shall be deemed to have been accepted by
any Participant (the “Grantee”) who accepts an Offer in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and the option to which the
Offer relates shall be deemed to have been granted and to have taken
effect when the duplicate of the offer letter comprising acceptance of
the Offer duly signed by the Grantee together with a remittance in favour
of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the granting
thereof is received by the Company within such period as the Board may
determine and specify in the Offer.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during the period to be determined by
the Board at its absolute discretion and notified by the Board to each
Grantee as being the period during which such option may be exercised
and in any event, such period shall not be longer than 10 years from the
date of offer (the “Option Period”). An option shall lapse automatically
and not be exercisable (to the extent not already exercised) on the expiry
of the Option Period.

cPM

N_E——FRA-+NBEITZREE
FREL ARRFEBRIBBH—BY
BRER - USRI EE IR R S AR
STEIRFBEMBRESERLERE
EREEHEZBEIN AR 2B BITRMG
REZ10% ©

BN 6 B8 R AT 81 RT A A E M RN - B
BB AR B A B SR PR
B MR ARITEZ B — B TREm A
BITZBRMEB - RZTHAABBTED
ITARMD 4282 30% °

BRIEAR AL E - BRI EM + @A &
TEU2EE ZBEREBRBREITERLH
RITRE 2 BERCHE) AT 2 BTk
TTZBDEE T A BBE R ITRD AR
1% °

HEEEFSETTNREERETIEELZ
HERN - AARIBEARAZAEB K
HEs ((RhEs D EXNHFEIR - ER
AZAREZM1.00E TIER/RKRENRE -
AZE L ZR SRR S E2EE ([AE
ADREBB I B OGRS B
EERAE BRI RGEEE RN RE
/‘*\5( o

BRI RIEBREE CGTNEFE
EREMIBRE MBI ELIAR A 2 BE
TTREARERTTE - BRI - ZITE
HIN A AR AR+ ([BREE X
H11) - BREAMEERE - BRESS
B By i B A T ATTE (B ARTTE
EME)

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 —Z—=FFf 55



Report of the Directors
EEERE

The subscription price for the Shares under the Share Option Scheme
will be at least the highest of (a) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date on which
an offer is made by the Company to the Grantee (which date must be a
business day, “Offer Date”); (b) a price being the average of the closing
prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding the Offer Date;
and (c) the nominal value of the Share.

As at the date of issue of this annual report, the number of Shares in
respect of which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the Share Option Scheme was 260,100,000, representing
approximately 5.98% of the existing issued share capital of the Company.
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Details of the share options granted and remained outstanding as at

CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD
PREEEBERERERLT

31 December 2013 under the Share Option Scheme are as follows:
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BEEETERE RERITENEREZ

B
Number of option shares
BRESRRHBE
Outstanding at Outstanding at
1 January 31 December
2013 Granted Lapsed  Exercised 2013
Exercise ZE-=F during during during —E-=F
Date of grant Price -A-H theyear  theyear  theyear T=A=1-H
REAH %8 HATE  FRRE  FRXR ERAR HRTE
HKS$
BT
Mr. Lam Cham 28 October 2011 1.51 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000
W “T——%tAZTNB
Mr. Dai Xiaobing 28 October 2011 1.51 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000
HEEE ZE——4tAZTNH
Mr. Chang Yim Yang 28 October 2011 1.51 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000
REGLE ZT——451tAZT/\H
Mr. Deng Guoli 28 October 2011 1.51 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000
HENEE —E——5+AZt/R
Mr. Zhang Shuguang 28 October 2011 1.51 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000
REREE ZE——4%tAZt/H
Professor Wong Lung Tak, 28 October 2011 1.51 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
Patrick, B8S, PD, J.P ZE—EtAZtN\A
BREYR  HEHEE
fat AT
Mr. Chan Kin Sang 28 October 2011 1.51 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
RigEEs —Z—5+AZt/R
Professor Xiao Rong Ge 28 October 2011 1.51 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
HREAR ZT——451tAZT/\H
Other senior management 28 October 2011 1.51 212,100,000 - (61,000,000) - 151,100,000
staff and employees “F—F+AZtN\A
EtERERABRES
Total & 7T 321,100,000 - (61,000,000) - 260,100,000
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The above share options are of an exercise price HK$1.51 per share with
the exercisable period from 28 October 2013 to 27 October 2017.

The share options granted are recognised in the financial statements.
The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at the grant date using the Black-
Scholes Option Pricing model after taking into accounts the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The contractual life
of the option is used as an input into this model. Expectations of early
exercise are incorporated into the Black-Scholes Option Pricing model.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the financial year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than as disclosed in note 36 of the notes to the financial
statements, no contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the financial year.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD CP"
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2013, as far as known to the Directors, the following
persons (other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company)
who had 5% or more interests in the shares or underlying shares in
respect of equity derivatives of the Company that would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:

FERRK
W-ZE—=F+_"F=+—8 BESEFH
o BARNEREBEES KR KDIZE 336
BEENSLRMALEE  BRAQRES
TTERABEL SN » THIATRARD B 5%
RETET BB, R #A 5%k A L#
o MZEEEAREESKBEKLIE
XVEBE 2 & 37 &b 2 ATE MARRHEE -

Long position in the shares of the Company RKPABRD TR
Nature of Number of
interest ordinary shares Total
Name of shareholders and capacity of the Company Percentage
L ELd N
REEH REt ZERRHYE BEA
1. Munsun Assets Management Ltd. Corporate (Note 1) 882,026,000 20.27%
EE (KEE1)
2. Lead Pride Holdings Limited Corporate (Note 2) 543,432,382 12.49%
EE (FEE2)
3. The Bank of New York Mellon Corporate (Note 3) 262,067,909 6.02%
Corporation EE (FEE3)
4. Aswell Group Limited Corporate (Note 4) 257,196,670 5.91%
EE (KisE4)
5. Market Vectors ETF — Market Vectors Corporate (Note 5) 253,888,000 5.84%
Junior Gold Miners ETF EE (KtEEs5)
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Notes:

Munsun Assets Management Ltd. in its capacity as an investment manager
held 882,026,000 shares, of which 423,546,000 shares and 350,214,000
shares (representing 9.74% and 8.05% of the issued shares of the
Company) were held by its wholly owned subsidiaries, Munsun Umbrella
Trust-Munsun Stable Growth Fund (of which TMF (Cayman) Ltd. acts as
Trustee for 263,424,000 shares) and Munsun Global Mining Investment
Fund LP respectively.

Lead Pride Holdings Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Chang
Yim Yang.

The Bank of New York Mellon had long position in 262,067,909 shares and
261,891,909 shares in lending pool. Since The Bank of New York Mellon
is wholly owned by The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation, The Bank
of New York Mellon Corporation is also taken to be interested in the shares
held by The Bank of New York Mellon pursuant to the SFO.

Aswell Group is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability which is legally and beneficially owned as to 29.4% by Mr.
Lam Cham and as to 30% by Mr. Lim Wa (who is also beneficially interested
in 7,800,000 shares and options for subscription of 2,000,000 shares of
the Company).

Market Vectors ETF — Market Vectors Junior Gold Miners ETF is managed
by Van Eck Global.

Saved as disclosed above in this section, as at 31 December 2013,
the Company has not been notified of any other persons (other than
the Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had any interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the

SFO.
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The Bank of New York Mellon¥f &
262,067,909 f& % 17 #f & K2 261,891,909
A& AT AR5 AR o BBF The Bank of New
York Mellon # The Bank of New York
Mellon Corporation & #H & BB IEE
% M HAE &5 - The Bank of New York
Mellon Corporation 71 4% &1 The Bank
of New York Mellon £ R (7 4 155 1

Ny
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Aswell Group AR T8 2 Z Bt S et pk sz
ZHEBRRAR BMEEEREERSHEE
29.4% - LA K B 5t & (I8 A 7,800,000
Ji% 15 K2 AT 88 2,000,000 P A A &) B 19 B9
BRETEEER) AFEREE30% °

Market Vectors ETF — Market Vectors
Junior Gold Miners ETF # Van Eck
Global B -
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD

COMPLIANCE OF THE MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS" SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors of any non-
compliance with the Model Code during the financial year ended
31 December 2013, and they have all confirmed their full compliance
with the required standard as set out in the Model Code.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report on pages 34 to 43 for
details.

COMPETING BUSINESS INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the Directors and their respective associates had any interest
in a business which competes or may compete with the business of the
Group.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles although
there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in the
Cayman Islands.

- CPM
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Report of the Directors
EFEWE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

- the largest supplier 27%

—  five largest suppliers totally 66%
Sales

—  the largest customer 22%

—  five largest customers totally 70%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year.

COMMITMENTS

Details of commitments of the Group are set out in note 35 to the
financial statements.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of pledge of assets of the Group are set out in note 28 to the
financial statements.

CONTINGENCIES

Save as disclosed in note 37(j) to the financial statements in relation to
the Group’s environmental contingencies, the Group did not have any
other contingent liabilities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of events after the reporting period are set out in note 40 to the
financial statements.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD CP"
PREEEBERERERLT

AUDITOR = ELEm

CCIF CPA Limited had acted as auditor of the Company for the year RESEFEIEBABRARNEE_S
ended 31 December 2011 and retired on 25 May 2012. Crowe Horwath ——&F+ZHA=+—HIEFEEERAF
(HK) CPA Limited (“Crowe Horwath”) has been appointed as auditor of HIZEMIT AR —_E——FAA-_+HHR
the Company with effect from 25 May 2012. F-BHBEE(EDL) SFAMEEAER

~AA((BEEEDER-_FT—-FHA
“+tRHBEZRERNRARHAZEED

The consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31 December B EZE-_ZE—Z—F K _ZT—=F+=A4
2012 and 2013 were audited by Crowe Horwath who retire and, being =+—HIEFEZHFEMEHREARE S
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual &% - ESEEERRBAFRAGER
general meeting of the Company. A resolution will be submitted to the FHERER » WA ER RFEEERE A7

e

forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint Crowe Horwath as A RITZEAN o BHEE E 05 E AR N A8

auditor of the Company. Bz —BRBREREERRBFRE
RE o

On behalf of the Board REEFE

Lam Cham FE

Chairman Az

Hong Kong, 28 March 2014 8 ZE—mWE=A=+NH
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BB EE

N\ Crowe Horwath.

To the Shareholders of China Precious Metal Resources Holdings
Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Precious Metal Resources Holdings Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 66 to 207 which
comprise the consolidated and Company statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2013 and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS™ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2014

Leung Chun Wa

Practising Certificate Number P04963

cPM
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Consolidated Income Statement

mEEmR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE - T —
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars LA #5517 )

=F+-A=t—HILHFE

2013 2012
—EB—=F —ET——F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
ihE=2 FHExT THET
Revenue g 4(a) 1,562,409 1,626,023
Cost of sales HE AN (705,249) (586,698)
Gross profit EF 857,160 1,039,325
Other revenue HAA 5 8,755 20,322
Other net gain Hah W 558 5 1,390 18,107
Selling and distribution costs $HE Ko tEAk AN (13,380) (11,917)
Administrative expenses THEHR (189,362) (184,646)
Profit from operations #RER A 664,563 881,191
Finance costs B RS AR AN 6(a) (334,510) (218,872)
Profit before taxation BRE AR A 6 330,053 662,319
Income tax FriS 7 (148,670) (217,241)
Profit for the year attributable AAREE AEMN
to owners of the Company FERA 10 181,383 445,078
HK cents HK cents
AL &AL
Earnings per share BREF 12
Basic BN 4.17 12.2
Diluted e 4.17 12.2

The notes on pages 75 to 207 form part of these financial statements.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD
FEREEERERERAT

cPM

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e EWER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE =T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars JAZ ¥ 51|7R )

—ZF+ZRA=t+—HILFE

2013 2012
—E-= —T——fF
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
BsE FET FAT
Profit for the year FERR 181,383 445,078
Other comprehensive FEHMEE
income/(loss) for the year W (E5E)
(net of tax) (BRBEE)
Items that may be reclassified HERJGEERT D HE
subsequently to profit or loss: EEmIEA -
Exchange differences on Ny el
translation of financial ZPER =58
statements:
Exchange difference arising FEEACIERZXE
during the year 103,143 (590)
Reclassification adjustment BREERNTHEIE 18(d)
relating to a subsidiary RNAElZ B EARE
deregistered during the year (5,630) -
97,513 (590)
Available-for-sale financial asset: AHEESMEE ¢
Reclassification adjustment FEHEHNE
relating to available-for-sale CRIEEBNOEAR
financial asset disposed of
during the year - 28,592
- 28,592
97,513 28,002
Total comprehensive income for the year RATEE AL
attributable to owners of the Company FEZHENRELE 278,896 473,080

The notes on pages 75 to 207 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
AR &

As at 31 December 2013 R=—ZE—=F+_-_A=+—AH
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars LA #5517 )

The notes on pages 75 to 207 form part of these financial statements.

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
ihE=2 FET FET
Non-current assets FREEE
Intangible assets B EE 13 6,243,418 6,343,910
Fixed assets EEEE 14 2,220,731 1,411,670
Construction in progress EETRE 15 1,025,844 581,700
Deposits paid for gold mining BB EERTE SR PR ERE
and exploration rights Fritize 16 571,361 433,649
Deposits paid for fixed assets ETEEMNIRS 17 57,048 54,325
Other deposits Efbire 38,046 9,781
10,156,448 8,835,035
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 19 109,499 90,195
Trade and loans and other JEWBR R R B A K&
receivables, deposits H bR -
and prepayments R MIERRIE 20 469,759 196,103
Pledged bank deposits BIRIFIRITIFK 21 458,340 84,460
Cash and cash equivalents HeNIESEEY 22 522,285 100,193
1,559,883 470,951
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables FE S BR 30 K Eo A FE < R 23 322,063 472,664
Tax payable JER IR 36,466 106,875
Bank and other borrowings RITREME K 24 1,953,500 422,583
Convertible bonds R ES 25 - 123,947
Derivative financial instruments TSR TE 26 35,668 -
2,347,697 1,126,069

FT75EFE 207 Az WiEBAMIEHRE 2 —
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD Cp"
FEREEERERERAT

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
AR

As at 31 December 2013 R=ZE—=F+=-A=+—8H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars JAZ ¥ 51|7R )

2013 2012
—E2—= —ET——F
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
BsE FExT FHTT
Net current liabilities REBAEFE (787,814) (655,118)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBER 9,368,634 8,179,917
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank and other borrowings RITREME R 24 1,654,258 1,294,888
Convertible bonds Al AR E S 25 1,015,839 -
Derivative financial instruments TETsmI A 26 118,539 156,476
Non-current payables JER BN IAE 27 - 447,756
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBAE 29(a) 657,151 675,729
3,445,787 2,574,849
NET ASSETS BEEFE 5,922,847 5,605,068
CAPITAL AND RESERVES R R f#E 30
Share capital A& K 543,841 543,841
Reserves His 5,379,006 5,061,227
TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE RATEEA
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY PE{hRES 45 5,922,847 5,605,068

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on KEZFEN _T—NF=A -+ N \HZE

28 March 2014, WHFAIEE o
Mr. Lam Cham Mr. Zhang Shuguang
ML REXSKE
Director Director
EF EF
The notes on pages 75 to 207 form part of these financial statements. EI5EF07THEZMTABERT B RE 2
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Statement of Financial Position
B EA S 2=

As at 31 December 2013 R=—ZE—=F+_-_A=+—AH
(Expressed in Hong Kong doHars LA%M?'J/T\)

2013 2012
—E—= —ZE——
No:[e HK$’000 HK$ 000
M FHET FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries NNV E 18 5,084,898 4,642,798
Deposit paid for fixed assets mETETEEM NIZS 17 3,162 3,162
T 5,088,080 | - 4,645,960
Currentassets wEEE 0
Amounts due from subsidiaries R ENGIE S 20 392,420 235,454
Other receivables, deposits and HipElWEoE - me Rk
prepayments TEAS FRIE 20 550 619
Pledged bank deposits EEIRIRI TR 21 35,911 15,600
Cash and cash equivalents RENIREEEY 22 6,713 6,906
e 435,594 | 258,579
Current liabilities wEeeE 00|
Amounts due to subsidiaries ANl E NG 23 52,745 42,400
Other payables Hub e IE 23 12,337 17,160
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EME R 24 140,400 -
Convertible bonds AR ES 25 - 123,947
Derivative financial instruments PTEEmMITA 26 35,668 -
e 241,150 | 183,507
" Netcurrentassets k- v-3: - S 194,444 | 75,072
' Total assets less current liabilities mEERAHEE 2800 | 5282504 | . 4,721,032
' Non-current liabilities knmE®E |
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EAME R 24 - 278,121
Convertible bonds nlARRE S 25 1,015,839 -
Derivative financial instruments TSR T A 26 118,539 156,476
S 1,134,378 | 434,597
CNETASSETS aEsE 00| an14s8126| 4,286,435
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B @& 30
Share capital A& R 543,841 543,841
Reserves HiE 3,604,285 3,742,594
TOTALEQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE xAREEA |
T0 OWNERS OF THE COMPANY R4 5 4,148,126 4,286,435
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on &KEEER - Z—WNF=A -+ /\BiH
28 March 2014. W EFATEE M o
Mr. Lam Cham Mr. Zhang Shuguang
M EE REX KL
Director chector
EE

FISEFE07TEZHIBATERER 2

—&btn ©

The notes on pages 75 to 207 form part of these financial statements.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD Cp"
FEREEERERERAT

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HAEREBX

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE =T —=F+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars JAZ ¥ 51|7R )

Convertible

Warrants  bond equity
Share Share Statutory reserve reserve Capital  Exchange Retained Total
capital premium reserves AREE  TERES reserve reserve profits equity
& RBEE  iERE % EEEE  EAEE  EXBE  REEN  EREE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
T TEn TEn Thn TEn Thn Tén T TEn

(note 30() ~ (note 30(d)i) (ote 30(c)v)  (note 30(c)  (hotes25&  (note 30()l)  (note 30(cli)
30(div)
(Fstop)  (BaEdoon) (FE3odnd)  (MESol)  (WosR  (WEE0wm) (R 3o
30

At 1 January 2013 R-Z-zf-f-A 543,841 4,299,250 53,763 1,260 6,877 85,207 158,438 456,352 5,605,068
Changes in equity for 2013 ~ —E-=£2EESE:
Profi for the year EREn - - - - - - - 181,383 181,383
Other comprehensive income FEAMRENE

for the year - - - - - - 97,513 - 97,513
Total comprehensive income FRrEYRSE

for the year - - - - - - 97,513 181,383 278,89
Equity-settled share-based RS 2 RHEH

payments ] - - - - - 3217 - - B2A7
Issue of convertible bonds EAARRES - - - - 2,007 - - - 2207
Redemption of convertiole bonds BB ATk B4 - - - - (6877) - - 5,336 (1,541)
Appropriation of safety BAR2EEES

production fund - - 15,133 - - - - (15,133) -
Utlisation of safety production fund  BEZ 24 EES - - (12,445) - - - - 12,445 -
Appropriation of statutory e

surplus reserve - - 60,154 - - - - (60,154) -
At 31 December 2013 W-8-zf&

TZBZt-H 543,841 4,299,250 116,600 1,250 2,207 123,514 255,951 580,229 5,922,847
The notes on pages 75 to 207 form part of these financial statements. FET75EFE207 B M BAMB®RKZ —
&fn o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FAEREREBX

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE T —=F+=_A=+—HBILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars LA #5517 )

Convertible
Warrants Fair  bond equity
Share Share  Statutory reserve value reserve Capital  Exchange  Retained Total

capital  premium  reserves  RREE  reseve TERRES  reseve  reserve profits equity
RE  BOBE  iERE R LTERE  EEEE  EAER EXRGE  REER ERAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Titn T T T Fitn T Thr Tin Fitn Fitr

(note 30(b))  (note 30(0)()) (note 30(d)iv)  (note 30(c) (note 30(d)(vi)  (notes 25 &  (note 30(0)()  (note 30(cHi)
30
(M sop) (Hisodi) (Hatsom) — (Metao) (Metsoed)  (HEE25R (HEtsoii) (MeEsoli)
30

At 1 January 2012 R=E--%-5-H 416,461 2,932,048 40,695 1,250 (28,592) 12,378 13,170 159,028 11274 3557712
Changes inequity for 20122~ —E-—EVEESEH:
Proft for the year EREN - - - - - - - - M5018 445078
Other comprenensive income EFEMRENG

for the year - - - - 28,592 - - (590) - 28,002
Total comprehensive income FERENGEE

for the year - - - ) - - (o0 445078 473,080
New shares issued for settlement 5% (& 45 RE 3108

of an unsecured payable Bk

fnote 300l (HE300)0) 18992 201,008 - - - - - - - 20000
New shares issued for acouision ~ SLUENER

of subsidiaries (note 30(o)i) R

(3 30()i) 108,388 1,166,258 - - - - - - - 1274546

Equity-settled share-based WS RIER

payments i - - - - - - 2127 - - 72,121
Appropriation of safety BRR2EEES

production fund - - 14,680 - - - - - - 14,680
Transaction costs attributable o Z{THRIEETZHA

issue of new shares - (64) - - - - - - - (64
Redemption of convertible bonds BRIk E% - - - - - (5,501) - - - (5,501)
Utlisation of safety production fund  BEZ 2 4EES - - (1612 - - - - - - (1612)
At 31 December 2012 -

TZB=1-H 543841 4,299,250 53,763 1,250 - 6,877 86,297 158,438 456,352 5,605,068
The notes on pages 75 to 207 form part of these financial statements. ET75EFE 207 Bz M BARMBHREKZ —
B e
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD Cp"
FEREEERERERAT

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= A =
FEEERER
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE =T —=F+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars JAZ ¥ 51|7R )

2013 2012
—E-=F —EF——F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B EE FER FAET
Operating activities KRR
Profit before taxation R A A 330,053 662,319
Adjustments for: FE
— Amortisation of intangible assets - EREAEEH 6(c) 253,343 199,937
— Depreciation and amortisation of - BB ETE R
fixed assets 6(c) 89,393 68,740
— Finance costs - MR AAR 6(a) 334,510 218,872
— Equity-settled share-based payments - LRSS E 2 R B 6(b) 38,217 72,127
— Increase in safety production fund -EMTEEEES - 13,068
— Interest income - FLEMA 5 (2,654) (509)
— Dividend income from -t EeREECREBRA 5
available-for-sale financial asset - (11,685)
— Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary - FHENB ARz WS 5 (5,630) -
— Gain on disposal of fixed assets - PEETEEZ M 5 - (13)
— Gain on disposal of available-for-sale -HEqHEESmEEZKE 5
financial asset - (18,035
— Waiver of other payables - PR EAEFRIA 5 (1,519) -
Changes in working capital: EELSEE
Increase in inventories FEE (19,304) (52,178)
Increase in trade and loans and other FEUSBR 70 B B SR A N E b fE U FR I
receivables, deposits and prepayments B4 RIERIBE N (138,716) (44,754)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and FERTBR 3R R A FE S 3R0B
other payables CRi) /480 (150,417) 164,088
Cash generated from operations RETHEEZERS 727,276 1,271,981
Tax paid ERIE
- PRC income tax paid - BRPEMER (264,442) (271,837)
Net cash generated from RETEEE CESTFHE
operating activities 462,834 1,000,144
The notes on pages 75 to 207 form part of these financial statements. ET75EFE207 B M BAMBHRKZ —

#BD
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
,.vafﬁﬁ/mE%

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE - T —
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars LA #5517 )

E+-A=+—AILER

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B3 FHT FHET
Investing activities RETE
Payment for purchase of fixed assets EEETEEMNK (20,455) (15,919)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets HERBFEEEMSHIE - 32
Payment for construction in progress ERITEMNK (1,253,264) (1,074,895)
Payment for purchase of intangible assets & A& E 3 (66,895) -
Deposits paid for gold mining B R R R
and exploration rights Ffie 4 (98,063) (349,809)
(Increase)/decrease in deposits paid REEEEM RS
for fixed assets gm) /m (2,723) 39,305
Increase in other non-current deposits HiIEmEN RS (28,265) -
Interest received B HFLE 2,654 505
Net cash outflow from acquisitions of R B AR 2 REm L FEE
subsidiaries 33 - (5,357)
Net proceeds from disposal of HEHEESHEREY
available-for-sale financial asset SR IBF 58 - 165,412
Dividend income from available-for-sale AtHESRMEE 2R BIA
financial asset - 11,685
Net cash used in investing activities REZBFTAZESTFE (1,467,011) (1,229,037)
Financing activities REEE
Net proceeds from issuance of REBITABERES
convertible bonds Z S RIBFRE 989,661 -
Proceeds from bank and RIT R EAM B R ATIS KB
other borrowings 3,255,347 1,273,822
Repayment of bank and EERITTREMER
other borrowings (1,585,343) (553,663)
Payment for early redemption of 12 FHE Ol AT AR B A K
convertible bonds (125,000) (100,000
Repayment of non-current payables B IEmEEr A (421,177) (100,000)
Transaction cost for new share issued BETHRID 2 2 HHA - (64)
Increase in pledged bank deposits BRI T T I 0 (373,880) (45,424)
Finance costs paid [SENEZEID%N (320,925) (232,477)
Net cash generated from BMETHELECHSFE
financing activities 1,418,683 242,194
Net increase in cash and ReERBRESEEY
cash equivalents B nFEE 414,506 13,301
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—AZRER
at 1 January ReEEY 99,190 86,962
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXgH X8
changes 8,589 (1,073)
Cash and cash equivalents R+-—B=+—HZzHEEK
at 31 December HeEEY 22 522,285 99,190

The notes on pages 75 to 207 form part of these financial statements.
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD CP"
FEREEERERERAT

Notes to the Financial Statements
B R ER R AE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated AZSHFIIR » B BB FTHEIN)

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Precious Metal Resources Holdings Co., Ltd. (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability. The
address of its registered office and principal place of business are
disclosed in the corporate information section of the annual report.
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are
principally engaged in mining and processing of gold ores and sale
of gold products and providing financing services to customers
under finance lease and factoring arrangements in The People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) during the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). A summary
of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is
set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting year of the Group and the Company. Note
3 provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from the initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting years reflected in these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS $R IR T aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated SASEE SR » Br BAFTHESN)

2.

76

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b)Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2013 comprise the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis, except derivative financial
instruments that are carried at fair value. ltems included in the
financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries in Hong
Kong is Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) and that of its subsidiaries
in Mainland China is Renminbi (“RMB”). For the purposes of
presenting the consolidated financial statements, the Group has
adopted Hong Kong dollars as its presentation currency.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

2.

FTESHBE @
(0 B >

HE_Z—=F+-A=+—H
HFEEZRAVBRRBIEAR
RAINEMBARZHBHRE -

BN ENEHRREERZFE
HEBEDELRKARERE  ENETE
AAFEINEZITESRTA -
AEBEEERZVBHRRAR N
ERCEXBMEEIREBRR
MEE(EER DFE - AR
AINERBEZMB AR 28
EMRBE(ET)  MERH
BEAZHBARNNEERER
ARE(TARE]) - S22 AER
BHMBHREME - AREDKA
BEEREIIRER -

BB A BB BRE LR 2H
B R AEE R E LR
BRASH2AE  BE - WA
S HBEAR YL 2 AN -
SRR T R RR TV
RBEERRSENEBERT
252 HRE - EBERAB
#IHT A B B R 2 R 05
Tk SR E R A R A 2T
B BBERTRANKE
X

ZE M R RR AR AR
e ABBEREAZBITEY
BHEFTHHE - BZFETH
REFT AR 2 IR - M
EEEACRIPACHEZ E i ID)4E
®HEIM - B RERI EX AL
B 1% HARE SR



CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD CP"
FEREEERERERAT

Notes to the Financial Statements
B R ER R AE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated AZSHFIIR » B BB FTHEIN)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESTHBEXRw

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued) (b) IR 2 mBLE A (@)

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have a significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 37.

In preparing the financial statements, the Company’s directors
have considered the future liquidity of the Group. The Group
generated a consolidated net profit attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$181,383,000 for the year ended 31 December
2013, but, as at that date, the Group had net current liabilities
of HK$787,814,000. These conditions indicate the existence of
a material uncertainty which may cast a doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Nevertheless, the
directors are of the opinion that the Group will be able to finance
its future working capital and financial requirements given that:

(i) One of the principal banks of the Group granted three-year
loan facilities with an aggregate amount of approximately
RMB1.5 billion (equivalent to approximately HK$1.9 billion)
to the Group during the year, of which approximately RMB1
billion (equivalent to approximately HK$1.3 billion) has not
been utilised as at 31 December 2013 and up to the date of
approval of these financial statements;

(i) Two of the Company’s substantial shareholders have agreed
to provide financial support as is necessary to enable the
Group to meet its liabilities as they fall due; and
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS $R IR T aE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated SASEE SR » Br BAFTHESN)

FESITEEE @)
(b) A FE 3R 3R 2 R B EZE (1)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.
(b)Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued)

78

(i) Based on a cash flow forecast prepared by the Group’s
management for the twelve months ending 31 December
2014, the Group will be able to generate adequate cash
flows from its continuing operations.

Accordingly, the directors are of the opinion that it is appropriate
to prepare the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013 on a going concern basis. The financial
statements have not reflected any effects of adjustments if the
Group was unable to continue to operate as a going concern.

(c) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses (see note
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R ER R AE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated AZSHFIIR » B BB FTHEIN)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESTEHER @
d)() B8t

(d)(i) Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for the control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition-
date fair values, except that:

— a deferred tax asset or liability arising from the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business
combination and the potential tax effects of temporary
differences and carryforwards of an acquiree that
exist at the acquisition date or arise as a result of the
acquisition are recognised and measured in accordance
with HKAS 12 Income Tax;

— assets or liabilities relating to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 19 Employee Benefits;

— liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated SASEE SR » Br BAFTHESN)

2.

80

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)(i) Business combinations (Continued)

— assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that HKFRS.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or another measurement basis required by
another HKFRS.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated AZSHFIIR » B BB FTHEIN)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESHEE@m
d)(i) RSB

(d)(i) Business combinations (Continued)

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments being made against goodwill or
gain on bargain purchase. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the measurement period (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, or
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e., the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if those interests
were disposed of.
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2.

82

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d)(i) Business combinations (Continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised at
that date.

(d)(ii) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of business less accumulated impairment losses,
if any.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESTHBEXRw

(d)(ii) Goodwill (Continued) (d) (i) BHE @)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently whenever there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. If some or all of the goodwill allocated to a cash-
generating unit was acquired in a business combination
during the current annual period, that unit shall be tested
for impairment before the end of the current annual period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit on a pro rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss in the consolidated
income statement. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On the disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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2.

84

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d)(iii) Acquisition of assets through acquisition of subsidiaries

Where acquisition of a group of assets through acquisition
of subsidiaries does not constitute a business, identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed will be identified
and recognised individually. The cost of the Group shall be
allocated to the individual identifiable assets and liabilities on
the basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase.
The accounting policies in measuring these assets and
liabilities subsequent to the initial recognition are set out in
the respective notes. Such transactions do not give rise to
goodwill or gain on bargain purchase.

(e) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(i)

(ii)

Mining rights

Mining rights with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
loss (see note 2())(ii)). The mining rights are amortised over
the estimated useful lives of the mines, in accordance with
the production plans of the mines concerned, by using the
unit of production method based on the actual production
volume over the estimated total proved and probable
reserves of the gold mines.

Exploration rights and assets

Exploration rights and assets are stated at cost less any
impairment losses. Exploration rights and assets include
the cost of acquiring exploration rights, topographical
and geological surveys, exploratory drilling, sampling
and trenching and activities in relation to commercial and
technical feasibility studies.

Exploration and evaluation costs include expenditure
incurred to secure further mineralisation in existing ore
bodies as well as in new areas of interest. Expenditure
incurred prior to accruing legal rights to explore an area is
written off as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R ER R AE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated AZSHFIIR » B BB FTHEIN)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

(i) Exploration rights and assets (Continued)

When it can be reasonably ascertained that an exploration
property is capable of commercial production, exploration
and evaluation costs capitalised are transferred to either
mining structures or mining rights and depreciated/
amortised by the unit of production method based on the
proved and probable mineral reserves. Costs incurred
for exploration which can be directly attributable to the
development of mining structures are transferred to mining
structures when the exploration reaches the stage of
commercial production. All other costs will be transferred to
mining rights. Exploration rights and assets are written off to
profit or loss if the exploration property is abandoned.

(f) Fixed assets

Fixed assets, other than construction in progress, are stated in
the statement of financial position at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses (see note 2(j)(ii).

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.

Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.
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2.

86

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(f) Fixed assets (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as interests in leasehold land
held for own use under operating leases and included in fixed
assets in the consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

The cost of self-constructed items of fixed assets includes
the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial estimate, where
relevant, of the cost of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowings costs (see
note 2(x)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of fixed assets are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
fixed assets, other than mining structures, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years after the
date of completion.

— leasehold land classified as held for finance lease is
depreciated over the unexpired term of lease.

— Machinery and equipment 5-10years
— Motor vehicles 4 - 8 years
—  Office equipment, fixtures and fittings 3 -5 years
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CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD CP"
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R ER R AE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated AZSHFIIR » B BB FTHEIN)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESHEE@m

(f) Fixed assets (Continued) (f BIEEE (@)

Depreciation of mining structures is provided to write off the cost
of the mining structures. The mining structures are depreciated
over the estimated useful lives of the mines, in accordance with
the production plans of the mines concerned, by using the unit
of production method based on the actual production volume
over the estimated total proved and probable reserves of the
gold mines.

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have different useful lives,
the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.

(g) Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, mining structures
and plant and equipment in the course of construction for
production or for its own use purposes. Construction in
progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss (see
note 2(j)(ii)). Cost comprises construction expenditure and other
direct costs attributable to such projects, if the amount of capital
expenditures and the time involved to complete the construction
are significant. Construction in progress is classified to the
appropriate category of fixed assets when completed and ready
for its intended use.

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress until it is substantially complete and ready for its
intended use.

(h) Available-for-sale financial asset

Available-for-sale equity securities are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs. At the end of each reporting
period, the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in fair value reserve. Dividend
income from these investments is recognised in profit or loss,
where these investments are interest-bearing, interest calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss.
When these investments are derecognised, the cumulative gain
or loss recognised in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea) . FEETBERw
(i) Leases (i) HE
(a) The Group as leasee (a) XEBEERABEA
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of WMAKEHEB —BLHERE
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines HEZRBARBEEEERF
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific FRAREHENRER —£—&
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for BNRLHR - ZR DK
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination BERFGIRBEEHEMR A/
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the BE—IEMEE - ZERET)
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement ERZLHECEBRRE 2GE
takes the legal form of a lease. BEfmEH - MEmRZLHR

BRIVAREAZHE -

() Classification of assets leased to the Group () HEHAXERZ EE
SR
Assets held by the Group under leases which transfer AEBREHEERE B
to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of HArB#E 2 8RE0 Rk
ownership are classified as being held under finance REHRCEERER &
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially ENS RREREHEER
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group B WEEZEESEEBX
are classified as operating leases, with the following HinEkeRkEHREREE
exceptions: ZHEEHY RIKEEHEE -
T B IEBR S -

- land held for own use under an operating lease, the - BELEHERBE
fair value of which cannot be measured separately B Az LR HEER
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at 1R - E AT ERE
the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being Bt FBFZATF
held under a finance lease, unless the building is ELRAFER - Bl
also clearly held under an operating lease. For these MEHERA 2N
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that RIE - BTN
the lease was first entered into by the Group, or el ERE B
taken over from the previous lessee. Sho BLUETE - %M

EABRBEARK
EEEREIIEEL
g g E—#&MEA
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FESFTBER @
() HE @)
(a) REBEEREABENA (#)
(i) fﬁﬁ%ﬂfé\’ﬁfgﬁéﬁz

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.
(i) Leases (Continued)
(a) The Group as leasee (Continued)

(i) Assets acquired under finance leases

(i)

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments of such assets are included
in fixed assets and the corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which
write off the cost of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 2(f). Impairment losses are accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policy as set out
in note 2(j)(ii). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over the period of
the leases so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each reporting period.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged as expenses in
the reporting period in which they are incurred.
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FESTHER @
(i) HE @
(b) XEEERHHEA

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.
(i) Leases (Continued)

(b) The Group as lessor

90

A sale and leaseback transaction involves the sale of an
asset and the leasing back of the same asset. The lease
payment and the sale price are usually interdependent
because they are negotiated as a package. The accounting
treatment of a sale and leaseback transaction depends
upon the type of lease involved. If the leaseback is a finance
lease, the transaction is a means whereby the lessor
provides finance to the lessee, with the asset as security.

When the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount
representing the minimum lease payment receivables and
initial direct costs is included in the consolidated statement
of financial position as trade and loans receivables. Any
unguaranteed residual value is also recognised at the
inception of the lease. The difference between the sum of
the minimum lease payment receivables, initial direct costs,
the unguaranteed residual value and their present value is
recognised as unearned finance income. Unearned finance
income is recognised over the period of the lease using the
effective interest rate method.
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hY A Parax
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) . FESFTHEX @
(i) Impairment of assets () EERIE
() Impairment of investments in equity securities, trade and () RAZSKRE - BIKERA
loans and other receivables B R A ERFER
=]
Investments in equity securities and trade and loans and LA X 7S 5 3 55 X AR 51) BR 3805
other receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost RAHEHERAZR ZBRA
or are classified as available-for-sale equity securities are BERERERERRER
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine REMERRIBES ERE
whether there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective HR S R ERE URTE R
evidence of impairment includes observable data that BERBEZEEERE - BE
comes to the attention of the Group about one or more of CEEBBPEEASEIE
the following loss events: BEBNAT - ZIBEEE
Sz AT BRHE
- significant financial difficulty of the debtor; - EBALRRERMERE
2
— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency - ERAEYH  MEXEE
in interest or principal payments; XAFMESAE
- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter - EFARRELIREERE
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; B EAR
- significant changes in the technological, market, - Bt W5 KBEIEE
economic or legal environment that have an adverse RREZEREHHEBA
effect on the debtor; and ERATNEE &
- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an - BRAIEKEZAFEH
investment in an equity instrument below its cost. MAESREATE - B2
BRARIATR o
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FEESHHE @
(i) BERE @)

() Impairment of investments in equity securities, trade and () BREFFRE - BILER
loans and other receivables (Continued) B R E B E

18 (&)
EEMZEEEFE  RIU
THRET REREMRE
518 -

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

92

For trade and loans receivables and other current
receivables and other financial assets carried at
amortised cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition
of these assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively where
these financial assets carried at amortised cost share
similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which
are assessed for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss
shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESTEHER @
() EERE @
() BRIBHERE - ERIEE

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities, trade and

loans and other receivables (Continued)

— For available-for-sale equity securities which are stated
at fair value, when a decline in the fair value has been
recognised in other comprehensive income and there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, the
cumulative loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income shall be reclassified from equity
to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment even
though the financial asset has not been derecognised.
The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised in
profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation)
and current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect
of available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in
the fair value of such assets is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in
respect of trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote. In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful
debts are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade debtors
directly and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuec) . FEETEHRmw
(i) Impairment of assets (Continued) () EEBE @)
(i) Impairment of other assets (i) EtEERE
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed AEEgET RS HHAE
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications REFEN ALK 2 &
that the following assets may be impaired or an impairment B URETINEEAELH
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have BRENR - HEAEER
decreased: ZREEBEEESETHEEFR
HELRD
- intangible assets; BmEE
- fixed assets and construction in progress; EEEEREELRE

94

— deposits paid for gold mining and exploration rights and
fixed assets;

— other non-current deposits; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement
of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit).
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in
the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying amount of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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2.

96

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34,
Interim Financial Reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment testing, recognition and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the financial year
(see notes 2(j)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect
of goodwill and available-for-sale equity securities carried
at cost are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the
case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed only at the
end of the financial year to which the interim period relates.
Consequently, if the fair value of an available-for-sale equity
security increases in the remainder of the annual period, or
in any other period subsequently, the increase is recognised
in other comprehensive income and not profit or loss.

(k) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESIEE @
K FE &)

(k) Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount
of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which
the reversal occurs.

(I) Trade and loans and other receivables

Trade and loans and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(j)(i)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

(m)Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

(n) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.
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2.

98

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(o) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows.

(p) Convertible bonds

(i) Convertible bonds that contain an equity component

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value
of consideration that would be received at that time do not
vary, are accounted for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability component and an equity
component.

At initial recognition, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is measured as the present value of
the future interest and principal payments, discounted at
the market rate of interest applicable at the time of initial
recognition to similar liabilities that do not have a conversion
option. Any excess of proceeds over the amount initially
recognised as the liabilities component is recognised as
the equity component. Transaction costs that relate to the
issue of a convertible financial instrument are allocated
to the liability and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of proceeds.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated AZSHFIIR » B BB FTHEIN)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(p) Convertible bonds (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Convertible bonds that contain an equity component
(Continued)

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised
cost. The interest expense recognised in profit or loss on
the liability component is calculated using the effective
interest method. The equity component is recognised in the
convertible bond equity reserve until either the convertible
bond is converted or redeemed.

If the bond is converted, the convertible bond equity reserve,
together with the carrying amount of the liability component
at the time of conversion, is transferred to share capital and
share premium as consideration for the share issued. If the
bond is redeemed, the capital reserve is released directly to
retained profits.

Other convertible bonds

Convertible bonds which do not contain an equity
component are accounted for as follows:

At initial recognition, the derivative component of the
convertible bonds is measured at fair value and presented
as part of derivative financial instruments. Any excess
of proceeds over the amount initially recognised as
the derivative component is recognised as the liability
component. Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and derivative
components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.
The portion of the transaction costs relating to the liability
component is recognised initially as part of the liability. The
portion relating to the derivative component is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The derivative component is subsequently remeasured. The
liability component is subsequently carried at amortised
cost. The interest expense recognised in profit or loss on the
liability component is calculated using the effective interest
method.
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2.

100

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(p) Convertible bonds (Continued)

(i) Other convertible bonds (Continued)

If the bond is converted, the carrying amounts of the
derivative and liability components are transferred to share
capital and share premium as consideration for the shares
issued. If the bond is redeemed, any difference between the
amount paid and the carrying amounts of both components
is recognised in profit or loss.

(q) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value on the date of grant and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The gain or
loss on remeasurement to the fair value of derivative financial
instruments is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(r) Warrants

Warrants issued by the Company that will be settled by
other than a fixed amount of cash for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is a derivative financial
instrument. Warrants classified as a derivative financial
instrument are recognised in accordance with accounting policy
in note (2)(q) above.

Warrants issued by the Company that will be settled by a fixed
amount of cash for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments are equity instruments. The net proceeds received
from the issue of warrants are recognised in equity (warrant
reserve). The warrant reserve will be transferred to share capital
and share premium accounts upon the exercise of the warrants.
When the warrants are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in the warrant reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(s) Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the Black-Scholes Option
Pricing Model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total estimated
fair value of the options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the options will vest.
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2.

102

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(s) Employee benefits (Continued)
(i) Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year under
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of
share options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised
in the capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits
and when it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

(t) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESTEHER @

() Income tax (Continued) (t) FrE %t (@)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary differences or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.
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FESTTEER @)
(t) FrE8 (@)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.

(t) Income tax (Continued)

104

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future or, in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) . FESFTHEX @
(t) Income tax (Continued) (t) T (@)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements NEAFEIE R IR AE 68 R H# B) 58
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not g5V~ WERTFEE - A
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, HMELERIAEE R GERRDA]
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the AR EEEEEITHEEARER
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to HEERIEAPMRIBEE L H
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the HEATHEERGEZBERT - A
following additional conditions are met: AI LA Rl H A R AR AE T I8 &
& :

() inthe case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company () NEARMIBEEMAE  AQ

or the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to RIS AR E SR FEEE

realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or HE - KARERZEEMN

BEZAE =

(i) inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate (iy EERBEBEEMAE : SL
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on BEMBGBEVERR BB
either: MR A T ER —BREK 2

FTiSHiBE R

- the same taxable entity; or - FE—EHREE: X

- different taxable entities which, in each future period - TRZEBER SLE
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities BHEERRE@EEHE
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered, REBELEHIBEEETEE
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the B RFIRER B & ER]
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle LAY Bl 2 BRI A - FEE
simultaneously. BN AR HAT IH & AN

BEARHEAE - XA
RBRZEENBEZE
f&
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea) . FESTBR@w
(u)Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent (u) 3 EBBER  BENEA
liabilities =N
() Financial guarantees issued (i) 22 HEBEER

106

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e., the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for
a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value
of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. The fair value of financial
guarantees issued at the time of issuance is determined
by reference to fees charged in an arm’s length transaction
for similar services, when such information is obtainable,
or is otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged by
lenders when the guarantee is made available with the
estimated rates that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable estimates
of such information can be made. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition
of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. In
addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with note
2(u)(iii) if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee,
and (i) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee, i.e., the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESTHEXw
(u)Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent (u) 38 BB REIELR ~ BEANZA
liabilities (Continued) = {C )
(i) Contingent liabilities assumed in business combinations (il EHEEHPRIEZEA
=F

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
which are present obligations at the date of acquisition
are initially recognised at fair value, provided the fair value
can be reliably measured. After their initial recognition at
fair value, such contingent liabilities are recognised at the
higher of the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation where appropriate, and the amount that would
be determined in accordance with note 2(u)(iii). Contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination that cannot
be reliably fair valued or were not present obligations at the
date of acquisition are disclosed in accordance with note
2(u)(iii).

(iii) Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

EBAHRAAERBKER
HZERMEENRIABED
BIEAFEER  AREZ
NFERERAI SEEEE - R
PHARATFEE  ZZEFHR
BERVPHEREERER
TS (e @) RIZRIH T
QuiiNFrEESB(AEReE
) MHER S PHHET
EEEEAN EFE A FE
FRKEEBIIERATE T
ZBARBE - BRI EE 2(u)ii)
VEH# R -

(iii) Ht R AEE

IMRAEBEHIAAFEARD
BE 2B AEERYETE
2% EAmMESRSEHEA
REM a2 BRINRIATETT
BfE Al AER RS2 (A
A AREE 2K E
FBRE N E 2 A BHERETIE
B wWREEERESE
K- RRETEEREAH
S 2 BERH R
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) . FEETEHRmw

(u)Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent (u) 3 EBBER  BENEA
liabilities (Continued) BE @

(i) E A ER A EE (&)

(iii) Other provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

108

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Provisions for the Group’s obligations for land rehabilitation
are based on estimates of required expenditure at the mines
in accordance with the PRC rules and regulations. The
Group estimates its liabilities for final rehabilitation and mine
closure based upon detailed calculations of the amount and
timing of the future cash expenditure to perform the required
work. Spending estimates are escalated for inflation, then
discounted at a discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability such that the amount of provision
reflects the present value of the expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

(i)

(i)

Sale of gold products

Revenue is recognised when the title to the goods and
the related risks and rewards of ownership are passed
to customers, the Group will not execute the right of
supervision and control over the goods, either the proceeds
are received or entitlement to proceeds is evidenced, and
the cost of sale of goods can be estimated reliably. Revenue
excludes value added tax and is after deduction of any
trade discounts and returns.

Finance lease income

Finance lease income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the net investment of finance lease
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the net investment of finance lease.

(iii) Factoring income

Handling fee income from factoring service is recognised
when the relevant services have been rendered.

(iv) Dividends

(v)

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been
established.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

FESTEE @
(v) IR ATERR

WAZRB WS ERREZ AFE
ETE o MREEMRETREER
AEE - MBPAFKAR(ERA)
XEetr] EETER - FERE
THIEEIE B RRERIA

() HEELEM

WAEEFPEREMZAE
1 DA B AR A L B e [ R s
AEETBITEEMIER
R R B WETF
REAHCBEMFHRIBEZR
BN UAREEEmZK
7N BE $A A] 52 b T DA M AT B R
R WATBIFZER - I
B EAERT RS -

(i) MEHEWKA
BMEHEWA  RETEE
NEBENEEZIZBMEEEDN
REFEATR AR FH
HAR =k B A2 B (0@ ) A
AAEARKEBERESERE
BEHEREFENREF
B2 BERHRAER -

(iii) FREERA
REBBERAEFEBRA
R ARRE RS B RE R o

(iv) IRE
LTHREZBEBMARKER
AT AR 1 B 41 7E 69 1 A U
BB T IARERR

(v) FIEWA
Tl B A B BE A B R B B R
KKETE o
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2.

110

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
that are stated at fair value are translated using foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On the disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong (i.e., a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in an operation outside
Hong Kong, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes an operation outside Hong Kong, or
a partial disposal of an interest in an associate that includes
an operation outside Hong Kong of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

(x) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred, except to the extent that they are
capitalised as being directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale.

2.
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hY 2 Parax
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESTHEXw
(x) Borrowing costs (Continued) () E XA (40)
The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a BREBREEXRNA—HH2E
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset HEAR EEEEEARY - EX
is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and RAEEREEERARTERE
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended SEHEFT M BB T EEITH
use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs MRABERL  EHEEREE
is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities TABTERENIHEMNWAZR
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or REM D TIEFR IESK TR - B3
sale are interrupted or complete. RAESEELFEILERL -
(y) Related parties (V)BEEA L
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is @ WBIATAL  BIZZALE
related to the Group if that person: AT ZEHREREERRA
JE
() has control or joint control over the Group; () ¥EHISKHERZEGASE
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HAEBEERTEN
%
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the (i) AASEEIANEER QT
Group or the Group’s parent. MNEEEREKE -
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (o) MTFE TIEM G BNE
conditions applies: SE RSB FRE
() The entity and the Group are members of the same () ZEBEASEBR %
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and BB (BIEEAF -

fellow subsidiary is related to the others). npEEPNINSEES =N
RULFEERBE) -

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other (iy —FAEBARS BB
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a ERElReaErE(EHS
group of which the other entity is a member). —BERRAKERFIZE

HTRE AT BEAT
LAELE) -

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. (i) MEEBHIRRA-F=7H
WEEhE-
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v) Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is @ member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(z) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the Company’s
directors, i.e., the chief operating decision-maker, for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.
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BBRZ2E

RAFE - AEESREFURA
ATHEESMASMRMESE
WM EERZF ] MR BRI FBR
BRE LR o

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

In the current year, the Group has where applicable applied the
following new and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA which
are or have become effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2009 — 2011 Cycle BB RE R ZZTNE
(BETA) E-T——F
BERFELE
HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets BT REER e —HH
and Financial Liabilities F75 (BFTF) TREER
RAR
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements R BEEE ZeMBRE
£10%
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities Bl BREREMERS
£12% s
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and Consolidated Financial Statements, BAM B REER GEMBRE
HKFRS 12 (Amendments) Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of F105% - ARG HEZHER
Interests in Other Entities: BRERNZ1RR REREAM
Transition Guidance BB RE RS BRMER
F12% (BFIX) BERES
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement BT RE R ATEE
£135
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Presentation of Financial Statements — BAeER Eiby s
Presentation of ltems of F15% (BIIX) 25— At
Other Comprehensive Income 2EMEEE
225

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine

Except as described below, the application of the new and revised
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the current or

prior years.

BEGERE 195 REREH
(ZF——F&E:])

BAEERE 275 BUBBRE
(ZZ—FL&153])

BB (BBMBRE BABSEE
ZEZE89) REER 2 215K
—REF205% AR

BRIATIREE SN REFEERAAT
RGBT EEYHREER AL EY
AEBEEMABEFEZHEANH
BREBABATE -
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3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27, Consolidated
and separate financial statements relating to the preparation of
consolidated financial statements and HK-SIC 12, Consolidation
— Special purpose entities. It introduces a single control model to
determine whether an investee should be consolidated, by focusing
on whether the entity has power over the investee, exposure or
rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and

the ability to use its power to affect the amount of those returns.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group has changed
its accounting policy with respect to determining whether it has
control over an investee. The adoption does not change any of
the control conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its

involvement with other entities as at 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual HKFRSs with
a single source of fair value measurement guidance. HKFRS 13
also contains extensive disclosure requirements about fair value
measurements for both financial instruments and non-financial
instruments. The adoption of HKFRS 13 does not have any material
impact on the fair value measurements of the Group’s assets and

liabilities.
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3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. BIBERZEZEm
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements EBEITERE 15 (E5]A)
— Presentation of items of other comprehensive income [z 22y — EME2M

W=EE 2275 ]
The amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to present separately BEGEERIE 1R (BFTARN) HE -
the items of other comprehensive income that would be reclassified ERFEeETHRENBAT  H8EA
to profit or loss in the future if certain conditions are met separately BaREREBEET P BARERNHE
from those that would never be reclassified to profit or loss. The tEEKRIER EK T EENHDE
Group’s presentation of other comprehensive income in the AREZNEMEZAKZEE " RE
consolidated statement of comprehensive income has been Ale At AEBEKRELELE
modified accordingly. PHKHREINEMEEKEIER

A e
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION L WaEKkoRBESR
(a) Revenue (a) W z=
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents sales Wb AEE 2 %5 - HER
value of gold products and other by-products to customers (net mMEFPFHERSERNMAMIAIE
of value added tax, returns and discounts) and finance lease mZSHEBEOREER - RER
and factoring income. The revenue during the year is analysed ) kmEHERREEBK
as follows: A FRREDTOT -
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Sale of HE
— Gold products -E=EEM 1,483,501 1,582,907
— Other by-products - EEE M 35,304 43,116
Revenue from the SREAREBFBA
Gold Mining Operation 1,518,805 1,626,023
Finance lease and AEAE RREEA
factoring income 43,604 _
1,562,409 1,626,023
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) b W R DIBER @)
(b) Segment Information (b) D EE R

The Group is principally engaged in mining and processing
of gold ores and sales of gold products (the “Gold Mining
Operation”) and providing financing services to customers under
finance lease and factoring arrangements (the “Other Operation”)
in the PRC. The revenue, results and assets of the Gold Mining
Operation were more than 90% of the Group’s revenue, results
and assets during the year. Accordingly, no business segment
analysis is presented.

The Group’s revenue and results from operations mainly
derived from activities in the PRC and its principal assets were
located in the PRC during the year. Accordingly, no analysis by
geographical information is provided.

Revenues from customers contributing 10% or more of the total

AEBTERTERESER
R-mMIk=EZEMBEE(2
BRREH DK RAEPREH
BMEHEMRERERE([H
MwEHLD c RFR - AREEEE
REEH 2B - XEREENR
AEBEz W RENEEBRB
90% - Wt - WE|EFIEHK D H
DT

RER > AEBEZ WS MEEE
BMEIBEXRETEZES  MEE
REEMNPTE - Fit - WERE
iR E RO o

REBRMAEEBIA 10% 3K A

revenue of the Group are as follows: E2BPZWAT
2013 2012
—_E-= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&TT
Customer A =S 341,751 357,413
Customer B BFE L 263,932 -
Customer C Z25RH 254,669 -
Customer D 2ET - 549,769
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5. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET GAIN b, H b A K H it i 5= F
2013 2012
—E—-=fF —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Other revenue Hr A
Total interest income on financial assets WIEEBIER R A TEYER
not at fair value through profit or loss TREEZFBWMALE
— Bank interest income - HRITHIEHRA 2,654 505
Dividend income from available-for-sale AHESREEZREKA
financial asset - 11,685
Sundry incomes IR 4,582 8,132
Walver of other payables BEREM R IR 1,519 -
8,755 20,322
Other net gain Hto 25 7558
Exchange (loss)/gain, net EH (&E) haFE (4,240) 59
Gain on deregistration B AR 2 W
of a subsidiary (note 18(d)) (BE18(d)) 5,630 -
Gain on disposal of fixed assets HEEE & E R - 13
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEeETHEESmEE s
financial asset - 18,035
1,390 18,107
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6. PBRBIANZEF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): B AT R B2 kR, (BGEA) To%
15 :
2013 2012
—E-=f§ —FT-CF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT T
(a) Finance costs: (a)  BARERA
Interest on bank and ARNDENTHEERZRIT
other borrowings wholly REMER 2 FIE
repayable within five years 259,677 255,828
Interest on convertible bonds AR ESFIE
(notes 25(a) & (b)) (B3t 25() K2 (b)) 81,538 13,307
Interest on unsecured payables R ROAR S 10,872 8,598
Transaction costs RHKAK - 10,607
Total interest expenses on I BERIEATETIR
financial liabilities not at fair ZERABZFIRR R
value through profit or loss 352,087 288,340
Less: Interest capitalised into B RERIRRARERE
construction in progress and RERRBRRER (S
deposits paid for proposed acquisitions REAEZFE
of gold mining and exploration rights (FE15(0) K 16(b))
(notes 15(c) & 16(0) (35,705 (108,813
316,382 179,527
Loss on early settlement of REERRTERZER
a bank loan (note 24(a)) (Fizt24(a)) 32,554 -
Loss on early settlement of REEREERENTE
an unsecured payable BB - 15,236
Gain on early redemption of REEmTRRESNRE
convertible bonds (note 25(a)) (Ff15£ 25(a)) (3,015) (7,496)
Fair value (gain)/loss of TEeRIARTE
derivative financial instruments (note 26) (W) /B4 (K 26) (11,411) 31,605
334,510 218,872
(b)  Staff costs [including directors remuneration) b) EERK(EEEEHS)
Salaries, wages and other benefits #% - TRRAMER 97,975 75,694
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes RN EIHR 8,193 3,053
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses NREEE  RIDERS HER 38,217 72,127
144,385 150,874
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6. BRBLADZF (80
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting) BrELADE M E R (FEA) THI&
(Continued): T (&)
2013 2012
“B-=F _2Cf
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TAT
(c)  Other items () HtEE
Amortisation of intangible assets B AERH 253,343 199,937
Auditor’s remuneration ZEMME
~ audit service - Bt iR 2,500 2,500
— non-audit service - FEARE 830 750
Cost of inventories sold under the Gold CRRARERT
Mining Operation (note (i) EMFE A () 686,785 586,698
Cost of borrowings under the Other Operation HEB T ZEHAKR
included in cost of sales (FIABERRE) 18,464 -
Depreciation and amortisation of fixed assets BEEENEREH 89,393 68,740
Operating lease charges in respect of BHNTREZREREER
~ land and buildings - THREEY 14,609 8,238
- machinery and equipment - BELEE 39 21

Note: BaE -

() Cost of inventories sold under the Gold Mining Operation includes () 2D ERREBTFEXNABE
HK$380,503,000 (2012: HK$292,813,000) relating to staff costs, 380,503,000 7T( = & — = F:
depreciation and amortisation expenses and operating lease charges, 292,813,000 7T ) * B B E B X
which amounts are also included in the respective total amounts AERBHASARKEHES
disclosed separately above for each of these types of expenses. A Z52BNTETALXHSER

X MBREZ SRESEA -
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7. INCOME TAX 7. FiE%H
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents: @ e ERRMRCBIER
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FAET
PRC income tax R EIFTSEL
— Current tax — REAFRIE 191,132 246,676
— (Over)/under-provision - R F(BERE)
in prior years BETE (3,338) 1,693
187,794 248,369
Deferred tax (note 29(a)) FERETE (M 5E 29(a)) (39,124) (31,128)
Total income tax expense SRR 4a%a 148,670 217,241

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at

(b) WEIR R S M & A A 4% E A A X

applicable tax rates: ATRCHER
2013 2012
—E-=E “E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FhEx FEL
Profit before taxation B AR 330,053 662,319
Notional tax on profit before taxation, RREEENE AR CERRE
calculated at the rates applicable STERBAEN AERE
to the tax jurisdiction concerned 100,469 183,065
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TAMBS 2 BB ?ﬁ% 67,691 56,777
Tax effect of non-taxable income FERBMA BB E w 2 (5,396) (17,817)
Tax effect of unrecognised RERRZE L HESE
timing differences (8,132 (2,792)
(Over)/under-provision in prior years e (RRRE) /BETR (3,338) 1,693
Tax effect of utiisation of previously 5 ﬂ&?%ﬁﬁﬁwwﬁ gl
unrecognised tax losses JHIBERE (3,882) (4,436)
Tax effect of unused tax losses TFRER Zﬂlﬁwﬁ BB
not recognised JHIEYE 1,258 751
148,670 217,241
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1.

122

INCOME TAX (continued)

(c) The provision for PRC income tax is calculated on the
assessable profit of the Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in
the PRC at 25% during the years ended 31 December 2013
and 2012, except for two subsidiaries which are subject to an
income tax rate of 15% and were incorporated in the PRC by
the Group during the year.

(d) No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group did not have any assessable profit subject to Hong Kong
profits tax during the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2012.

(e) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is exempted from any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

1.

8% )

) PEIFFGEHBEDRBEAREER
FREMK B RARRER
—E-=FRZF-—=ZF+ZH
=+t —HLEFERZERB R
B25%:TE - MR FABRAEE
R BEE AR S 2 A P B A &)
BIRFT SRR 15% SRR AN ©

O BHRAEBREZE-_T—ZFK
—E-—F+-A=+—HItF
ERYETMBHNEBFEH
ZERBHEA WA ERBTEF
SRIEL B -

RENSHERRBRELES
TEBEZES D ZHRAURR
7] NEE BRI 2B
EMEBRELEFEEN
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’ ’ /=
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS 8. EERTHEZMS
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments disclosed pursuant to BREBEEBRTEHIE 161 ERBECE
section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: ERITHARMENT
Salaries, Equity-
allowances Retirement settled
Directors’ and benefits scheme share-based 2013
fees inkind contributions  Sub-total payment Total
DY
geoRE  BAGHE GEZRH —-B-=F
EZhe RENAR it Mt EREHE H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TER
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Lam Cham ML - 3,500 15 3,515 4,310 7,825
Mr. Zhang Shuguang (note a) RN (MzEa) - 3,500 15 3,515 4,310 7,825
Mr. Zhang Liwei (note b) FNBEE (M) - 3,500 15 3,515 - 3,515
Mr. Dai Xiaobing N EEAE - 3,500 15 3,515 4,310 7,825
Mr. Chang Yim Yang RERLE - 3,500 15 3,515 4,310 7,825
Mr. Deng Guoli HERLE - 3,500 15 3,515 4,310 7,825
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Professor Wong Lung Tak, Patrick ~ EEEHK 218 - - 218 418 636
Mr, Chan Kin Sang Bk 218 - - 218 418 636
Professor Xiao Rong Ge EELEE b 218 - - 218 418 636
Total Bt 654 21,000 90 21,744 22,804 44,548
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8.

124

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE"S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

8. EERTHEAZME @

Salaries, Equity-
allowances  Retirement settled
Directors’  and benefits scheme share-based 2012
fees inkind  contributions Sub-total payment Total
SARRE
o2 RIGHE Egkh —ET--fF
20 REMIE % PG BRSO @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Lam Cham WExE - 3,500 14 3,514 4522 8,036
Mr. Zhang Shuguang (note a) REXEE (Ha) - 3,500 14 3,514 4522 8,036
Mr. Zhang Liwel (note b) RN E (HiEb) - 3,500 14 3,514 - 3,514
Mr. Dai Xiaobing g - 3,500 14 3,514 4522 8,036
Mr. Chang Yim Yang REREE - 3,500 14 3,514 4,522 8,036
Mr. Deng Guoli HEM x4 - 3,500 10 3,510 4,522 8,032
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Wang John Peter Ben (note ) TEERE (M) 192 - - 192 678 870
Independent non-executive directors BiEHTES
Professor Wong Lung Tak, Patrick ~ EEEHR 192 - - 192 678 870
Mr. Chan Kin Sang PRiE4 %4 192 - - 192 678 870
Professor Xiao Rong Ge EES 67 192 - - 192 678 870
Total it 768 21,000 80 21,848 25,322 47,170

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, no
emoluments were paid or payable to the Company’s directors
or chief executive or any of the five highest paid individuals set
out in note 9 below as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Company or as compensation for loss of office. There was no
arrangement under which any directors or chief executive waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments during both years.

BEZE—=Fk=-F—=-F+=
A=+—BIEFE  ARRLER
EENITRABH I T XM 2
R AN EEME A BN
ERIBNE 1E /B IAR R R S MMAR
NEF R EABEBEE - ©
MEFERNLE LM EETRITEHAE
HMELXREREEAMNES 2 L5 -
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (continie) 8. EERITHATME @

Notes: BRE -
(a) The chief executive officer of the Company. (a) AR BITHEAERE,
(o) Appointed on 1 January 2012. o) RZE—ZF—A—RHEZE-
(c) Resigned on 31 December 2012. () RZE—ZF+ZA=+—H&F-
9. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9. BReMEAL
During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, the five REBEE_ZTE-—=FK-_T—-—=F
individuals with the highest emoluments were directors whose TZA=+—RLEFE AfuFm
emoluments are disclosed in note 8. MeATRES BHEIHMEFE
BRI 8 HEE o
10. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 10. KR B)HEE AELEF
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company KRrEEANELEGESEMNES -
includes a loss of HK$177,192,000 (2012: HK$135,439,000) which —ESFEA177,192,0008 L (=F
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company — 4 : 135,439,000 1) Z K518
during the year (note 30(a)). ERARBFARNT B RKEE (M
#£30()) °
11. DIVIDEND 1. RE
The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for EETEBEREBE_T—=FK=
the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, T——F+ZA=+—HLEFEK
REMRKE ©
12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. SRER
(a) Basic earnings per share (QBREREF
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit EREXRBRTIBREARARGHES
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$181,383,000 A FE{RE 51 181,383,000 70 (=
(2012: HK$445,078,000) and on the weighted average number T — 4 : 445,078,000 7T ) JA
of 4,350,727,000 (2012: 3,647,780,000) ordinary shares in MREARDETE B Z INEF
issue during the year. ¥ 804,350,727,000 K (= E — =

F 1 3,647,780,000 %) FT & °
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 12. BRER @)
(a) Basic earnings per share (Continued) QBREREF @)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares: TR 2 DRI E -
2013 2012
Weighted Weighted
average average
number of number of
ordinary ordinary
shares shares
—E-=fF —E——F
EERZ E3el
MEFHH INHEF 8
’000 ‘000
T8 T
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—BzBE#TLER 4,350,727 3,331,687
Effect of issue of new shares Fh S A AR A B
for settlement of an unsecured BIIHRN T E
payable (note 30(b)(i)) (FF7E30(b)(0)) - 133,669
Effect of issue of new shares for FHURBBHT B A R B TR R D
acquisition of subsidiaries 2 572 (FI5E 30(0)(ii))
(note 30(b)(i) - 182,424
Weighted average number of Nt A=t—BZL@ERK
ordinary shares at 31 December 2 D8 4,350,727 3,647,780
(b) Diluted earnings per share b)FREERF
During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, the HE-_ZT—=FKk-_FT—=F
Company’s convertible bonds, warrants and share options had +—A=+—HIEFEE  ARQF
anti-dilutive effect because their conversion/exercise prices were ZABRRES  RRERRBR
above the weighted average market prices of the Company’s BHUAEBRBEXR  BREH
shares. Therefore, the diluted earnings per share is the same as i TEERRARBRGDZ
the basic earnings per share. NEFHTE - Bt - SREE

BN G RREARE AR o
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13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13. BEEE
The Group REE

Exploration

rights and
Mining rights assets Total
RigE KEEREE &5t
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET FAET

Cost 5%
At 1 January 2012 NZE——F—H—H 4,153,256 - 4,153,256
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BB BT B A )

(note 33) (FF5E33) 2,603,320 1,706 2,605,026
Exchange adjustments M A AR (518) - (518)
At 31 December 2012 MN-T——%F

+=—A=+—H 6,756,058 1,706 6,757,764
At 1 January 2013 W_ZE—=F—H—H 6,756,058 1,706 6,757,764
Additions bl 26,498 40,397 66,895
Exchange adjustments PE A A% 98,970 - 98,970
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%F

+=—A=1+—H 6,881,526 42,103 6,923,629

Accumulated amortisation ZotiEey

At 1 January 2012 R-—Z—=—&F—H—A 213,958 - 213,958
Charge for the year FREHE 199,937 - 199,937
Exchange adjustments B 34 SR B (41) - (41)
At 31 December 2012 RZE—=F

+=-A=+—H 413,854 - 413,854
At 1 January 2013 R-Z—=F—H—H 413,854 - 413,854
Charge for the year FNFHE 253,343 - 253,343
Exchange adjustments b 5 S 13,014 - 13,014
At 31 December 2013 R-T—=%F

+-A=+—8 680,211 - 680,211

Carrying amounts BREE

At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%F

+-A=+—8 6,201,315 42,103 6,243,418
At 31 December 2012 R-ZZE——%F

+-—A=+—H 6,342,204 1,706 6,343,910
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13.

128

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
The Group (Continued)

(@) As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s mining rights
with a carrying amount of HK$2,704,772,000 (2012:
HK$2,714,114,000) was pledged as security for the Group’s
bank and other borrowings (note 28).

(b) At 31 December 2013, the directors of the Company conducted
assessments of the recoverable amounts of the mining rights
with reference to the valuations conducted by ROMA Appraisals
Limited (“ROMA”), an independent firm of professional valuers
with recognised qualifications and experiences, using the
income approach methodology. Based on the assessments,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the estimated
recoverable amounts of the mining rights were higher than their
respective carrying amounts and therefore, no impairment on
the mining rights was required at 31 December 2013.

The directors of the Company also considered that there was
no impairment on the carrying amounts of the exploration rights
and assets at 31 December 2013.

(c) The amortisation charge during the year is included in cost of
sales in the consolidated income statement.

13. BLEE @
REHE #)

@R=ZE—=F+=—_A=+—8"
NEEBBREE A2,704,772,0007%
TT(ZF—=F :2,714,114,000
BT 2 ERBEEDE AR ERASE
B 2 $R1T R EAME 2 R (5T
28) °

P R=F—=F+=A=+—H"
RAREERBEABRUEHR
KRB EEHERERTH
BEHEERAR (K] FRK
NEEE 2 A RERE 2 T
B¢ B ITRHE - BIBEFTE - A
NEEBRBIRERE 2 TR
EeERRESECEEE B
It RZE—=F+=-A=+—
H R 1 3RRE -

ARBEENR/ R-_T—=
FH-A=1T—"HREELEE
Z AR {EBE HIRRE

() FRZHEHEXHE ARG RS
RZHERARA -
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14. FIXED ASSETS 4. BIEEE

The Group REH
Interests in
Leasehold leasehold
land under Office lands held
finance lease equipment, for own
and building  Buildings  Machinery furniture use under
held for held for and Motor and Mining operating
_ownuse  ownuse equipment  vehicles fixtures  structures  Sub-total leases Total
HERET BE
gL _ BRE HEREE
REEEER REREE BB 58  ERER .
ZEEY  ZBEY HERRG RE REEZEE FREEN Mt T ER &5t
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS00D  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TR Ti#n TiEn TR TiEn TR TR Ti#n Ti#n
(note (a)) (note (a)) (note (a)
(Fzt)  (t(e)) (Rt (e))
Cost A
At 1 January 2012 R=F——%-F-H 81,31 5444 41,638 19,159 3,465 630,379 781,396 8,433 789,829
Exchange adjustments ERRE - 3 6 2 6 (58) () - (11)
Additions BE ) - - 7,206 3,510 1,206 3,994 15,915 - 15,915
Acquisition of subsidaries (note 33) YOEMB AR (FiE 33) - 8,550 3,137 1,058 1511 11,265 25521 - 25521
Transfer from construction ERAERTR(H15)
in progress (note 1) - - 1,997 - - 687,946 689,943 - 689,943
Disposals HE - - - (183) - - (189 - (183)
At 31 December 2012 RZE-Z5+ZA=1-H 81,311 14,027 53,983 23,546 6,188 1333526 1,512,581 8433 1,521,014
At 1 January 2013 R=F-=F-F-H 81,31 14,027 53,983 23,546 6,188 1333526 1,512,581 8433 1,521,014
Exchange adjustments EHAE - 439 1,691 685 141 41,787 44,693 264 44,957
Additions #E - - 5943 4,146 2,083 8,283 20,455 - 20,455
Transfer from construction BREERTE(HE15)
in progress (note 15) - - - - - 837,529 837,529 - 837,529
At 31 December 2013 WZZ-=F+-A=+-H 81,311 14,466 61,617 28,377 8412 2221075 2415258 8,697 2,423,955
Accumulated amrtisation S RERTE
and depreciation
At1 January 2012 R=F-—%#-F-H 3,354 m 4787 4,060 1,698 25,863 40,473 305 40,778
Exchange adjustments B A% - - U] - - 9 (10) - (10)
Charge for the year FREHE 1,917 596 4616 3,202 999 57,145 68,475 25 68,740
Written back on disposal HEBRR - - - (164) - - (164) - (164)
At 31 December 2012 RZE-ZF+ZA=1-H 5271 1,307 9,402 7,098 2,697 82,999 108,774 570 109,344
At1 January 2013 Wn=E-=#-F-H 5271 1,307 9,402 7,098 2,697 82,999 108,774 570 109,344
Exchange adjustments ERHE - 54 387 206 (326) 4,144 4,465 22 4,487
Charge for the year ERitE 1917 859 6,001 3,785 1,563 74,999 89,124 269 89,393
At 31 December 2013 W_E-ZE+-A=F-H 7,188 2,220 15,790 11,089 3,934 162,142 202,363 861 203,224
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2013 R-E-=£+-A=1-H 74123 12,246 45,827 17,288 4478 2,058933 2,212,895 7836 2,220,731
At 31 December 2012 RZE-ZF+ZA=1+-H 76,040 12,720 44,581 16,448 3491 1,250,527 1,403,807 7863 1,411,670
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14. FIXED ASSETS (continued)
The Group (Continued)

(@) An analysis of carrying amounts of leasehold lands and buildings

4. BEIEEE @)
REB @)
(o) FAE + 0 B R Y Y BEEE S I

is as follows: O
2013 2012
—E-=F —E-—fF
HK$'000 HK$000
TERx FET
In Hong Kong REE
- Medium-term leases - HEHE 74,123 76,040
In PRC A
- Short leases - HHHE 1,887 -
- Medium-term leases - HEHE 18,195 20,583
94,205 96,623
Representing: REUTBE
Leasehold land under finance lease BMEMRET2HEL
and building held for own use LEEEERZESEY 74,123 76,040
Buildings held for own use EEEARZESEY 12,246 12,720
86,369 88,760
Interests in leasehold lands held BEL2HERFERR
for own use under operating leases BE+TH 7,836 7,863
94,205 96,623

(b) As at 31 December 2013, certain fixed assets of the Group
with a total carrying amount of HK$728,073,000 (2012:
HK$243,350,000) were pledged as security for the Group’s
bank and other borrowings (note 28).

130

bR=—F—=F+=-A=+—8"

A& B AR E B 4258 /728,073,000

BL(==

— 4% : 243,350,000

BIL) 2E T EEEED ARER
AEBEZRITREMERZER

(FfzE28) o
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15. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 15. EEIRE
The Group REH

2013 2012

—E-= T

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Cost 2N

At 1 January n—HA—H 581,700 189,705
Exchange adjustment M 5 18,360 @)
Additions e 1,253,264 1,074,895
Interest capitalised (note 15(c)) EAREF B (KIFE15(c)) 10,049 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33) Wik B A F) (5E33) - 7,046
Transfer to fixed assets (note 14) EEeETEE (Mit14) (837,529) (689,943)

At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 1,025,844 581,700

(@) As at 31 December 2013, construction in progress with a total @R=ZTE—=F+=—_A=+—8"
carrying amount of HK$43,648,000 (2012: HK$75,158,000) BRE{E#4E%0/543,648,000/8 T(=
were pledged as security for the Group’s bank and other £ — — 4 :75,158,000/8 70 ) Z
borrowings (note 28). FRIECANKEAREE IR

TREME R ER (HE28) -
(b) The construction in progress at 31 December 2013 and 2012 ) R=ZE—=FR T —Z—F+=
primarily relates to the additional production premises, mining A=T—BzHEgZIRFEHEFp
structures and facilities of subsidiaries in the PRC. MEBARZHEAEERE - &

BEREY MRIEERE o

(c) During the year, interest on bank and other borrowings OFAN  REMRERIEANER
capitalised in above construction in progress was tHRITEEMERMNE A
HK$10,049,000 (2012: nil). The borrowing costs have been 10,049,000 T (=T — & :
capitalised at a rate of 9% (2012: nil) per annum on the specific ) BREAATIGEARINE
borrowings used for financing the construction in progress (note BIENEEERIRFNEI%
6(a)). ZE—ZF ) ERb(MEE

6(a)) °
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16. DEPOSITS PAID FOR GOLD MINING AND EXPLORATION
RIGHTS

(@) As at 31 December 2013, the Group paid deposits for the
proposed acquisitions of certain gold mining and exploration
rights during the year as follows:

132

M

The Group paid deposits of RMB160,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$203,504,000) (2012: RMB160,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$197,328,000)) and RMB150,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$190,785,000) (2012: RMB110,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$135,663,000)) to two respective independent third
parties for the proposed acquisitions of certain mining
and exploration rights for gold mines in Henan, the PRC,
at a consideration of RMB160,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$203,504,000) (2012: RMB160,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$197,328,000)) and a proposed consideration
not exceeding RMB200,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$254,380,000) (2012: RMB200,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$246,660,000)) respectively (note 35(0)).

16. REBEBRERIFERERR

(RS

&

@R=F—=F+-A=1+—8"
AEBRFARBKES T®
RiE L RBES A TIREOT

0)

AEBEFEZWEPBITE
ETEBEBERARERZ 2R
BEREEREP>IABAR
% 160,000,0007T( 18 & B
203,504,00087L) (ZE—=
F: A K #160,000,0007C
(¥ % 197,328,000 7T ) )
&% AR % 200,000,000
TL( 48 & 7 254,380,000
TI(ZFE—ZF: AR¥
200,000,0007C( A & »
246,660,000 7T)) + 9 Bl M
MEBIE=ZHAZMEREA
& # 160,000,000 7T (18 & 7
203,504,000 7T) (ZZF—=
#: A R #160,000,0007C
(#HE 7 197,328,000/ 7T ) )
K A R % 150,000,000 7T ( #8
E 7 190,785,00087L) (=&
— =% : AR¥ 110,000,000
7L ( M & 5 135,663,000
70)) (MI7E35(0)) °
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16. DEPOSITS PAID FOR GOLD MINING AND EXPLORATION 16. 3i & TEER1E I R IERE PR

RIGHTS (continued) ﬁ”ﬁ?% (#&)
(@) (Continued) (a) (#&)

(i) The Group paid an aggregate deposits of RMB49,150,000 iy AEERBER A AB(ZZE
(equivalent to HK$62,514,000) (2012: RMB12,050,000 —ZF: AR )BILE=
(equivalent to HK$14,861,000)) for proposed acquisitions 79 B UEE AL A B AT R
of certain mining and exploration rights for gold mines REmMZzETEBERER
in Henan and Yunnan, the PRC, from six (2012: five) FREESITERESEHEAR
respective independent third parties. The total consideration ¥ 49,150,0007T( /8 E »
of these acquisitions is RMB61,900,000 (equivalent to 62,514,000 7L) (ZE—=
HK$78,731,000) (2012: RMB12,400,000 (equivalent to F: AR¥ 12,050,000 7T (47
HK$15,293,000)) (note 35(a)). B 14,861,000/ T ))°

ZERBEB2REBERLERA
R #61,900,0007T( 18 & %
78,731,000 7t) (ZE—=
& AR¥ 12,400,000 7T (48
715,293,000 7)) (HisE

35(a)) °

All of above acquisition transactions have not been completed R&EMGEHmEEZR - FTA
as at the date of approval of these financial statements. LB RTE ©

(o) During the year, interest on bank and other borrowings (o) FA - N L EZRWESERE
capitalised in above deposits paid for proposed acquisitions of NMRBEM SRS REREAR
gold mining and exploration rights was HK$25,656,000 (2012: 17 R H M & 51 B % 25,656,000
HK$108,813,000). The borrowing costs have been capitalised at B (ZE— =% : 108,813,000
a rate of 9% (2012: 19%) per annum on the specific borrowings BIL) o BFATgh AR T
used for financing the deposits paid for proposed acquisitions of Wi e ERBERTBEELZSH
gold mining and exploration rights (note 6(a)). HEERIRFNEI% (ZE—=

F 1 19%) BAML (MizE6()) °
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17.

134

DEPOSITS PAID FOR FIXED ASSETS

As at 31 December 2013, the Group paid a deposit of
RMB12,000,000 (equivalent to HK$15,263,000) (2012:
RMB12,000,000 (equivalent to HK$14,800,000)) to the local
government of Mojiang County, Yunnan, the PRC, for the proposed
acquisition of a piece of land in Mojiang County, Yunnan in the PRC at
a consideration of RMB80,000,000 (equivalent to HK$101,752,000)
(2012: RMB80,000,000 (equivalent to HK$98,664,000) (note 35(0)).
The Group has not entered into any sale and purchase agreement
for the acquisition of the land and the acquisition has not been
completed as at the date of approval of these financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, the Group and the Company paid
deposits of HK$41,785,000 (2012: HK$39,525,000) and
HK$3,162,000 (2012: HK$3,162,000) respectively for the
purchase of plant and equipment at an aggregate consideration of
HK$46,643,000 (2012: HK$47,511,000) and HK$3,162,000 (2012:
HK$3,162,000) respectively during the year (note 35(a)).

17.

REEEEMNEZES

RZFE—=F%+Z_R=+—8"
AEBREZUIRBARE
80,000,000 7T ( 48 & 7 101,752,000
BLI(ZE—ZF: AR¥
80,000,000 7T + #H & 72 98,664,000
P 7T) (M7 35(b)) WiER B ZER &1
HF—iR LI P EEREETHZM
BB e AR 12,000,000
Tt (& 115,263,000 L) (- =
——%: AR¥12,000,0007T * #H
E 7 14,800,000 7T ) ° R ZE T
MRESEZH - REEBY Rt
BEAZIE T M0 BT S (T o] B B i Mok
BB M ARTTRK ©

B EXFIEREN - FR AEER
RARIE D BIFLLABA(E 46,643,000
B(ZZE — ZF 147,511,000
JL) %.3,162,0008 L (Z T —Z4F :
3,162,000 L) BEME K& #HXZ
ik £41,785,0008 (=T — =
% 1 39,525,000/ T ) K& 3,162,000
Bt (ZZT— =4 : 3,162,000 T)
(M5E35()) °
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. RBARZIRE
The Company
bIN/N|
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Unlisted shares, at cost FEEMRR (FRRA) 357,373 357,373
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note (a)) FEUT B A B RE (5L (a) 4,727,525 4,285,425
5,084,898 4,642,798
Less: Impairment losses (note (b)) B REBE (M3 (o)

At 1 January m—H—H - 29,344
Reversal of impairment loss # o) EEE - (29,344)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H - -
5,084,898 4,642,798

(@) In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the amounts due @ ARRESZRAE  BRHBQA
from subsidiaries are equity contribution by the Company to the REAARBRAKBE AR K
subsidiaries. The amounts are unsecured and interest-free and AHE - ZEREAEHRKFLS
will not be demanded for repayment. B WATgEREER -

(o) As at 31 December 2012, impairment loss on investment in a ) R=—F—=—F+=—_A=+—8"
subsidiary of HK$29,344,000 was reversed as the recoverable REBARIZIREREEBER
amount of investment in the subsidiary was greater than its 29,344,000 L2 FE# - A
carrying amount. KRB AR ZRE 2 A B E

fREEBREEE -
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18. RMIB AT ZERE @

© TREJNHHUAKEBRE_F
—=FtZA=t—-BIFEZ
X BEJRBENIERE
ZHEBRBER - BKR=AIH

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(c) The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2013. The class of
shares of those subsidiaries which were incorporated outside

PRC held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. HN - PTRERZ SRR BIR AN R AK
MZMBARRMENSRER
H§ o
Proportion of ownership interest
HEERELA

Place of Issued and Group’s Held Held

incorporation/ fully paid-up/ effective by the bya
operations registered capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary Principal
Name of Company MY/ BRAIRME/ AE®  mARE  H-KE activities
CE mEY HREE  ERER g5 095E TBER

% % %
China Precious Metal BVI/Hong Kong US$2 100 100 - Investment
Resources Co., Limited ABRANE/BR 2ET holding
hEESEERERAT RERR
Able Supplement Limited BVI/Hong Kong - US$50,000 100 - 100 Investment
ARRELNE/BR 50,0007 holding
RERKR
Decent Connection Overseas BVI/Hong Kong US$50,000 100 - 100 Investment
Limited EBRUEE/BR 50,000% 7T holding
REBR
Wah Heen Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$10,000 100 - 100 Investment
EHERERRA) ABRABE/BR 10,000 %7 holding
RERKR
Sinowise Century Limited ByI/Hong Kong USs$1 100 - 100 Investment
ABRANEE/BE 1%7T holding
RERK
Hongkong Realking Hong Kong HK$1010(p 100 - 100 Investment
Mining Indlustry Ltd. i 10,0007%7C holding
EhmeREERAT REBR
Hongkong T&R Mining Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - 100 Investment
Investment Limited 5 10,0008 holding
ERRRBEREERAA RERR
Kong Chun Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 000 100 - 100 Investment
_Limited 7 1,000/ holding
REEBRRAA RERK
Fast Trend Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$j 100 - 100 Investment
ARREARAT & BT holding
REBR
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18. RIIBARZIRE @)
(c) (Continued) (c) (£8)
Proportion of ownership interest
BEEERNL

Place of Issued and Group’s Held Held

incorporation/ fully paid-up/ effective by the bya
operations registered capital interest Company  subsidiary Principal
Name of Company HRRL/ BRARMR/ bS] MAAT B-HE activities
NEER B ARER ERES ] AARE IEEH

% % %
Chifeng Yongfeng Kuangye The PRC RMB20,000,000 100 - 100 Mining and
Co., Ltd. (note (i) T AR%20,000,0007C processing of gold
FEKEREERAAAR ores and sale
(W) of gold products
SRR NI
REeEMHAE
Luanchuan County The PRC RMB60,000,000 100 - 100 Mining and
Jinxing Mining Co., Ltd. i AR60,000,00070 processing of gold
(note (i) ores and sale
8|82 AREBBRALHA of gold products
(FizE() SBRE NI
RECEMHE
Luanchuan County The PRC RMB50,000,000 100 - 100 Mining and
Luanling Gold Mine g AR50,000,00070 processing of gold
Co., Ltd. (note (i) ores and sale
8| Z8EBER AT of gold products
(B3 () SRR NI
hESERHE
Mojiang County Mining The PRC RMB50,000,000 100 - 100 Mining and
Co., Ltd. (note (i) i ARE50,000,0007 processing of gold
BTEREARRIAT ores and sale
(M) of gold products
SBAR NI
RESEMHE
Pu'er Hengyi Mining Co., Ltd The PRC RMB50,000,000 100 - 100 Mining and
(note (i) i AR%50,000,0007 processing of gold
LEERBEERRALE ores and sale
GiE0) of gold products
SEFR - T
RESEMHE
Kai Yuan Financial Leasing The PRC RMB150,000,000 100 - 100 Provision of
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. T AR 150,000,000 financing services
(note (i) to customers
SFRERE (RI)BRAE under finance lease
GiE0) anangements
REREHERY
Jin He Factoring (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB50,000,000 100 - 100 Provision of
(note (i) T AR50,000,0007C financing services
BARE(RI)BRAF to customers
(FirzE () under factoring
arrangements
MEFR{RE
BERE
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(c) (Continued) (c) (£8)
Note: sk -
(i)  All subsidiaries established in the PRC are wholly foreign-owned (i)

enterprises. The English names of the PRC subsidiaries are for
identification purpose only.

(d) During the year, the Group deregistered a subsidiary. The net
assets of the subsidiary at date of deregistration were as follows:

18. RMIB AT ZERE @

RABIKZZ BB ARIE A

SNEBELE - PEMBARZ
R LRERBRZA -

(d) REFER > NEBEZH-RENER

Al REHEAHNBARZEE

FEMT
The Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E-=5F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Net assets BEFE - -
Release of exchange reserve FRBRIE A 5,630 -
Gain on deregistration B AR 2 W
of a subsidiary (note 5) (f37E5) 5,630 -
19. INVENTORIES 9. B8
Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position FEMBMRRARACFERRE :
comprise:
The Group
TEE

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Raw materials AR 12,681 11,863
Work-in-progress L 86,156 75,303
Finished goods BIAL T 10,662 3,029
Total FEE 109,499 90,195

138



CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD Cp"
FEREEERERERAT

Notes to the Financial Statements
Bl ¥R < Bt et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated AZSHFIIR » B BB FTHEIN)

20. TRADE AND LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 20. EWERERRERURHE
AND PREPAYMENTS feEWRIE - REKRTE
NFRIE
The Group The Company
i, | NG

2013 2012 2013 2012

—E-ZE —T-CF —E-Zf “2-CF

Note HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

i3 TERT FAT TERT FAT

Trade and loan receivables EUREZRES  @tol) 284,086 154,026 - -

Less: Allowance for W RIERE

doubtful debts - - - _

284,086 154,026 - -
Amounts due from B
subsidiaries ARFIE (d) - - 392,420 235,454
Other receivables Hi R 26,409 11,321 - -
Sub-total et 310,495 165,347 392,420 285,454
Deposits and prepayments &4 RIENFE (G 159,264 30,756 550 619
469,759 196,103 392,970 236,073
As at 31 December 2013, all of the trade and loans and other RZE—=F+ZHA=+—8"F
receivables, deposits and prepayments are expected to be B IR T B SR A K H A i Uk 3k
recovered or recognised as expenses within one year. H ReRBEMNZFEHEHR—F
NF LA I ER A o
As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s trade receivables with a RZE——F+=A=+—H" ' &K
carrying amount of HK$95,505,000 were pledged to a bank as £ B BR®E (A A 95,505,000 % 7T 2 &
security for banking facilities granted to the Group (note 28). WEERBEEBTIRIT - (EREUEE
FTAREBEZRITEEZER(HE
28) o
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20. TRADE AND LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 20. FE UR BR ik rE %‘Z LR H
AND PREPAYMENTS (contnued fhEWRE RERAE
NFRIE (=)
(a) Trade and loan receivables (a) B BRI R B
The Group
rEE
2013 2012
—=E—-= —E——F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
P s FBT FHET
Trade receivables SRAKRES T (b)
under the Gold Z FEMAE K
Mining Operation 20,027 154,026
Loan receivables HAMEEB T ()
under the Other 2 EWE R
Operation 264,059 —
284,086 154,026
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20. TRADE AND LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 20.

AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

(b) Trade receivables under the Gold Mining Operation

() The ageing analysis of the trade receivables (net of

cPM

(b) EHRBALRETS T FEUR AR TR
() PIEMK - YRR (B

allowance for doubtful debts) at end of the reporting period BrREREEE) CRKR ST
is as follows: N
The Group
rEE
2013 2012
—_E—-= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FAT
Less than two months DA R {E A 20,027 154,026

The Group generally requires the customers to make
payment on the date of delivery of products or within 7 days
after delivery of products. Credit term within two months is
granted to the customers with high credibility.

(i) As at 31 December 2013, all receivables under the Gold
Mining Operation of the Group were neither past due
nor impaired. Receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a wide range of customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

AEE—BREXEFRER
48 B R E %+ B R
PR 3R - MMELA BAR 2 15
HHETAARERERY
EF

iy R=ZF—=F+=_A=+—
B AKEzSHEARER
TFT A FE YR IB B K 8 B IR
RIBME o AR AR E 2 e
WHRIBRAEHTLEHEXR
T RFEHRA -
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20. TRADE AND LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 20. FE W BR iﬂ rE a"i’\ R HE
AND PREPAYMENTS (contnued ERRE ZERE
NFRIE (=)
(c) Loan receivables under the Other Operation () XK TRIKER
As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s loan receivables under RZFE—=%F+=ZHA=+—8"
the Other Operation are as follows: REBREMER T RKER
U
The Group
rER
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BRE FET FET
Lease receivables THEEIWZIE (c)(i) & (iii) 97,285 —
Less: Unearned B ARERELZ BEE WA
finance income (4,933) —
Net lease receivables FTHE WK IEFEE (©)() & (iii) 92,352 —
Factoring receivables {RIE FEUR TR I8 (c)(if) & (iii) 171,707 —
264,059 —
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20. TRADE AND LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 20. EWBRRRERURHE
AND PREPAYMENTS (continued) ftEKRARE RERHE
NI @)
(c) Loan receivables under the Other Operation (Continued) ) HMtEXTRWER @)
(i) Lease receivables () HEELWFIE
As at 31 December 2013, all lease receivables were RZE—=F+_A=+—
repayable within one year. There was no unguaranteed B FiEHERKFKIAER
residual value in connection with finance lease arrangements —FREE - NEBNH
or contingent lease arrangements of the Group that needed HHRZBERE LK
to be recorded as at the end of the reporting period. The REELH  BEEAMEER
ageing analysis of the lease receivables (net of allowance for FIeABEEANR - RIEEH
doubtful debts) based on the age of the lease receivables X MERKFIE(BEHKBRR
since the effective dates of the relevant contracts at end of BREE) CRERIBBREBAS L
the reporting period is as follows: A BB HERIKRIA
FREC DTN -
The Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Lease receivables: M E WIS
Less than 1 year —F R 97,285 —
Net lease receivables: TSI GRIEFEE
Less than 1 year —ER 92,352 -
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20. TRADE AND LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

(c) Loan receivables under the Other Operation (Continued)
(i) Factoring receivables

As at 31 December 2013, all factoring receivables were
repayable within one year. The ageing analysis of the
factoring receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts)
based on the age of the factoring receivables since the
effective dates of the relevant contracts at end of the
reporting period is as follows:

20.

(c) M T BN E R (4
(i) REFEWFIIA
MoF—=f+-f=+—
B B R A AR
— R o RRE A -
RIEFEUHE (B R RER

1) ZIREIRIBE B R A A
B HI AR 2 R I 8 A R T B R

DT -
The Group
A K
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET THET
Factoring receivables: {RIBFEUGRIE -

Less than 1 year —FR 171,707 —

(iii) As at 31 December 2013, all lease and factoring receivables
of the Group were neither past due nor impaired.
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.
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20. TRADE AND LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 20. FE W BR ik rE %z R H

AND PREPAYMENTS (continued) EWRE REKRE

4 FIE ()
(d) Amounts due from subsidiaries (d) B U BS & RIFRIE
The Company
VNG|
2013 2012
—E—= —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE L BfT /&8 A B R IE 392,478 235,512
Less: Allowance for W R EE R
impairment losses (58) (58)
392,420 235,454
As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Company recognised RZBE—=FRZFT—ZF+=
impairment losses on amounts due from subsidiaries A=+—H ' KRR EKRK B
of HK$58,000 as these subsidiaries had net liabilities at yNEC] Jxlﬁﬁﬁwmaréﬂa 58 000
31 December 2013 and 2012, BT REAAZEMER
T-—=FkZ “—:$+:H
=t+—HERNFEEKR -
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free JEM B A RIRIE R EER - 2
and have no fixed terms of repayment. B R EEE RN -

(e)As at 31 December 2013, the Group prepaid an amount of e R_E—=F+_RA=+—8H"
US$17.3 million (equivalent to HK$135 million) to CMMA AEB R CMMATBRN Z 17358
as included in deposits and prepayments. The amount was EX(HER1BBEBIT)FTA
subsequently applied as partial payment of the consideration of Ze RFEMNRIE - ZKIBREER
the early redemption for the RP shares and the 2012 Warrants ESZ (42 R HE 2] 7] B B8 5L Ak &
(notes 24(b) and 40(b)). ZE - FRBREE (M5 24(0)

X 40(b)) 2 BBARAE ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 —ZE—=FF3# 145




Notes to the Financial Statements
B R < Mt &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated SASEE SR » Br BAFTHESN)

21. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 21. BIEBEBITER
As at 31 December 2013, bank deposits of the Group and the RZE—=F+ZA=+—H" ' &
Company of HK$458,340,000 (2012: HK$84,460,000) and & @ 7 37 17 17 3 458,340,000 7T
HK$35,911,000 (2012: HK$15,600,000) respectively were pledged —F— 4 : 84,460,000/ 7T) &
as security for the Group’s bank and other borrowings and the RNQAE] 2 RITIF 385,911,000 7T
2011 Warrants (note 28). The interest rate of the pledged bank (ZZF—=—% : 15,600,000 7T) E
deposits ranged from 0.1% to 3.3% (2012: 0.1% to 0.5%) per DRAERAEE 2 RITRAMERK
annum during the year. R ——FRREE 2B (KT

28) - FRNBIMMIRITHERZFIEN
FHFEOA%EI33% (T — 4 :
0.1% ZE0.5%) °

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2. BERBAESEEY
The Group The Company
TEE b N
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E-—F —E-=F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TAERT FAT TAET FAT
Cash at banks RITFER 519,759 99,726 6,691 6,880
Cash in hand Bé 2,526 467 22 26
Cash and cash e S EIN/NE]
equivalents in the MR E 2
consolidated ReREEZEY
and the Company’s
statement
of financial position 522,285 100,193 6,713 6,906
Secured bank overdrafts BIRIRRITEY
(note 24) (FizE24) - (1,003) - -
Cash and cash equivalents mEReRERZ
in the consolidated ReReSEY
statement of cash flows 522,285 99,190 6,713 6,906
The interest rates on cash at banks ranged from 0.1% to 0.4% FARTERZIMENFTEF01%
(2012: 0.1% to 0.4%) per annum during the year. Z204%( Z F — Z F:01% &
0.4%) °
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=
23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. BB EMENRIE
The Group The Company
biN- | FONS|
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E-CfF —E-ZE —E-CfF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iz THET THET THET THET
Trade creditors RS (a) 8,192 16,639 - -
Amounts due to ERTBARZEA
subsidiaries () - - 52,745 42,400
Accrued charges and EREAR
other payables HiERZIE (© 248,596 414,266 12,337 17,160
Financial liabilities REHN AT E
measured at ZEBat
amortised cost 256,788 430,905 65,082 59,560
Receipts in advance RS 65,275 41,759 - -
322,063 472,664 65,082 59,560
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23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 23. BNERRREMENTRIE
(#&)
(a) The ageing analysis of trade creditors at the end of the reporting @ RIEHR - BIERR KRR D
period is as follows: Mo :
The Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Within three months =& A REIE 5,965 12,564
More than three months but =EA N EEBE—F KRNI E

within one year 323 3,607
After one year —F 18 B HA 1,904 468
8,192 16,639

(b) The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free (o) BB ARFIEAEER - &
and have no fixed terms of repayment. B HEEFERE -

(c) As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s accrued charges and CR=ZE—=F+=—R=+—8"
other payables included bills payables of HK$98,664,000 AEEZBIRER R EAMENK
which were secured by a pledge of the Group’s bank deposits 18 B 1E JE 15 2 15 98,664,000 7
(note 28) and the guarantees given by two subsidiaries of the TC - AAREE 2 RITE FUE A (K
Company. iE28) WHARAIMAXMER

AIHRMHIELR o
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24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
As at 31 December 2013, the Group had bank and other

borrowings as follows:

cPM

2. SRITRHEMER

N =
N — =

=#+=A=+-0 &

SEEFATRITREMER

The Group The Company
piN- N

2013 2012 2013 2012

—E-=F —E--F —E-=F —E--F

Note HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

iz THET FAT TR THEL

Secured bank overdraft BHEAERTEY (©) - 1,003 - -
Secured bank and other EHEBRTR

borrowings HtER (a), (b) & (0) 2,225,985 1,590,425 - 278,121
Unsecured bank and BHBETR

other borrowings HtER (d) 1,241,373 123,330 - -
Loan from a director RE—REE

ZER 36(a)fi) - 2,713 - -
Loan from a shareholder RE—BRR

ZER 36(a)(iv) 140,400 - 140,400 -

Total @t 3,607,758 1,717,471 140,400 278,121

Carrying amounts repayable: ~ 7BEEFBRE(E :

Within 1 year or on demand ~ —F R EER 1,953,500 422 583 140,400 -

After 1 year but within 2 years ~ —&F A FEREFA 620,522 816,531 - 278,121

After 2 years but within 5 years  BEA HEREMR 1,083,736 478,357 - -

3,607,758 1,717,471 140,400 278,121

Less: Current portion W e (1,953,500) (422,583) (140,400) -

Non-current portion JEENER S 1,654,258 1,294,888 - 278,121
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24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

150

(@) During the year, the Group early settled the entire bank loan of

US$40 million (equivalent to HK$312 million) (“RBI Loan”), which
was granted to the Company by Raiffeisen Bank International
AG, Labuan Branch (“RBI”") in 2011 with a maturity date on 22
August 2014, and recognised a loss on early settlement of RBI
Loan of HK$32,554,000 (note 6(a)). The RBI Loan Securities
and Guarantees Package (as defined in the following paragraph
in this section) was released.

As at 31 December 2012, the RBI loan was secured by a
bank deposit of the Company of not less than US$2,000,000
(equivalent to HK$15,600,000) and second ranking share charge
of four indirect wholly-owned PRC subsidiaries of the Company
together with all of their respective immediate and intermediate
investment holding companies, personal guarantees given by
two executive directors of the Company and the Company’s
shares held by certain individual shareholders of the Company
(the “RBI Loan Securities and Guarantees Package”) (note 36(a)

(i)).

Pursuant to the agreement of the RBI Loan, the Company
issued warrants with a principal amount of HK$93,480,000 (the
“2011 Warrants”) to RBI. The issue price of the 2011 Warrants
was nil. The 2011 Warrants entitle the holders to subscribe for
new ordinary shares of the Company at a subscription price of
HK$2.1 per share during the period from 22 August 2011 to 22
August 2014. The 2011 Warrants are transferable (note 26(a)).

BITREMER @
()FEW REBIRDEEERE

HFEE B RITIRG BRAF
%E“%U%mzuﬁaﬁ_
T—MOMENAZFTZAZEEER
TERI0BBEET(EER312
BEBT) ([RBIEXK]) (R=F
——FHRBIETFTARLQA) B
Hie BB ERBIE R EREIE
32,554,000 7T (i 3£ 6(a)) ° RBI
EFERRERES (ERRAE
TXEE) B ERRRR o

RZE—ZF+=ZRAR=+—
H RBIE % B8 A 2 @ ~ &
2,000,000 T (HER
15,600,000 7T ) © —IHIRITIF
REAQARNEEEEZEREEZ
FEMBAR (ERESE2HE
BERAEZIREERATE) 2R
BHOER  ARRMEBRITES
REZEAAERARETFTARAR
ZBAREREE 2R RRIRMGIE
EAR(RBIEFEARERAE])
(P 5E 36(a)(i) °

RIERBIE X W& + N2 FAIRBI
TN £ %84 93,480,000,8 7T
ZRBREE(ZE——FRKE
Bl  ZT——FRREZZE
ﬁﬁﬁﬁo—%——ilﬁﬁa
T REE AR -
iAH_+_Ei§_§ usfes
NAZ+ZBILERE - RERK
fv1%ﬁzwﬁﬁw%$ Gk
Bl —T——FRBREFA
Taﬁmﬁman
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24, SBITREMER @
(o) RERE Bk - AEEIZ2EE

24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

(b) Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group early

redeemed 50,000,000 redeemable preferred shares (the “RP
Shares”), which were issued to Components and Materials
M&A Private Equity Fund (“CMMA”) at an issue price of US$1
per share (the “Issue Price”) with a total principal amount of
US$50,000,000 on 12 June 2012 by Decent Connection
Overseas Limited (“Decent”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, together with the 2012 Warrants. The RP Shares
Securities and Guarantees Package (as defined in the following
paragraph in this section) was subsequently released (notes 28
and 40(b)).

The holder of the RP shares is entitled to a fixed preferred
dividend of 10% per annum of the principal amount, payable
semi-annually in arrears, and is not entitled to any voting right
as shareholder of the ordinary shares of Decent. The RP shares
will be redeemed on the fifth anniversary of the issue date of
the RP Shares. Decent is entitled to redeem after six months of
the issue date of the RP shares. The holder of the RP shares
is entitled to request Decent to redeem the RP shares from the
third anniversaries of the issue date of the RP Shares.

The RP Shares were secured by a bank deposit of Decent not
less than US$2.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$19.5
million) and share charge of three subsidiaries of the Group (note
28) and a guarantee given by the Company (the “RP shares
Securities and Guarantee Package”).

50,000,000 A% ] & =& 55 A% (T 7]
BEELR])ER-ZZT—Z-FR
RiER  ZSEERBEARAER
& Bt B A &) Decent Connection
Overseas Limited ([Decent])
RZE-—ZFXA+ZHMRA
Components and Materials M&A
Private Equity Fund ([CMMA ]) 3%
BIEBERIEZT(EITEDE
77 7A€ & 550,000,000 % 7T ©
A& MBI R ERAS (B
ZERARE TR )RR ERE
B (Ff5E 28 & 40(b)) °

AEREER FEAERESF
WEAR £ 10% 2 B E B LK E -
BEFRE—X BEEZHE
#RDecentEARMRFTZER 2
EfR] 1% 24 o ] i BB L AR S R
AEREERETHRCERRE
AFEHED - Decent AN A]
EEEERBEITRBNEARE
Bl o AJERIELEIR B AGRE
Z 5K Decent pA AJ & [B1 18 S AR EE 1T
HEzE=AEFE R RELR
BEEELR -

0] B [B] 18 S i% LA Decent 2 $R171F
RER25BEEXTEERL
19.6 A8ETT) RAKEE =HE
NELZ R E R (MFE28) AR AR
NERHE 2 BRERR([AIEE
BRBREBRERASE]) -
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24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continved)

152

(b) (Continued)

Pursuant to the agreements of the RP shares, on 12 June
2012, the Company issued warrants with a principal amount of
HK$116,400,000 (the “2012 Warrants”) to CMMA. The issue
price of the 2012 Warrants was nil (note 26(b)).

(c) Save as disclosed in above (a) and (b), as at 31 December 2013

and 2012, the Group’s secured bank overdrafts and bank and
other borrowings were secured by the pledge of the Group’s
assets and share charge of certain subsidiaries of the Group
(note 28), guarantees given by certain subsidiaries and the
Company and an executive director and substantial shareholder
of the Company (note 36(a)(i)).

(d) As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s unsecured bank and

other borrowings were guaranteed by the Company and certain
subsidiaries of the Company. As at 31 December 2012, the
Group’s unsecured bank and other borrowings were guaranteed
by a related party (note 36(a)(v)), the Company and a subsidiary
of the Company.

(e) The range of effective interest rates on the Group’s fixed rate and

variable rate bank and other borrowings are 6% to 21% (2012:
6% to 21%) and 2% to 11% (2012: 2% to 21%) respectively.

24, BITREMER @

(o) (&)

BRENELDELKRGRE R
T—-——_F~NA+ZZH &ARQ
A MICMMAZ 1T A © © 88 A
116,400,000/ 7T 2 R #EE ([ =
T-_FREREE]) - —FT—=
FRBREB2ERTERS(ME
26(b)) °

© B EX(@ROPrEEZEN - B

TEZFERZE—-F+=A
=+—B AEEZEEFRT
BYURBITREMERE BB
AEBMZEERAEBETHE
NRIZ B 1R E (HisE28) ~ &
mETHEBARRARBIA KRR
REIITESE R FEREBIELE
1% (M FE36()()) °

R=_F—=F+-A=+—8"

AEBEBEBRITREME
HAARRRREAETHBARE
ReRZBE—ZF+_A=+—
H: ANEEEERRITREM
BERH—BHEEAL(HE36()
V)« KRR RARE—RHHBA
AIEIR ©

(e) AN SR &l & M) K N ¥ B FI| RARTT

REMER 2 BEREFNEREED 5
BONE21%(ZE—ZF : 6%
E£221%) M2% B11% (T ——
F 2% E21%) °
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25. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 25. ATIRES
The Group and The Company
REBRAKQF
2013 2012
—E—-= —E——4F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BsE FET FHTT
Liability components: BEEG
Convertible bonds due R-ZE—=FFH>
in 2013 AR E S (a) & () - 123,947
Convertible bonds due RZZE—N\FHEZ
in 2018 AR E S (b) & (c) 1,015,839 -
At 31 December wt+—_A=+—H 1,015,839 123,947
Representing: Jhig -
Current portion BIHAER 19 - 123,947
Non-current portion JEBNHRER {7 1,015,839 -
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25. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

154

a) Convertible bonds due in 2013

On 8 November 2010, the Company issued convertible bonds
with an aggregate principal amount of HK$460,000,000, which
include three tranches of nominal value of HK$235,000,000,
HK$100,000,000 and HK$125,000,000 respectively, as part
of the consideration for the acquisition of Decent and its
subsidiaries, to the vendor Simple Best Limited (“Simple Best”).
The third tranche of the convertible bonds in principal amount
of HK$125,000,000 was subject to a lock-up arrangement on
the profit of Luanchuan County Jinxing Mining Co., Ltd. ( %
JI & BEEAREF T AR]) (“‘Jinxing”) for the year ended 31
December 2012 guaranteed by Simple Best.

During the year, based on the audited financial statements of
Jinxing issued on 30 March 2013, the audited profit after tax
and exceptional items of Jinxing was more than the guaranteed
profit of HK$125,000,000 for the financial year ended 31
December 2012. Accordingly, the lock-up arrangement for
the third tranche of convertible bonds with a principal amount
of HK$125,000,000 was released to Simple Best. On 1
September 2013, pursuant to an agreement signed between
the Company and Simple Best, the Company agreed to redeem
the third tranche of convertible bonds with principal amount of
HK$125,000,000 for a cash consideration of HK$125,000,000.
On 5 September 2013, the Company paid the cash
consideration and cancelled the third tranche of convertible
bonds. The Company made a gain on early redemption of the
convertible bonds of HK$3,015,000 during the year (note 6(a)).

25. ATRARES @
Q) RZEBE—=ZFFH 2K

&2

RZZE—ZEF+—ANB &
A &) [A & 77 Simple Best Limited
([Simple Best]) # 17 7~ & 42 58
/460,000,000 JT 2 Al 2 B (&
% {E B EE Decent R E KB A
Al HBHRE - JTRREHFHE
=#t - W& 5 5l &235,000,000
% JT > 100,000,000 7T &
125,000,000 7T A & A
125,000,000/ 7T 2 58 = #L 7] 32
M &% /88 5F — B Simple Best
RBE_T——_F+_A=+—
HIEFEEHOR)| G2 EmEE
BREAERR([2E]) FERE
FTIRA S E L5 -

RER BRER-ZT—=F=A
SR BSEEEZA
BHwE 2EREBE-_FT—=F
T A=+ HULEBFEZE
BB RERIBRE BENZR
) B 4R 3% 125,000,000 7 T -
itk + 7K & %8 A 125,000,0007% 7T
ZEHMAIBMBRES CRELH
B [A1Simple Bestf k- i = =
—=ZFNA—8  REAQRHE
Simple Best#&] < % © A~ A A
A & A 125,000,000 7Tt 2 3 &
R B & [B XN & %8 & 125,000,000
B2 E AR ES - K=
T-=—FNARB ARAIEX
NIRERELFHEE=R AR
BEH - RFEAR AaaliR:
EORBREFELEZREAR
3,015,000 7T (K5t 6(a)) °



CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD Cp"
FEREEERERERAT

Notes to the Financial Statements
Bl ¥R < Bt et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated AZSHFIIR » B BB FTHEIN)

25. AIRARES @

a RZE—=FFHPoARK
B3 (@)

ABRESE TRAAER - A
RABRBEFZTRAREES =
BEERHRBEREABESIN
RBESR2 1B T AR RARR]
Bl AJRRERL6%E

25. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
a) Convertible bonds due in 2013 (Continued)

The convertible bonds entitle the holders to convert the bonds
into ordinary shares of the Company at the conversion price of
HK$2.1 per share at any time up to the third anniversary date
from the date of issue of the convertible bonds. The convertible
bonds bear interest at 6% per annum.

FR -
The Group and the Company
FEERAAF
Liability Equity
component component Total
sEBG Rz IR 47 @gt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET FAT
At 1 January 2012 Ry 218,964 12,378 231,342
Derecognised upon FARE [l 4% 1 R
redemption (100,803) (5,501) (106,304)
Interest expense charged AR ERRERZ
to consolidated income F SRz (5 6(a))
statement (note 6(a)) 13,307 - 13,307
Less: Interest paid & BFE (7,521) - (7.521)
At 31 December 2012 and RZZ——F
1 January 2013 +ZA=t—HBk
“Z—=F—F—H 123,947 6,877 130,824
Interest charged to STAREEBRERZ
Consolidated income FE sz (M 6(a))
statement (note 6(a)) 6,746 - 6,746
Less: Interest paid o BAHE (4,219) - 4,219)
Derecognised upon FPARE [l 4% 1 SR
redemption (B =E 25(a)()
(note 25(a)(i)) (126,474) (6,877) (133,351)

At 31 December 2013
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25. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 25, AR ES @
a) Convertible bonds due in 2013 (Continued) Q) RAZE—=FZHH 2B
&% (@)
() The allocation of consideration paid for the redemption and () BEEABEOONENKENDE
calculation of gain on redemption is as follows: NMBEREERGNGES
AR

Balance of

equity

component

of bonds

redeemed and

transferred to

retained profits
Gain on EEEES
redemption ExHHe

Carrying value Fair Value ofbonds  AfpYEEZ

FHE AYE REEHzWE REER

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TAT TAT TAT

Liability component BEDH 126,474 123,459 3,015 -
Equity component EmER 6,877 1,541 - 5,336
Total At 133,351 125,000 3,015 5,336
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25. AR ES @)
b)R=ZF— N\FHH 2 AT

25. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
(b) Convertible bonds due in 2018

On 28 January 2013, the Company and Daiwa Capital Markets
Hong Kong Limited (the “Manager”), an independent third
party, entered into a subscription agreement, pursuant to
which the Manager agreed to subscribe and pay for, or to
procure subscribers to subscribe and pay for, the Company’s
convertible bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$1,028,000,000. On 4 February 2013, the convertible bonds
with the principal amount of HK$1,028,000,000 were issued
with net proceeds of HK$989,661,000 after deducting issue
expenses. On 5 February 2013, the convertible bonds were
listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.
The convertible bonds bear interest at 7.25% per annum and
will mature on 4 February 2018. The convertible bonds entitle
the holders to convert the convertible bonds into ordinary
shares of the Company at a conversion price of HK$1.8125 at
any time on or after 17 March 2013 up to the close of business
on the date falling ten days prior to the maturity date. The
holder of the convertible bonds will have the right to require the
Company to redeem the convertible bonds on 4 February 2016
at its principal amount together with accrued unpaid interest.
The Company will have the right to redeem all of the convertible
bonds at their principal amount together with accrued unpaid
interest to such date at any time after 4 February 2016, provided
that the volume weighted average price of an ordinary share of
the Company, for each of twenty consecutive trading days, the
last of which occurs not more than five trading days prior to the
date upon which the relevant redemption notice is given, was
at least 130% of the conversion price of the convertible bonds
then in effect immediately prior to the date upon which notice of
such redemption is given.

&%

RZZTE—=F—A=+/\B 'K
NE|BBIE=HRKMEATSH
EBERAR(TEMALDEIMLR
i Bt KHARERE
KA SRR R B AR R A
RATEIARE4B5E R 1,028,000,000
BBk ES Ao 8
/%1,028,000,000/% T 2 A #
BEER -_ZT—=F_AMH
FTLUET RASRBFRER
989,661,000 7% 7T (AL 1Bk 217
) RZBE—=%F_ARHAB -7
BBRESFRIMNEBEZSHME
FRAA LT o AIMRES IR F A
R725BF BN T —N\F
ZAHEEHE - AR ESE T
BEARMNIR_Z—=F=A
THESICEEEREHAMNE T
H 2 & F 5 ) 45 R A LE BE B %
ARG S A K (B 1.8125 8 7T
HMARQRERR - J@RE
HREANERERARARZE
—ANFZ_ANBZRERSTEER
JEEH AR A S B B AT AR E 5 o
ARRRZZE—A"F_AMBAZ
BN -tEEERSHA(H
K — KT HIBA M E D E A%
HHBAAERSH) - AQF]—
RERBB KT EMEFEHES
LAEEEREMER AL HH
AIE R ATRRES B BIRREZ
130%) BE s B IR AT MR B 2
RefRERBEZB IR AR
Z A BB R 2 Ep Al AR E S o
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25. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continved) 25. Al IRfE S )

(b) Convertible bonds due in 2018 (Continued) LR =ZZ—-NFEH 2 0T #RR
&5 ()

Derivative

component of

redemption

Liability Equity option
component component BOEREZ Total
aEBH B Hm frER - Hy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL TER TER TAER

(note 26)

(MizE26)

158

At 1 January 2012, R-E—-%—-HF-8"

31 December 2012 “T-5+ZR=1-H

and 1 January 2013 —Z-=F—-f—H -
Convertible bonds issued E%éffﬂ%ﬁﬂxﬁﬁ 978,312
Interest expense charged FARERRERZ

to consolidated income M BRI (P 6(e)

statement (note 6(a)) 74,792
Less: interest paid W BERFE (37,265)

Fair value loss (note 26)

AFEEBE (K3 26) -

At 31 December 2013 RZZ-=5+ZA=1+—H 1015839

2,007 9,142 989,661
- - 74,792

- - (37,265)

- 15,821 15,821

2,007 24,963 1,043,000

At the date of issue of the convertible bonds, the fair value of the
liability component of the convertible bonds and the derivative
component of redemption option were determined based on
a valuation performed by ROMA using discounted cash flow
model at an equivalent market interest rate for a similar bond
without a conversion option, and the Monte Carlo simulation
method, respectively. The effective interest rate of the liability
component is 8.6% per annum. The residual amount was
assigned as the equity component of the convertible bonds. At
31 December 2013, the fair value of the derivative component
of redemption option was determined based on a valuation
performed by Roma using the Monte Carlo simulation method.

RABREFETHE - AR
BEraERhzAFENERR
I 2 OTERBD IRIBETRE
ZEEEE - BRAMGLEDDHIE
RARREMEAIRERRE
BEBEFZFEMSNERER
RERBRTEZETE - AEFHZ
ERFNERB6E - AFETIH
RABRBRES ZEmalhn - K=
T—=F+_-_A=+—H" EE
BRE 2 TTH B D < R FE TR
BESEARF RERBRTER
HZHEETE -
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25. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
(b) Convertible bonds due in 2018 (Continued)

The following assumptions are used to calculate the fair values
of the derivative component of redemption option of the

TEHESBERERERAA Cp"

25. AR ES @)
b)R=ZF— N\FHH 2 AT
&% (#\)
THBR AR G RRES
BEEREZTESN AT

convertible bonds: & :

At issue
date on
At 4 February
31 December 2013
2013 HITHH
R-B-=F%F RZT—=F
+=A=+—-AH —AmA
Closing share price (HK$) R I & (B T) 1.19 1.39
Conversion price (HK$) HE(BT) 1.8125 1.8125

Expected remaining life of AR ESF BRI FH (F)
the convertible bonds (years) 4.10 5
Expected volatility (%) TEEDRE) (%) 43 62
Risk free rate (%) 2 [ B K (%) 1.07 0.61
Expected dividend yield (%) TR B 2 (%) 0 0
Discount rate (%) BRI K (%) 9.13 7.57

(c) No new shares of the Company were issued upon exercise of
the convertible bonds due in 2013 and 2018 during the years
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

CREBE_ZT—=ZFR_T—_F
+ZA=+—RHLFE HER
TE_E—=Fk=_F—\F5H
o mRESMEITRARRZ
EAIFIRD ©
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26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 26, PTESRMTHE
The Group and The Company
FEERAAT
Derivative
component of
redemption
option of
convertible
2011 2012 bonds Total
Warrants Warrants TRRES
—B--f ~B-CF RO&RE
RREE AREE 2T HH &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FhEr FhEn TEr FhEn
(notes 26(a), (notes 26(0), (note 25(0))
(c) &(d) &) .
(Bt 26(a) » (BizE26(0) * (BizE25(00))
(0 R () (0) R (d))
At 1 January 2012 W-EB-—%5-f-H 39,309 - - 39,309
2012 Warrants at issue date RETARZZ5—ZF
REE - 85,562 - 85,562
Fair value loss (note 6 (a)) NHEER (6 () 23,158 8,447 - 31,605
At 31 December 2012 RIE-Z#+ZA=1-H 62,467 94,009 - 156,476
Representing: T
Non-current portion SERNEER 62,467 94,009 - 156,476
At 1 January 2013 RZE-=F—-f—H 62,467 94,009 - 156,476
Convertible bonds at issue date RB(TRE TRk ES - - 9,142 9,142
Fair value (gain)/loss (note 6 (3)) NTE(Ks) /B8 (56 @) (26,799) (439) 15,821 (11,411)
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=£+-A=1-H 35,668 93,576 24,963 154,207
Representing: Tk
Current portion AEE 35,668 - - 35,668
Non-current portion SRR - 93,576 24,963 118,539
(a) As further detailed in note 24(a) in these financial statements, @REARN WZEFBERERMNFE
the Group early settled RBI Loan during the year and placed a 24() FrE— Hafill - NEBEIRT
bank deposit of US$4,603,000 (equivalent to HK$35,911,000) EERBIE W AL E 5 XA RBI
in escrow with RBI (note 28) as security for a voluntary surrender (P 5E28) 77 iR 1717 74,603,000
premium to the holders of the 2011 Warrants, provided that F 7T (FHE 7 385,911,000 7T) -
any of the 2011 Warrants will not be exercised at maturity date. ER-Z——FRREBIFEA
Details of terms of the 2011 Warrants are set out in note 24(a) in BREERE ZEHF  HEIRES
these financial statements. TeREHBETEAN =S ——

FRREE T ——FRKRE
BZBERFBHNZEN B RE
Mk 24(a) °
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26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) b FTESET B
(b) 2R =% 5 B 75 3R 2 P 5 24(0) PTAE—

(b) As further detailed in note 24(b) in these financial statements,

the Company early redeemed the 2012 Warrants subsequent to
the end of the reporting period. The 2012 Warrants entitle the
holders to subscribe for new ordinary shares of the Company
at a subscription price of HK$2.1 per share with an expiration
date for five years commencing from the issue date of the 2012
Warrants. The 2012 Warrants are transferable. The holders of
2012 Warrants are entitled to a surrender premium, in case
of the optional redemption by the warrant holders, which is
calculated as an excess amount equivalent to the sum of the
Issue Price and the amount calculated at 18% compound per
annum of the Issue Price for the period from issue date and
up to the redemption date, deducting any amount for optional
redemption and paid preferred dividend; or a surrender premium
of nil in case of the voluntary redemption by Decent.

(c) No new shares of the Company were issued upon exercise of

the 2011 Warrants and the 2012 Warrants during the years
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

pZ=3 U $@7Wﬁ¢%$ék
PER T —FRREE

?—_ﬁwh%Lﬂ%%ﬁAu
lk21%EZ %ﬁw%$@j
ZEHERR A AT

ﬁwﬂx%* e TEIHﬂﬁ_Eﬁﬁiﬂﬁ
2B ZE——FRRERT

iR ﬁw&%*hﬁkﬁﬁﬁ
PRERE  —T— — FRBEER
EANEREZEERE  HRE
RETEEABTHAHEREE
fEO A EAMEBITECES TR
E18NFTHECHE BB BAT
Bt E (MR IEREER %
REMEERE)  3iHDecent
BREER - RIEEBEAT -

CRBE_ZE—=ZFK=_F—_-F

TZA=1T—BLFE #$HEA
TE_F——FREEIN_F
—ZFRBEEMBEITARANE
CEE <

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 —ZE—=FF3 161




Notes to the Financial Statements
B R < Mt &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated SASEE SR » Br BAFTHESN)

26.

162

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) The fair values of the 2011 Warrants and the 2012 Warrants
in the following dates are determined based on the valuations
performed by ROMA, an independent firm of professionally
qualified valuers, using the binominal option pricing model. The
following assumptions are used to calculate the fair values of the
2011 Warrants and the 2012 Warrants:

26 OTESRTEH @)

O TIBHZz T ——FRREE
RZZE-——FRABREZF2Z2LF
B BEBUEXSERGER
BEBS ZME R-EAHETE
BEANETE - THEREIARE
BT ——FRAREFER_FT
——FRREZ 2 NTAE

2011 Warrants
—E——FRREE

At At
31 December | 31 December
2013 2012
R=ZZ—Z=% | RZT—ZF
+=—H=+—H |+ZA=+—H
Closing Share Price (HK$) Y& (BT) 1.19 1.48
Exercise price (HK$) B (BL) 2.10 2.10
Expected remaining life of RPEAEE T ]
the warrants (years) FIERFHA () 0.64 1.64
Expected volatility (%) TEHRR B (%) 30 44
Risk free rate (%) 42 B P K1) 3R (%) 0.14 0.1
Expected dividend yield (%) TR EARR B (%) 0 0
Discount rate for discounting BRIR KRR EIHREREE 2
the future expiry surrender ALIR K (%)
premium (%) 0.14 18
2012 Warrants
—E-—FRAREE
At At
31 December | 31 December
2013 2012
R=ZZB—Z=F | RZT—_F
+=ZH=+—H |TZHA=1+—H
Closing Share Price (HK$) IR deTE (B T) 1.19 1.48
Exercise price (HK$) TEEGET) 2.10 2.10
Expected remaining life of SRR 7 TR AR
the warrants (years) TR FHA () 3.45 4.45
Expected volatility (%) TEHRR B (%) 32 52
Risk free rate (%) LS F 2K (%) 0.82 0.30
Expected dividend yield (%) TEHARR B K (%) 0 0
Discount rate for discounting BRI R IR B ERZEEE 2
the future expiry surrender BEIR 5K (%)
premium (%) 18 18
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27. NON-CURRENT PAYABLES 27. FEMEN BN IR
As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s non-current payables were RZE—=F+ZA=+—H" ' &K
repayable as follows: SEZERBEMNFIBE FTEEN
T~
The Group The Company
r5E ¥\ UNE]

2013 2012 2013 2012

—E-=F —E-CfF —E-=F —E—-F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

TAERT TAT TERT TAT

After 1 year but within 2 years —F L HERFEIUAR - 447,756 - -

As further detailed in note 33, the Group has a payable of
HK$540,850,000 due to Premium Wise as part of consideration
for the acquisition of Sinowise Group during the year ended
31 December 2012. The payable is unsecured, charged at an
interest rate of 6.8% per annum and repayable not later than
31 December 2014. As at 31 December 2013, the outstanding
balance of this payable was HK$26,580,000 included in trade and
other payables (2012: HK$440,850,000 included in non-current
payables).

Save as disclosed above, the remaining non-current payable of
HK$6,906,000 as at 31 December 2012 was unsecured and
interest-free.

B FE33E —H F KK H
% B FE 1~ Premium Wise 2 3 B
540,850,000 7T * ERRE £ =
E-—F4+-_F=+—HILFEK
f Sinowise & B Z ZB MR E - BT
RIERERT  EZFFE6.8%5
BRERZZE—NF+=—A=+—
Baigg N _ZET—=Z%F+_A
=+—H ZEENREZEKE
% #4258 26,580,000 78 JT 5T A FE T BR
HEEMEGREB(ZE—ZF:
440,850,000 % 7T + 5T AJET BN ELS
FIB) °

B mEEIN R_FT—ZF
TZA=t—BZHRTIERBDEN
X 786,906,000/ 7T & & E I & 2
Boe
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28. EEEH

AEBUTERABEZEERRS S
REAREREBENZR (T
23(c)) MA K 8R 1T I H b B Z (BT 3
4@ ZE(C) KT ——FRRER

28. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group’s assets with the following carrying amounts at the end
of the reporting period have been pledged to secure bills payables
(note 23(c)), bank and other borrowings (notes 24(a) to (c)) and the
2011 Warrants (note 26(a)):

issued shares of five (2012: four) subsidiaries of the Company were

XMt EE 24(a) PTIREESD

FM(ZE——F: UFA)KMBEAFZ

(HizE26(a))
The Group The Company
rEE KAF
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —T--F —E-=F —T--F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BisE FEn TAT TEr FAEL
Intangible assets - BVAE-
mining rights R 13(a) 2,704,772 2,714,114 - -
Fixed assets ETEE 14(0) 728,073 243,350 - -
Construction in progress TETR 15(a) 43,648 75,158 - -
Trade receivables FEYERR 20 - 95,505 - -
Bank deposits RITEM 21 458,340 84,460 35,911 15,600
3,034,833 3010587 35,911 15,600
As at 31 December 2013, save as disclosed above in note 24(a), all R-ZE—=F+-A=+—HB &

ViN/NET Y

subject to share charge as security pledged for bank and other
borrowings (notes 24(b) and (). FIEBRRITRHEBERITREA

B3R (ML 24(b) X (c)) 2 Bfn AR o

As further detailed in notes 24(b) and 40(c), subsequent to the end
of the reporting period, the Group early redeemed the RP shares
and the 2012 Warrants and repaid certain bank loans, the pledge
of the Group’s bank deposits of HK$58 million and a mining right
with a carrying amount of HK$1,811 million as at 31 December
2013 and the share charge of three subsidiaries of the Group were
subsequently released.

ANFT 5F 24(b) K2 40(c) #E — 2 afalt - R
WEBRKE  AEERFELAE
EELERE T —_FRREZEL
BEEATHRITER RZZT—=F
+—A=+—8 A&EBEZRITHE
Ho8EBBTAEEMEAR18I1TH
EATZERBERAEBE =B
NRIZ BRI EIRBE 1R B RRRR -
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29. DEFERRED TAX 29. IELERIE
(a) Deferred tax liabilities recognised (ERAELHIBEERE
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the FRARGEVBRARERZIE
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements EFREA GO REZE T ¢

during the year are as follows:

The Group

TEE

Intangible

assets

BREEE

Note HK$’000

G Tt

At 1 January 2012 R—E——F—A—H 706,970

Exchange adjustments PE 5 AR (113)
Credited to consolidated REREBERFTA

income statement 7(a) (31,128)

At 31 December 2012 RZE——_F+-_H=+—H 675,729

At 1 January 2013 R-Z—=F—A—H 675,729

Exchange adjustments b 5 AR 20,546
Credited to consolidated REREBEEKRETA

income statement 7(a) (39,124)

At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+"HA=+—H 657,151
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29. IEFERIE @)
(b) RFERIELERITE =

29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets not recognised

As at 31 December 2013, temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries amounted
to HK$1,566,243,000 (2012: HK$1,178,392,000) and deferred
tax liabilities of HK$156,624,000 (2012: HK$117,839,000) have
not been recognised in these financial statements. In the opinion
of the Company’s directors, the Group controls the dividend
policy of these subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute profits in the
foreseeable future.

Save as disclosed above, the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets of certain subsidiaries in respect of cumulative
tax losses of HK$20,056,000 (2012: HK$28,791,000) at
31 December 2013 as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be available
in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses of the
Group will expire in the coming two to five years, except for
amount of HK$18,779,000 (2012: HK$18,779,000) which
does not expire under current tax legislation. The Company
has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative
tax losses of HK$18,779,000 (2012: HK$18,779,000) at
31 December 2013 as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be available
in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The Company’s tax
losses do not expire under current tax legislation.

30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES

166

(@) The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of

each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of
the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the reporting period are
set out below:

R—_E—=F%+-_A=+—
H fEASEEHFHNEA
AR R BN ERERA
1,566,243,0007% (= & — =
1 1,178,392,000/8 7T ) * M ik
FEFRTE B & 156,624,000 78 7T (—
T — — 4 : 117,839,00078 7T ) I
KA EM B REMER - XA A
EERE AEBIEHZENE
RAZIREBBER - WRBNRAE
BARZENHBRARANESTS
DK g K

BREXEBEEN RZE—=F
+-A=+—8 AEELER
RETWB AR B @R BHIEE
B2 EEFIE & E 20,056,000 7%
JT( =& — = 4 :28,791,000/%
) REABBHEREZER
KB R aeH F1 Al A LA 8
ZEEBZRRERBEF o K
EECHBEEBERARRNER
FREE - ERE B BT EG
18,779,000 (=T — Z F :
18,779,000 L) x € I T &
FIERRIBR N c RZE—=F+ =
A=+—H ARRAITEER

BMEGHEEECEEHIBEEE
18,779,000 T ( = & — — 4 :
18,779,000 7t ) * [REA & 18
MEREEERERBTAIEET
A A AR ZE BB 2 R KE
ABEF o RIR B RIBEE -
RAR 2 BEEEN TSR o

30. BAK#E

(@) AEBG A EEZ A DN F

VIBLF REEeR 2 RN R & 18
HEEBEK  ARASEEZEK
HOMmEMUNEERZEEF
| )
BU0R
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30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 30. BARREE @

(@) (Continued) (@) (&)
The Company RAF]
Convertible
Warrants bond
Share Share reserve  equity reserve Capital  Accumulated
capital premium AREE TERES reserve losses Total
e RiEE e BiEfE ERfifE ZitEE 4%
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
ThEL Thn Thn T T T ThR
(note (o)) (note(a)i) (note (c)) ~ (notes d(v)&25) (note (a)i)
GiE{)
(o) (EEan) (FizE () kes) ()
At1 January 2013 R-B-=£-f-R 543,841 4,299,250 1,260 6,877 86,297 (650,080) 4,286,435
Changes in equityfor 2013: TE-CERERE:
Total comprehensive EE2ABROE
loss for the year - - - - - (177,192) (177,192)
Issue of convertible bonds ERThRES - - - 2207 - - 2,200
Redemption of convertble bonds BRI M E% - - - (6.877) - 5,336 (1,541)
Equity-settled share-based LIRESS
payments R ERE - - - - 3,217 - 38217
At 31 December 2013 RZB-zF
+ZB=1-8 543,841 4,299,250 1,250 2,207 123514 (821,936) 4,148,126
At January 2012 RZE-ZF-f-H 416,461 2,932,048 1,250 12,378 13,170 (514,641) 2,860,666
Changes inequity for 2012 “E-CEERRE.
Total comprehensive FEREFRER
loss for the year - - - - - (135,439) (135,439)
Issue of new shares for setflement 33 B &AM FUE
of an unsecured payable BITHRG 18,992 201,008 - - - - 220,000
Issue of new shares for acquistion ~ SEAENEARR
of subsidliaries BITHRG 108,388 1,166,258 - - - - 1,274,646
Eauity-settled share-based bIRESS
payments ROEET L - - - - 12 - 7127
Transaction costs atiributable to /TR E(
issue of new shares RGHA - (64) - - - - 64)
Redemption of convertiole bonds B TR EH - - - (5,501) - - (5,501)
At31 December 2012 RZE-ZF
TZA=1-H 543,841 4,299,250 1,250 6,877 85,297 (650,080) 4,086,435
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30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 30. BARFEE @
(b) Share capital (b) IR A<
Authorised and issued share capital SEEREBITRR
2013 2012
—E-c=F —E-Ck
Number Number
of shares of shares
RA%E RheE
'000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000
TR Tin Tt FAT
Authorised: EERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.125 each SRAG0IBETLER
At 1 January and R=A-Bk
31 December +-A=1-H 10,000,000 1,250,000 10,000,000 1,250,000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: LER CRIRAR:
At 1 January iz = 4,350,727 543,841 3,331,687 416,461
Issue of new shares R AEERER TR
for settlement of BATHRR ()
an unsecured
payable (note (i) - - 151,934 18,992
Issue of new shares SREME A TRTHRR
for acquisition GE)
of subsidiaries (note (i) - - 867,106 108,388
At 31 December ®M+=A=1+-A 4,350,727 543,841 4,350,727 543,841
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30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(b) Share capital (Continued)

Authorised and issued share capital (Continued)

Notes:

)

(i)

On 14 February 2012, 151,933,701 new ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$0.125 were issued at an issue price of HK$1.448
for settlement of unsecured payable.

On 16 October 2012, 867,106,382 ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$0.125 were issued as part of the consideration
for the acquisition of Sinowise Group. The fair values of the
consideration shares was HK$1,274,646,000 (note 33) which was
based on the closing published price of the shares of the Company
at the date of exchange. The Company recognised an aggregate
amount of HK$108,388,000 and HK$1,166,258,000 in share
capital and share premium respectively during the year ended
31 December 2012.

All new ordinary shares issued and allotted during the year ended
31 December 2012 rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing
ordinary shares of the Company in issue.

(c) Warrants reserve

Warrant reserve represents the net proceeds received from
the issue of warrants of the Company. The reserve will be
transferred to share capital and share premium accounts upon
the exercise of the warrants.

cPM

30. WK w#EE @
(b) BN (&)
EER B BITIRA (4#)
BisE -

0)

(i)

RZE—ZFZ-_A+MH" K
N AR B AT (E1.44878 L AT
151,933,701 B% & iR M {E0.125
I @AR - LA R
FERIRIE -

R-ZZE—=—F+A+H &
A 7 % 17867,106,382 % & &
HEE0.1258 Tz @M 1E
B U B& Sinowise 2 B 2~ &6 19
RE-ZREBRHZAFER
1,274,646,0007% 7T ( Kt 7£33) -
TR EARABRMDN BB
KWMEmMET - RBEZE=-Z
——F+-A=t+—-BILFE"
RRAF DRI A KRG E
FR FE R 458 108,388,000 7% 7T &
1,166,258,000 7 7T ©

E-F——F+-A=+—HL

FE - BBETREBEZMBEHEBER
RABETEEARRERDETRA

£y

BEBRFHAL -

(c) PR AR FE AR fri 18

REEERERERTARBRK
RERE FTURER 2 FT 1S SR IBVF AR © 3%
{88 45 170 78 P e R 7T 1 By B
ERAR R B o
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30. RARF#E @

() MR HE R (18 ()

30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c) Warrants reserve (Continued)

170

On 5 May 2010, the Group and an independent placing agent
(the “Warrant Placing Agent”) entered into a placing and
underwriting agreement, pursuant to which the Warrant Placing
Agent placed 150,000,000 new non-listed warrants of the
Company, which include two tranches of warrants, 100,000,000
warrants (“Warrant A”) and 50,000,000 warrants (“Warrant B”)
at the issue price of HK$0.01 and HK$0.005 each respectively.
The holder of each Warrant A and Warrant B will be entitled to
subscribe for one new ordinary share of the Company at an
exercise price of HK$2.6 and HK$3.2 each respectively with a
subscription period from 5 August 2010 to 11 June 2014. On
11 June 2010, the Company issued 100,000,000 Warrant A
and 50,000,000 Warrant B for an aggregate consideration of
HK$1,250,000. During the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2012, no new shares were issued upon exercise of Warrant A
and Warrant B.

(d)Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed
by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

R-_ZT—ZTFRARRH A£EH
HBVRERE((RBRERLS
REDITUREE R HEHE
Bt RREFREERERSA
A &) 150,000,000 17 3E L= 71 #7132
BiEE B EmitR kg
- AEHBETESRA0OE
7L }%0.0057% 7T 2 100,000,000
MABBEE(RREEAD X
50,000,000 17 3R A% # 3& ([ SR A 1
BBl e B RBEBARRK
EEBHIFEE A AR BIRTT
FES K268 T K32F TR
BARNR—RFTER - RES
BZE—ZEF)\ARARE_Z
—mENAt+—HB - R=ZFT—F
FRNA+—H ARELERE
1,250,000 7% 7t % 77 100,000,000
9 R % # % AN 50,000,000 1%
RBEEEB - BHEZZT—=FK
—E——ZF+ZA=1+—HLF
B BERTERREZARR
IRRERE B M BT ETAR D o

) fRBHEER AR

() REE

P tn i B Bk < FE R 2 B 2 BF
SRRPEATHE -

REHASHERRNE AR
Al g ER ZES Al D
& T ARRIBR - MEEREE
A RKREBHE S RNAQF
AERNEEERBE R
WP ET -
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30. BARREE @
(A fEEEERBZE @)
(i) EXFE

30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(d)Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(i) Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Company recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based payments
in note 2(s)(ii). Details of the share option schemes of the
Company are disclosed in note 32.

(iii) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises the exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of the
Group’s operations outside Hong Kong.

(iii)

EXAREBEERTARFE
B2 RITEEREER S
S8R 2 ATE - BIREM
FE2()() R BEA B 10 B E AR
Z AT R ER AR 2 & w R T
R ARNRIERE S 2
BT FE 32 55 -

[E 7 1

EXFEERARERES
BNETS 2 A MFETTIR
HFEEZ — IR ZE

(iv) Statutory reserves (iv) L EfAE
Statutory surplus reserves ETE BB

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are required to transfer
10% of their net profit, as determined in accordance with
the PRC accounting rules and regulations, to statutory
surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of
their registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be
made before distribution of a dividend to shareholders.

Statutory surplus reserve can be used to make good
previous years’ losses, if any, and may be converted into
share capital by the issue of new shares to shareholders in
proportion to their existing shareholdings or by increasing
the par value of the shares currently held by them, provided
that the balance after such issue is not less than 25% of
their registered capital.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 —Z—=F51}

BEFE R RR
REBRFEZHEARE
15 10% 5 FI| 8 7505 F B #R 1
% EEZERBLEHED
HAMEARZ50%  E&E
ZIEREE S ERARED IR
B& B RTHETT ©

VA TE B8 17 T P O A DA
EFEZEBR(AE) XA
RARRRBERBRHERLL
PIBEITH A AD - AR I
FHEFAZENEE &
ETEBRHEER QRN
HEITHRMOR 2 EHIFD
REMEARZ 25% °
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30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(d)Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

172

(iv) Statutory reserves (Continued)

v)

Safety production fund

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the PRC, the Group’s
subsidiaries are required to transfer safety production fund
at fixed rates based on a specific amount of volume of gold
ores excavated to a specific reserve account. The fund is
used for improvements of safety of the mines and is not
available for distribution to the shareholders. Upon incurring
qualifying safety expenditure, an equivalent amount would
be transferred from safety production fund to retained
profits.

Convertible bond equity reserve

The convertible bond equity reserve comprises the value
of the unexercised equity component of convertible bonds
issued by the Group recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for convertible bonds in note 2(p)

(-

(vi) Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change
in the fair value of available-for-sale financial asset held
at the end of the reporting period and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies in note 2(h).

30. BRARREE @
() fFEETER AR @)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

EERE ()
REHEEES

RETFBEERER  A5H
ZHERRARBERREE
RO EREE N K&
REEERSERFIRER
F-%E2ARBERS L
ERTAHBRSA - R #
EEERNZERAXE %
AefleEReLetE
ESBREEH

A8 R (G 5 s 1 1

Al I B 5 B AR A
A 2(p) () FF H2 BR Bt AT HA AL E 25
Rz @t BORER B AL
BT 2 AT A 5 R TT I
b eEE -

AFERE

NP EFRBEEEREHRE
BZAfHESREEND
FERFESHFE LRR
BfFE2h) 2 @Rt BEREE -
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30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 30. IRAKR B @

(e) Distributability of reserves OB
At 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount of reserves RZE—=F+ZA=+—H"
available for distribution to owners of the Company was AEDRFARREEAZGEE
HK$3,477,314,000 (2012: HK$3,649,170,000), which included 4REE R 3,477,314,0008 L (=&
the balances of share premium and accumulated losses, — — % :3,649,170,000/8 7T ) -
provided that immediately following the date on which the BERNMRERRFTERB A
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be e EEBEEZEDIKRKE B
in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary % AREEAERHEEERA
course of business. BEKBEFEIEER -

(f) Capital management () EREE
The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to AEEEEEACEEZBEIR
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, EAEEEMEERBFELSE
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and ELAELR A - i i B B @ e K S
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services BEEERRRGEEBNARE
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to SeBAACHE  HERRRE
finance at a reasonable cost. BliERmk AEMBNEREE

J/;T;\L o
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30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(f) Capital management (Continued)

30. RARF#E @
() EXREIE @)

R=F—=%+=-A=+—8"
AEEZFERAESLE A
BEARE (BERITREMER K
AARES) mERE KRS FE
YR ERARIT AR AR E 2

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s net debts to equity ratio,
representing the ratio of total debts (including bank and other
borrowings and convertible bonds), net of cash and cash
equivalents and pledged bank deposits to the total share capital
and reserves of the Group is as follows:

174

A RFEEZLEENT
2013 2012
—E-=5F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Total debts BIE4AEE 4,623,597 1,841,418
Less: Pledged bank deposits B BEIRIRITE K (458,340) (84,460)
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMBREEEY (522,285) (100,193)
Net debts SREIE 3,642,972 1,656,765
Total equity o ey 5,922,847 5,605,068
Net debts to equity ratio SFEEE SR 62% 30%

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher returns to
the owners of the Company that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded
by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital
management during the year.

Except for share charge of certain subsidiaries of which
details are set out in note 28, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements in either the current or prior year.

AEBEEMESEHLREREER
RiE REBARAREAABRR
Ok M A MRz BEEKFEZ
RSP - WRTFREE A
NRERZBENL R THE
BN RE BT B EARRE

FRAAEEERGE 2 75 7AY &

BE T B ARG HiIR (F15
N KTEE28) ) - AAR REAE
AMBRRARNAFERLE—FE
BB ST INEDIEINZ BANKRE °
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31.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the Group participates in defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) organised by the relevant local
government authorities in the PRC whereby the Group is required
to make contributions to the Schemes at a rate ranging from 10%
to 20% (2012: 10% to 20%) of the eligible employees’ salaries. The
local government authorities are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to retired employees.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the
MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$25,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group has no obligation for the payment of pension benefits
associated with those schemes beyond the annual contributions
described above.

The total costs charged to consolidated income statement of
HK$8,193,000 (2012: HK$3,053,000) represent contributions
payable to these scheme by the Group during the year.

31.

ETERAKREF
RIEHE 2 BRI S TG &RA
REFE2HEBFH R A BT K
FI# BB 37 2 TE RRAR KR A 3R AT
ZI([5r&1]) - Bt - AEBEAMET
EIERHE  SEUEERERS
E210% E20% (ZF—ZF : 10%
£20%) T E - AR KEAG AR
RINMEB 2 EEMBERIKE -

REBENBREEBRBERESF
ElED - RIZBBEBIKIRET
ZEERIBHELATEESTE(8
BeitEl) wEeTER—®#
B EFEABTE ZEEHIRIKGT
glo RIERBESE - EXRERE
BYAH EE L R E BB KA
Z5%FTHE MR - MEAFEHRK
2 FEE YA L BR £ 25,000 7T © &
2l —BEHE KAV -

B Lt R0 N B E R
SRR EME BB AT -

RiZAEBERANFTRZEEA
8,193,000/ 7w( = & — = &F:
3,053,000 7T ) #5 AN & B A F N FE
M ST EIEL 2K -
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32. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS N UREZEEZROER
5
The Company has share option scheme (the “Share Option KARRZZEZEWMFNLA+N\BHE
Scheme”) as defined in the Company’s prospectus dated MR B ([BERRERTEl] - ©&
28 September 2004, which was adopted on 18 September 2004 RRZZFTEMFALAZ+/\HFIE
whereby the directors of the Company are authorised, at their RARIZERER - Bt XA A
discretion, to invite employees of the Group, to take up options EEERENEESAEEEESRE
to subscribe for shares of the Company up to a maximum of M B A% A DA 3R B &% % 160,000,000
160,000,000 shares. By an ordinary resolution passed by the BARRIRGD - BAADERER
Company’s shareholders in the annual general meeting on 26 May —E——FRAAZT S EHEHHRK
2011, the Company refreshed the limit in respect of the granting of RBFRG LRAMN—IBERRE
share options under the Share Option Scheme and all other share R ARAIEEFIBEBREE
options scheme up to 10% of the total number of ordinary shares NFrA B IR AT 8% BE I i
of the Company in issue. Notwithstanding any other provisions ZEREARBBEEITEBRME
of the Share Option Scheme, the maximum number of ordinary HHEE10% - BIEERE SRR
shares of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all ERIEAMGER - BREFEIRAR
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Al Efr] E Ath B AR AE 5T BB TP B %
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the R ERITE 2 ERE—BEITE
Company shall not exceed 30% of the total number of ordinary MAETZARBILRREE &
shares of the Company in issue from time to time. The Share LA BBARNRTRE#EITE
Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years BIRARE 2 30% - BEARHERT 81 A &K
ending on 17 September 2014 after which no further options will BAt+FE 2FE—NFNLATLE
be granted. The exercise price of options under the Share Option Hif - EETEREEMEBARE -
Scheme will be at least the highest of: BRESENBERETEESTS

BN (ARmERE):

() the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock () RRRIMEARARZBRES B
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date on which an (WEREHEH )BT RARE
offer of an option is made by the Company to the grantee (which KR Z AR REIRMG W TE

date must be a business day);

(i) a price being the average of the closing prices of the Company’s (i) ZERZE A BRI A ES % B
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations RATFARERMR AR AR
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the MFHIWRTHE &

offer date; and

(i) the nominal value of the Company’s shares. (iiy AT EE ©
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32. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS (continued) . UREEHE 2RO ER

R 2 (#)

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the (a) FARRBBRER L 2 GH G
year are as follows, whereby all options are settled by physical BT - BB - BB R AR LAY
delivery of shares: MzEMRWES -

Number of shares
issuable under
options granted
RBERE Contractual life
BRETT of options
#1TBR#%  Vesting conditions BRE
ZBE BEGH BHER
‘000
i
Options granted on 28 October 2011
REZB——F+AZ+NHRY
ZIERRE
Tranche 1
E—it
— Directors 33,600 24 months from date of grant 6 years
-E% BB SR =+ E A 64
— Employees 46,830 24 months from date of grant 6 years
-E& B B # s =+ m{E A 64F
— Consultants 19,500 24 months from date of grant 6 years
— B B BB s =+ m{E A 64
99,930
Tranche 2
FHE
— Directors 44,800 36 months from date of grant 6 years
-EF B &% B st =758 A 64
— Employees 62,440 36 months from date of grant 6 years
-&EE B & B st =758 A 64
— Consultants 26,000 36 months from date of grant 6 years
- AR B B st =758 A 64
133,240
Tranche 3
E=H
— Directors 33,600 48 months from date of grant 6 years
-B% B % B Bl st -+ )\ @ A 64
— Employees 46,830 48 months from date of grant 6 years
-EE8 B BB A+ )\ & A 64F
— Consultants 19,600 48 months from date of grant 6 years
- A B &% B B Et -+ )\ M8 A 6
99,930
Total number
of shares issuable 333,100

AT EITRD 2 B8
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32. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS (continued) 32. Jj)_\ﬂgﬁ EEEz2ROER
Xz (&)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share (b) AR ES B R INEFHITEER
options are as follows: ™
2013 2012
—E-=f —TCF
Number of Number of
shares shares
issuable issuable
under under
Weighted options | Weighted options
average granted |  average granted
exercise REEHEY | exercise REERH
price  Exercise BRI price  Exercise  BEMRIER]

MEFY price FRITR®H | IMEFH price  TETRH
T8 T8 Z¥H 11168 1168 Z¥H
HK$ HK$ ’000 HK$ HK$ ‘000
BT BT K BT BT Tk

Outstanding at 1 January —B—BHEXTE
Tranche 1 F—4t 1.51 96,330 1.51 99,930
Tranche 2 k11 151 128,440 151 133,240
Tranche 3 E=4t 1.51 96,330 1.51 99,930
Total o 1.51 321,100 1.51 333,100

Lapsed during the year REREXH
Tranche 1 F—4t 151 (18,300) 1.51 (3,600)
Tranche 2 b 1.51 (24,400 1.51 (4,800)
Tranche 3 E=Ht 1.51 (18,300) 1.51 (3,600)
Total it 151 (61,000) 151 (12,000)

178




CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD Cp"
FEREEERERERAT

Notes to the Financial Statements
Bl ¥R < Bt et

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated AZSHFIIR » B BB FTHEIN)

32. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS (continued) . UREEHE 2RO ER

R 7 (&)
(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share (b) B BB RontgFa1TEE L
options are as follows: (Continued) T (&)
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—fF
Number of Number of
shares shares
issuable issuable
under under
Weighted options | Weighted options
average granted |  average granted
exercise BEDEE | exercise BEERH
price  Exercise MRIET price  Exercise  BBARIER]

ML price FRITREA | MELH price TEITIRM
1@ 1@ P || 1 E 1 E Z¥H
HK$ HK$ ’000 HK$ HK$ '000
BT BT T BT BT T

Outstanding at +ZB=+—-H
31 December HARITE
Tranche 1 F—H#t 1.51 78,030 1.51 96,330
Tranche 2 EH 1.51 104,040 1.51 128,440
Tranche 3 et 1.51 78,030 1.51 96,330
Total M=t 1.51 260,100 1.51 321,100
Exercisable at +-A=+-H
31 December {7
Tranche 1 E—4t 1.51 78,030 - -
Tranche 2 £t - - - -
Tranche 3 F=#t - - - -
Total 4=t 1.51 78,030 - -
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32. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS (continued) 32. J_«‘éﬁ%ﬁ BEEEZROHER
Xz (&)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share (b) AR ES B R INEFHITEER
options are as follows: (Continued) T (%)

(i) No options were exercised to subscribe for ordinary shares () RBEEZZTE—=FK=_F

of the Company during the years ended 31 December 2013 ——F+ZA=+—HIF

and 2012. B MEBREEITEUR

BARRIEBA -

(i) The share options outstanding at 31 December 2013 iy RZE—=F+=_A=+—
had an exercise price of HK$1.51 (2012: HK$1.51) and a Al RITE 2 BRENITE
weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.82 years BRI BL(ZTE—ZF
(2012: 4.83 years). 1.51%870) RNEFEHFEHRE

WEFEHAIF(ZT—=
F:483F) -
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) B ERFERRE

The fair value of services received in return for share options VASR H B R i R B 2 P15 AR 75 2

granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share AREEDZEHRELEREZ A

options granted. The estimate of the fair value of options FEMAE BEzBEREZA

granted is measured based on Black-Scholes Option Pricing B (5T Th iR AE ) 7 — & B A A

model. The contractual life of options is used as an input into EEBEAGE -BREZAED

this model. Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into FHTRELER 2@ A28 -

Black-Scholes Option Pricing model. MOR-TRNHETERY

MATEHR IR RATE 2 AR -
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32. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS (continved) 32. %g EEE 2RO ER
Xz ()

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (Continued) (c) BRREATERER(E)
Fair value of share options and assumptions are as follows: BREs A FERREROT

Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3

it EHE E=HE
Fair value at RETER 2 AFEE
measurement date (HK$) (%7T) 0.61 0.63 0.68
Share price (HK$) BB CGET) 1.51 1.51 1.51
Exercise price (HK$) 1TEE ET) 1.51 1.51 1.51
Expected volatility (%) TEEARE) (%) 58 56 57
Option life (expressed % i 1 F HA
as weight average life) (years) (FRhnwEFHEE) (F) 6 6 6
Expected dividends vield (%) TEEIIRE & (%) 0 0 0
Risk-free interest rate A o M) =

(based on Exchange (RINERESFE) (%)

Fund Notes) (%) 0.68 0.82 0.95

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility TE AR B T DA R 52 B A B 4E (4%
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of the AR 2 TR B
share options), adjusted for any expected changes to future &) WREBEAHSER 2B
volatility based on publicly available information. Expected RAICKRBE B M AEL AT - TBH
dividends are based on historical dividends. Changes in the RETRBELRERBEE - T8
subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair value BMAZEBRCEFITEHAT
estimate. B2 HFIEBRERTE -
Share options were granted under a service condition. The AR A T AR IR AR A 16 1 T £ L o
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date fair It R 1 I A G B FT S RIS R
value measurement of the services received. There were no REBHZATE- - IRHER
market conditions associated with the share options granted. T AP A5 T IS A o
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32. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS wcortinies) 32 AR EEH 2 B E

R 7 ()

(d)The Group and the Company recognised the fair value of the (d)FRN - AEBRARFEHER
share options granted under the Share Option Scheme as REEIE TR HBRE 2 QT
equity-settled share-based payment expenses and the capital BEERASNERE KA RN FAKRE
reserve of the Group and the Company of HK$38,217,000 (2012: HECRHERTHERRER
HK$72,127,000) and HK$38,217,000 (2012: HK$72,127,000), f#& - 289 5/38,217,000#
respectively, during the year. TL(ZF—ZF : 72,127,000%

7T) &.38,217,0008 T (=& ——
£ 72,127,000/87T) ©

33. PURCHASE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH 33. ZE B WWEHWE ATIEE

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES EERAR

During the year ended 31 December 2012, pursuant to the sale REBEZE-_FT——-—F+=-A=+—8H
and purchase agreement dated 6 July 2012, the Group agreed HFEEAR BEHPA-_ZT—Z—F
to acquire and Premium Wise Inc. (“Premium Wise”) agreed +tARNBzEEWE  AEBERE
to sell the entire equity interest in Sinowise Century Limited L B Kz Premium Wise Inc. ([ Premium
and its subsidiaries (“Sinowise Group”) at a consideration of Wise ) [ & H & Sinowise Century
RMB1,988,000,000. The consideration was satisfied by cash of Limited & H ¥ B 2 & ([ Sinowise
RMB994,000,000 which includes a set-off against total deposits SED) 225 kiE REAARK
of RMB549,800,000 (equivalent to HK$673,978,000) paid by the 1,988,000,000 7T ° s REKE T
Group to Premium Wise and a cash payable of RMB444,200,000 R AR £ AR ¥ 994,000,0007T °
(equivalent to HK$540,850,000) that is unsecured, charged at an BIE AR 549,800,000 7T (#E R
interest rate of 6.8% per annum and repayable not later than 31 673,978,000 T) (FZE5E ] S5
December 2014, and the issue of 867,106,382 ordinary shares of % B /A Premium Wise X2 {1 2 12 ¢ 42
the Company of HK$0.125 each at an issue price of HK$1.41. The %) K FER RS AR 444,200,000
acquisition was completed on 16 October 2012 and the Group 7T (#8517 540,850,000 78 7T ) (%
obtained the entire equity interest of Sinowise Group. Sinowise HAEEW  HENEX68%TEIL
Group holds certain mining and exploration rights for gold mines AR _ZE—ME+_A=+—H=%
in Yunnan in the PRC. It had not commenced gold mining and ZBIER) - ARIRETE 1415
production activities and business at the date of completion of TR 7) 867,106,382 I FRR HIE
acquisition. Accordingly, the Company’s directors are of opinion 01258 L2 EMAR - ZEUIEE R
that the acquisition of Sinowise Group did not constitute a business ZE—ZF+TA+TARBEK KR
combination but it was accounted for as an acquisition of assets % B B2 B Sinowise &£ B 2 & EB %
and liabilities. The acquisition of Sinowise Group was to continue # o Sinowise R ERHBIEEIHEE
the expansion of the Group’s gold mining operations. TeBoRBEBRERERE - ERUE

BEERATARASBERRIE
EFPHREL - ALARFESER
7 WUEE Sinowise & B W £ 18 5K X 75
G MWESEEAEERARE
U B8 A BR o UK B8 Sinowise 5 B 2 B
BIERRASE SREFARERS -
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33. PURCHASE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH 33. ZBWIBHEATBE

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) BEEREE@®
The assets and liabilities acquired at the date of completion of the REETKEBHENECEERE
acquisition are as follows: BT -
HK$’000
FAT
Net assets acquired: BB EEFE
Intangible assets (note 13) mEEE (Msk13) 2,605,026
Fixed assets (note 14) BEE&E (M5t 14) 25,521
Construction in progress (note 15) e T (MEE15) 7,046
Other non-current deposits HMIEREIES 123
Deposit paid for fixed assets METEEEMTIZE 4,090
Inventories 75 2,394
Other receivables H Ath pE Y GRIE 5,817
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEFEY 184
Other payables H b e3R8 (67,886)
Bank borrowing H|ITERK (6,142)
2,576,173
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33. PURCHASE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH 33. ZBWENE L ATEE
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) & 4

HK$'000
FAT
Consideration is satisfied by: REATHHFRER
Cash consideration ReENE 673,978
Cash payable (note 27) e (FisE27) 540,850
Issue of 867,106,382 ordinary shares 2%17867,106,382 i &A%
Shares issued at an issue price REITEERA.41 B TEITRD
of HK$1.41 each 1,222,620
Increase in fair value NEEE 52,026
Shares issued at fair value at the date MR B R A EEITRG
of exchange (note 30(b)(ii)) (B 7E 30(b)(ii)) 1,274,646
Total consideration at fair value BRE(EATE) 2,489,474
Acquisition-related costs W B AR A Ak AR 12,409
Interest expense capitalised B2 FIERE 74,290
Total cost of acquisition W B £ K AR 2,576,173
Net cash outflow arising from WHBE A 2 IRE R F58
the acquisition
Cash consideration ReRE (673,978)
Less: Deposits paid by the Group B AEBERE 673,978
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BEzHeRESEEY 184
Acquisition-related costs W HE AR RA R AR (12,409)
Less: Acquisition-related costs paid in 2011 B RZE——F B RERBER AR 6,868
(5,541)
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 3. S RIEMREEREM T

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group’s major financial instruments include pledged bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade and loans and other
receivables and payables, bank and other borrowings, derivative
financial instruments, non-current payables and convertible bonds.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments include
credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks. The Group is also
exposed to price risk arising from any unexpected changes in price
of gold products. These risks are limited by the Group’s financial
management policies described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
loans and other receivables and bank balances. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposure to the credit risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade receivables under the Gold Mining Operation,
credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. Credit terms up to two months
may be granted to customers, depending on the credit
worthiness of individual customers. At the end of the reporting
period, there is certain concentration of credit risk as 55% (2012:
89%) of the total trade debtors under the Gold Mining Operation
was due from the Group’s five largest customers. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

B2 A¥E
$%EZE%$@IE@%EEW
RITFER - RERBFLFEY B
W&Pﬁ% AR ER M&E@EW
KRERFKIE - RITRHEMER
AEmITA- ;E/}IL@JJ_E,{—J-/T)\IE\&T
BRESF - eI AZHBERER
EEM T - ZE2BIAERZRE
BEEEE: RBES - FIE K
%ﬂ“°$$lﬁ%xﬁ§&@$
BHMrEEREBERESH ZERE
@ o W ERBRE T AER 2
BTG E IR B PRIR I o

(@) fE &Rk

AEBEZEERREIEREEIK
FR AR B B R DA e L A AR TR A
MiRTTHESR - EEERABRER
EBR MzFEERRZER
RENXBIREEL -

HEBHARERIR T 2 BUERR
mE  SUHMEERERE TS
BEECZEPETEENG &
FEMEFZEEME  TFA
BEREMEAZRES - R&
HEHR AKEEWAREP
RREeBEREEBETNERK
E\EMM\%EZ55%<_2_—$ :
89%) « WAERZE TEESHE
o REEWEMZSERITE
EH—HEWDD °
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF

186

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(@) Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of loan receivables under the Other Operation,
the Group enters into transactions only with recognised and
creditworthy independent third parties. In accordance with the
policy of the Group, the Group examines and verifies the credit
risk of all customers that the Group has credit transactions
with. Besides, the Group monitors and controls the lease and
factoring receivables regularly to mitigate the risk of significant
exposure from bad debts. Credit risk is often greater when
customers are concentrated in one single industry or have
comparable economic characteristics. As the customers of
the Group are widely dispersed and are engaged in different
industries, there is no significant credit risk concentration within
the Group. The Group holds collateral of the customers’ assets
over their balances.

In respect of other receivables, the credit quality of the debtors
is assessed by taking into account of their financial position,
relationship with the Group, credit history and other factors.
Management regularly reviews the recoverability about these
receivables and follows up the amounts overdue, if any. The
directors are of the opinion that the probability of default by
counterparties is low.

The Company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to amounts
due from subsidiaries, other receivables and bank balances. The
Company reviews the recoverable amounts of individual debts
at the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
high credit-rating agencies.

REMEBET 2EKER
= $$@1AMT&§§Eﬁ
MBILE=FETRS - BEBEAR
SENHE  AEEREIZRE
HAEEEERARINMEBERER
BiEERE o BN RNEETFH
BEE RIS & RIRIEFKIB
R IEZEERMERER - WEF
BESETREBE 1T HEAE
LU B E - FTRERNEER
RBETGEERS BERAKH
BEPoMmBEZILEERTRAIIT
¥ FIUARSEEEAEFEE
[FEBg - NREBB RS EEMNAER
%ﬁﬁﬁuu °

AEMEURFENS @ EE
BAZFBIN - BAEE 7
# - EEESL &AM E R
HEEE= - EREEHRNZ
FH Mo UK 2 AT A2 E K
BEAMEHE(INE)  EFR/
HFTENZATBEMRE o

ZAN/N TZFEH
B 8~ B K IR ﬁ@ﬁ% KIE K
fﬁiﬂmﬁ% $ BEHEHR
%%XLEZT%@ S FE  DABE
RETBEURE 2 & BB 1F H B SRR
ER5E

2 £ BB R

RBEL EERARBERE
RARHF T RASREEFTR

HWRER TREEFRMRT -
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 3. £ @iEREERES®M T
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B :

(a) Credit risk (Continued) () EE R B (@)

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Company
as set out in note 38, the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group or the Company to
credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of
these financial guarantees at the end of the reporting period is
disclosed in note 38.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and loans and other
receivables are set out in note 20.

(b) Liquidity risk

At 31 December 2013, the Group had net current liabilities
of approximately HK$787,814,000. The Group is exposed
to liquidity risk of being unable to finance its future working
capital and financial requirements when they fall due. To
manage liquidity risk, the Group regularly monitors its current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from banks and financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The directors are of the opinion that the Group will be able to
finance its future working capital and financial requirements as
described in note 2(b) to the financial statements.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s and the
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end
of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group and the
Company can be required to pay.

Br B E 38 ek A A Al Frig it 2 Bt
BEHERIN - RE B SR ]
HMER  SAEESIAQFE
REERR RmEHAR &&
ERAMEERAE L ZAEE
2\ Bea 455 BB OB 55 38 o

B A 5 B FE UL BR 7 M B RUA
N E b EW K IBE M AR A EER
b — S 2L IEBERHITE20 ©

(b)REVE 2 E s

R—ZE—=%+=-A=+—
H A&EBEHERSEEFE
#9787,814,0007%8 T o 2N & B &
EREBRMAERKREEES LI
HUBREoRBESRR - B
TEHRSHESRER  ~NEBT
HERERMBFZIABDESS
Ko AERAEEHRF AL IR
TREMMEBRITREMEEBERES
B ERTARMEREE - AER
FEBEERRPCABDEST
j: o

EZRR - ARESEMIZREY
15 ¥ 3% MY 7E 2(0) st 2 BA 75 48 =
BNERKEEES NRUMBRE -

AEBERARBNBERRZIE
MEemABERTESRAR
ZER TR B SR TR TR &
5 WARTOARITRASRE (B
FRIRFT R KA E 2 MBI
WEERARR - BIAREHIRIR
TTZMEFREZMEH) kA%
EAMARRAHERZRFER
FHERAE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 —Z—=FF3K 187




Notes to the Financial Statements
B R < Mt &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated SASEE SR » Br BAFTHESN)

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 3. S RIEMREER M T

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B2 RA¥Ewm
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b)REVE & LB ()
Specifically, for bank and other borrowings which contain a EREmsE  RESTHARKAR
repayment on demand clause which can be exercised at the ERIBITE 2 EFREFTIER 2R
lender’s sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow TREMEFRME  HTBERE
based on the earliest period in which the entity can be required REBSFAMNKZHHEBIWE
to pay, that is, if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional RAREEGGRERER
rights to call the loans with immediate effect. The maturity BAN)BBESRE - RITRAEME
analysis for bank and other borrowings is prepared based on R BN EBA IR IBREENRA
the scheduled repayment dates. HAMAREL o
The Group
358
213 21
Bz 3
More than ~ More than More than More than
Total Within 1 year 2years Total Within 1 year 2 years
contractual 1 year but but contractual 1year but but
undiscounted oron less than less than undiscounted oron less than less than
Carrying  cash flow demand 2years 5years Carrying cash flow demand 2 years 5 years

amount  TAKAE  -FAd BR-F BRSE | et JHARR -FRE SR-F 0 SNCR
REE REREAE EEX  BIR-E  BIREE BHE ReRE#E EEX  BINCE BIREE
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000 | HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOO  HKSO0O
T T T T TR TRT TR TRT TRT TRT

Non-dervatvefnancia Uailiies HiemaR
Trade and other payables EAERREENTE 256,788 256,788 256,788 - - 430,905 430,905 430,905 - -
Bank and other borowings BIREBER 3607758 4154788 2159713 760,054 1234121 | 1717471 2320383 635,421 991,703 693,229
Non-curtent payables FEERE - - - - - 447,756 507,712 29978 477,734 -
Convertible bonds WHhkES 1,015,839 1,363,385 74,530 74,530 1,214,325 123,947 132,500 132,600 - -
4,880,385 5,774,961 2,491,031 835,484 2,448,446 2,720,079 3,391,470 1,208,804 1,469,437 693,229
Derivativ fnancal Gabilites fTEeRaR
Derivative financial fTEeRIA
instruments 154,207 152,311 35911 - 116,400 156,476 209,880 - 93,480 116,400
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 3. S RIEREERESM T

. /\ 3z -
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) Bz ¥EE @
. . g . ) N prd A e
(b)Liquidity risk (Continued) (b)) REVE S E R (@)
The Company
ST
2013 212
—%-zf it 2
Morethan ~ More than More than More than
Total Within 1year 2years Total Within 1 year 2 years
contractual 1 year but but contractual 1 year but but
undiscounted oron less than less than undiscounted oron less than less than
Carrying  cash flow demand 2years 5years Carrying cash flow demand 2 years 5 years

amount  TNAFR  -FAE SR-F SRCE anont  FARFR ERE S-E 0 SRCE
RAE RERELH BEX EIRZF  EOREE FEE AERELE BEX  EIRCZE EIREF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS 000
TERL TERL TARL T T TR TR TR TR TR

Non-erivative financia Gabilities Ekika L
Amounts due to ERHBRAE
subsiares M5 M5 55 - Y Y Y0 . .
Other payables EthEfE 12,337 12,337 12,337 - - 17,160 17,160 17,160 - -
Bank and other borrowings RIREMER 140400 140400 140,400 - - 278,121 372,038 31,008 341,085 -
Comertle bonds TepEs 101683 1363365 7450 TAS0 1214305 | 18047 1300 132600 - -
1221321 156887 280012 TASH 124325 | G168 56408 28068 341085 -
Derivaive inancal Gabilites fAeHAE
Derivative financial fEeBIA
instruments 154,207 152,311 35,911 - 116,400 156,476 209,880 - 93,480 116,400
. 27 A
(c) Interest rate risk (c) A 2= [ B
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to AEE RS RE N EEREZ
variable-rate bank and other borrowings and bank balances and BN RRIT R EME R RIRITE
fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate bank and other BAEB LA FENERRREBEE
borrowings and pledged bank deposits. MERITREMER KD ERR

TERER -
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 3. S RIEMREER M T

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B2 RA¥Ewm
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) (o) R =R\ f&x ()
() Interest rate profile () FUZEHE
The following table details the interest rate profile of the TRFINMERRSTE
Group’s and the Company’s bank and other borrowings and RAQNRRITREMER K
bank deposits at the end of the reporting period: RITERZMEGN -
The Group The Company
A%E A7
2013 2012 2013 2012
ZE-=f - ZE-=f -
Effective Effective Effective Effective
interest interest interest interest
rates rates rates rates
LYk ERTE LYk ERTI=
%  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000
%  THL %  FEn %  TExn %  TEn
Variable rate bank and FBNERTR
other borrowings A& 211 1,426,600 221 557,008 - -
Fixed rate bank and BEHERIR
other borrowings A& 6-21 2,181,158 6-21 1,160,463 9 140,400 18 218121
Total borrowings 6k 3,607,758 1,717.471 140,400 278,121
Fixed rate borrowings Ehapiks-F
as a percentage of 9=ttt
total borrowings LEAY 60% 68% 100% 100%
Variable rate LIS
bank balances ot 0.1-04 519759 | 0104 99,726 04 6,691 0.1 6,880
Fixed rate pledged [Shapikativ
bank deposits RTER 0.1-3.3 458340 | 01-05 84460 0.1 35,911 0.1 15,600
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 3. S RIEREERESM T
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continved) BEZzA¥Ew

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) (c) FI 2R [ Bes ()
(i) BB T

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

All of the bank and other borrowings and pledged bank
deposits of the Group which are fixed rate instruments
are insensitive to any change in interest rates. A change in
interest rate at the end of the reporting period would not
affect profit or loss.

At 31 December 2013, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates for
variable rate bank and other borrowings and bank balances,
with all other variables held constant, would decrease/
increase the Group’s and increase/decrease the Company’s
profit after tax and retained profits by approximately
HK$9,068,000 (2012: HK$4,573,000) and HK$67,000
(2012: HK$69,000) respectively. Other components of
consolidated equity would not change in response to the
general increase/decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied
to the exposure to interest rate risk for variable rate
interest bearing financial instruments in existence at that
date. The 100 basis point increase/decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change
in interest rates over the period until the end of the next
annual reporting period. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2012.

B A B E R R T A
ZHRAIREMBERU R DA
RRTRYEAHE 2D
AT » R B 2
B TR ERE -

m T ——F+-_A=+—

CBRERFBFERITRE
ﬁ%m&ﬁﬂm%2ﬂ$
LR TGN, T BKA100EE
B MEMAEZEREDT
BgIoBERT  AEBRAR
A2 B 18 0 A K AR 88 5 A
flr 5T #& 2 B 27 38 0 49
9,068,000 T(=F——4 :
4573000;‘%%)%3{1/»&

67,0008 (=T ——4F :
69,000/%7n) FI=EBIE N
S TR esmeRa s H
o AR BB 3E A ) o

EX 2 GRS TR
i&iﬁﬂﬂiﬂ$§§$“@)ﬁﬁﬁx

+uﬂlﬁ%%%2ﬂ$ﬂ
% FEETE o 80, T 100
EE2AEIEE R Y Z
WEET—EFﬁiﬁiﬁ

AREE B 2 FIRIEA T
ﬁ ZAMBE—_T—=—F2
B — BT o
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 3. S RIEMREER M T

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B2z A E @
(d) Gold product price risk EEERERRR
The Group is exposed to price risks arising from the market rEEAXEESEMMERDY
price fluctuations on gold products. MmEL Z BERE
During the year, Group did not enter into any derivative contracts FRN - ARBEWEFTLEAITE
to hedge the gold price. To protect the Group from the impact TEHAHUEHEE - BREXR
of price fluctuations in gold products, the management closely SEBPEECEMEREEM
monitors gold product price exposure and will consider to use XIEFE EEEeTUESRE
derivative contracts should the need arises. Changes in the fair TEMEBELRR YEEFER
value of derivative contracts that economically hedge the price EEFMATETAEGY - TET
fluctuations in gold products and for which no hedge accounting BAENRFEZESELE LY
is applied are recognised in the consolidated income statement. HFEEEMERZEE M E
FEREHEE  BIRGEER
(e) Currency risk (e) B R ks
() Exposure to currency risk (i) FME B P A HE
The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s TREFMRTAEERAAF
exposure at the end of the reporting period to currency RREBMRAAEEERAE
risk arising from the following significant assets or liabilities BB EEIAINZ BT
denominated in a currency other than the functional Bz THEREEXAEGEMN
currency of the entity to which they relate. S| E 2 SINE R B o
The management may consider to use forward foreign EREREREFERARBRAIIE
exchange contracts to manage its foreign currency risk BHREEER MBI
arising from above anticipated transactions denominated in KB (B 2 R 5 FTal Bz IMNE
foreign currencies. During the year, the Group did not enter Bk o A NEBEILEET
into any forward foreign exchange contracts to manage its SR TEEINESHERE
foreign currency risk. HNEE R B o
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 3. S RIEREERESM T
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continved) B2 RV E@m

(e) Currency risk (Continued)

() Exposure to currency risk (Continued) (i) SME R PR AIE ()

the Hong Kong dollar and the United States dollar would
not be materially affected by any changes in movement in
value of the United States dollar against the Hong Kong
dollar. Therefore, no sensitivity analysis has been prepared.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2012.

The Group The Company
r5E PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E-—-F —E-=F —E-CfF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FAET TET FAET
Assets/(liabilities) BETINEZ
denominated in USD BE/(8fF)
Cash and cash RekBie®
equivalents =2 6,279 1,329 6,273 1,325
Pledged bank EHEA
deposits LI 55,411 35,101 35,911 15,600
Bank and other borrowings ~ $R1T R EMER (437,383) (557,910) (140,400) (278,121)
Derivative financial fTESRIA
instruments (129,244) (156,476) (129,244) (156,476)
Total assets BEE 61,690 36,430 42,184 16,925
Total liabilities raE (566,627) (714,386) (269,644) (434,597)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (ii) BBVEDHT
The management considers that the pegged rate between EBERR  IREETHL

Bz EMBEZ(CTEYH
7B TLH R TT 2 B B [ R
EARE- Bl BEER

BREE DM -

ZOME—F

——EF R EEET
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 3. S RIEMREER M T

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B2z A E @
(f) Fair value measurement () 2 EFE
() Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value () BAFHEIERNEHEE
KEf:E
Fair value hierarchy - FIEER
The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s TREVRRERARLZLE S
and the Company'’s financial instruments measured at the AEEFGENAEBRARNTE
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised BTANATE 2EREE
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS A ERIE 135 [ AFE
13 Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value FrE FTAEN=HRAFER
measurement is classified is determined with reference to N EFEREREEL
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the 2EHERMPFEANBAZR
valuation technique as follows: M BRERERHETEN
™
- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level - BRBEMNE: ERFE—
1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets P E s A\ (BNAER & E sk
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement BERTEHEBEERT
date. GHREHAERE)HE
MWATE
- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 - FE-BEMNE: NAEZ
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level P A (BIRaEEDIE
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs. —BEBEYEMNAEART
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data AR AR BEE
are not available. AN)ETEBRFE - TA]
B A\ Al BT IS SR
BB A o
- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant - F=BEME: FAEX
unobservable inputs. A B R AGTEN AT
=1
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 3. S RIEREERESM T

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) Bz AFEm
(f) Fair value measurement (Continued) ) 2 FEFZ @)
() Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value () BAFEIERNEHEE
(Continued) KkEf&E &)
The Group and the Company
AEBERANT
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
Level 2 Level 2
24 F28
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FET
Recurring fair value measurements REMHQNFEFTE
Liabilities: 8%
Derivative financial instruments TEemIT A 154,207 156,476
There were no transfers between instruments in all levels BHE-_T—="Fk=-F—=
during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012. F+_A=+—HILFE"

PSR ML EAETTER -

An external independent valuation company, with REREPHEREHRE AA
appropriate recognised professional qualifications, is AIRE— B EER A
engaged to value the derivative financial instruments at each (EBEREERAZEEER
financial reporting period. Appropriate valuation methods BIETEem TR ETH
and assumptions with reference to market conditions B RETTEESMIA®N
existing at each financial reporting period to determine the NEE - B2RBRREREP®
fair value of the derivative financial instruments are adopted. WEBEMRITTR - KN
The basis for determining the fair value is disclosed in note BEREIEANBE - BEX
26. NFEZ EERHTT264K R ©
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF

196

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(f) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at

other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
are not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2012 and 2013 except for the convertible bonds
due in 2018. As at 31 December 2013, the fair value of the
convertible bonds due in 2018 (note 25(b)) amounted to
approximately HK$773,570,000 which is categorised into
Level 1 fair value measurements (i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices).

(iii) Financial guarantees

The fair value of financial guarantees issued is determined
by reference to fees charged in an arm’s length transaction
for similar services when such information is obtainable,
or is otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged by
lenders when the guarantee is made available with the
estimated rates that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable estimates of
such information can be made.

() 2 FETE @)
(i) HEAFEUIGIERZ 2/
EEREBEZAFHE

ANEE B R AN A B R K AN ok
HRAVR 22/ TH 2R
HEERER-_T-——FK=
T—=%+=ZA=+—H2
AFEITEFEEREZRE
R =T — \FEH 2
REHBRIN RZFT—=F
+ZA=+—H RZZ%
—NFHHZzAUBRRKRES
(MfsE25(b) 2 A FELR
773,570,000 7T * JiD R
F-REEATEHN= (BIRLK
ABmE)

(iii) B FEHE IR

BEERBMBERZAFET
2R AT R 5 RAAL
AR AT YR 2 & A i 7E (40
REEBULEFER) - HBRA
KERMMGE - BERA
EEEFRBERTHAEBRZE
BRAE - AT ERAEE
FERB TR RE 2 F & 1F
B (IEE B B E FHEL
A SEfhET)
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35. COMMITMENTS

(@) As at 31 December 2013, the Group had contracted capital
commitments in respect of the acquisitions of gold mining
and exploration rights of HK$16,217,000 (2012: HK$432,000)
(note 16(a)(ii)) and fixed assets of HK$4,858,000 (2012:
HK$7,986,000) (note 17).

(b) As at 31 December 2013, the Group had authorised but not
contracted for significant capital commitments in respect
of the acquisition of fixed assets of HK$86,489,000 (2012:
HK$129,818,000) (note 17) and gold mining and exploration
rights as further detailed in note 16(a)(i).

(c) At 31 December 2013, the Group’s total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable

35. RIE

@R=ZT—=F+=-_A=+—8"
RNEEF R © BERE R IEEE
WA D E]#E ANEHE 16,217,000
T (= F — = £ : 432,000
7T) (M sE16@)i) » B E
EEEEMBCHOEAEIE
4,858,000 (= T — = & :
7,986,000 7T ) (7% 17) ©

) R=FE—=F+=—_A=+—8"
AEBEGKEBRETEEEHRED
REEBRITNCERERNEER
86,489,000 L ( = F — = & :
129,818,000/ 7T) (MizE17) » &
NEESERERRBEREREESD
REBRIINCERERNEEF
B EE16(a)) ©

R ZE—=F+—_A=+—8"
AEBRBETURBR ZELEHE

as follows: FREENzxEHEENRER
BT

2013 2012
—EB-=F —ET——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET FHTT
Within 1 year —F R 3,770 2,026
After 1 year but within 5 years —FLAHERFUR 2,517 2,519
After 5 years RFLE 1,299 1,126
7,586 5,671

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties for
an initial period of one to ten years. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

(d) The Company did not have any significant commitments as at
31 December 2013 and 2012.

AEERZEMEZEBEA - 7
TREP-—ZE+F - ZFHELD
BREIAES -

R ZE—=FR_F——F+=
A=+—H ARATETME
RAE -
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, the
Group had the following related party transactions:

198

M

(i)

)

During the year, Mr. Chang Yim Yang (“Mr. Chang”), an
executive director and substantial shareholder of the
Company, provided a personal guarantee for bank and
other borrowings facilities granted to the Group of RMB250
million (equivalent to HK$318 million) (2012: RMB850 million
(equivalent to HK$1,029 million)) (note 24(c)).

During the year ended 31 December 2012, Mr. Lam
Cham (“Mr. Lam”), an executive director and substantial
shareholder of the Company, and Mr. Dai Xiaobing (“Mr.
Dai”), an executive director of the Company, provided
personal guarantees and seven individual shareholders of
the Company, including Mr. Lam and Mr. Dai, pledged their
individual shares of the Company to RBI for a loan granted
to the Company of US$40 million (equivalent to HK$312
million). The entire loan was early settled and the above
guarantees and securities were released during the year
(note 24(a)).

During the year, the Group and Mr. Zhang Shuguang
(“Mr. Zhang S.G.”), an executive director of the Company,
entered into a loan agreement pursuant to which Mr. Zhang
S.G. agreed to lend a loan of RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$24,710,000) to the Group. The loan was interest-free,
unsecured and had no fixed terms of repayment. The loan
was fully repaid during the year.

3. BEALIRS
@BE-_FT—=FE_ZF—-F
+—A=+—HIEFER &%
BT NYBEEALTRS ¢

U

)

RERN RRBRTEER
FERRRBEBILE(RE
EDRAEBER ZRITR
HihEFRBEARK 25088
T(HRERII8EEBT) (=
T—_F: AR%8508 &
T(HEEMN1,0295&8%7T))
R EAER (B13E24(c)) ©

HE_FT—-—_+=A
=+—HLEFE  AQEE
RBI ¥ 2405 & %= jt(#
EN312BEBT) 2ERK
BARRMITEERFTER
R EE(MHREE]D R
WITESH /) EAE(EL
EDREBEAER ARE
EMREERBEEEANZAE
REAIEBEAREFEZAX
RABEARDIEETR - 2F
EXERFRREEE Lk
AR R IRE T AR (5
24(a)) °

RERN - REBEARRDFH
TEEFRBRXEE(RE
KEEDITL—HOERR
EBL RBAEERE
MASEEEL —ZEERAEA
R #20,000,0007¢ ( /8 & %
24,710,000 7T) - EFR AR
B EEE BEETER
H- ZEERERFREBEY

&g o
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
and Mr. Zhang S.G. entered into two loan agreements
pursuant to which Mr. Zhang S.G. agreed to lend two
loans of HK$6,000,000 and RMB2,200,000 (equivalent
to HK$2,713,000), respectively, to the Group. The loan of
HK$6,000,000 was charged at interest rate of 14.5% per
annum, unsecured and fully repaid during the year ended 31
December 2012. The loan of RMB2,200,000 was interest-
free, unsecured and had no fixed terms of repayment and
was fully repaid during the year (note 24).

During the year, a subsidiary of a substantial shareholder of
the Company granted a loan of US$18 million (equivalent
to HK$140.4 million) to the Company (note 24). The loan is
charged at interest rate of 9% per annum, unsecured and
repayable on 26 March 2014. Pursuant to a supplement
agreement executed on 27 March 2014, both parties
agreed that the loan will be repayable on demand.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, a deputy
general manager of a subsidiary of the Company provided
personal guarantee of RMB20 million (equivalent to HK$24
million) to a bank for a loan of RMB20 million (equivalent to
HK$24 million) granted to the Group. During the year, the
bank loan was fully repaid and the guarantee was released
(note 24(d)).

cPM

3. BEALRZw@m

@ (&)

)

(iv)
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(#8)

Br_—_Z—-——F+ = A
=t+—HLEFE A&HE
HEBE AT LMD E
HWaE: B RE X
AREBEMEER 5
Al £6,000,0008 7T & A
R #2,200,0007t( # & »
2,713,000/ L) T A& & o
B 716,000,000 JT Jb 1% F
B145% 85 mEH - B
EREBE_ZT—Z—-F+=A
Tt HILEFERHEE-
ERARE 2,200,000 TTHER
B \EIKE BERATER
B BERFREEHREER
(FzE24) o

RER - AR —ZEER
BZMBARERE —%18
BEXET(HEN14048
BHEL) 2BRTARLQF (K
F24)c ERDIEF B 9%
AE EEH BAR-Z
—mME=A=-+HEE-
BiEEHPA-_ZT—WNFE=F
TR ZBHERBE  FTA
EFREERBERERT
LAEIE -

REBEZE-_TE—Z—F+=A
=+—BLEFE  AQAEl—
B ARzl REIBEHAE
EERs —HERARE20
BEBL(HER2488%ET)
m—RITRBEEAERAR
BooEET(HER24BE
BIL) e RER - IRITERE
BHEEBERD THEEK -
(M3 24(d)) °
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 3. BEALIRS @

(b) Key management personnel remuneration b EEEEAESME
Remuneration for key management personnel, including FEEBEAEME (BIEMTE8HT
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 8 BRINTARBESESZHRER
and certain of the highest paid employees is as follows: INFETER=MERE 25E)

U
2013 2012
—E—-=F -
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT FAT
Short-term employee benefits % B E B @A 22,518 27,369
Post-employment benefits BEELAE A 98 131
Equity-settled share-based VARG R 45 5 2 IR 17
payment expenses ARTHER 24,689 31,654
47,305 59,154
37. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 37. BFHEETRAE

The method, estimates and judgements the directors use in ERERAAER ST REREA

applying the Group’s accounting policies have a significant impact ZAE S R RAE AL R 28

on the Group’s financial position and operating results. Some of BARARKEEEEERNTE -

the accounting policies require the Group apply estimates and HOEABRRREAREREH B

judgements on matters that are inherently uncertain. In addition to TeEE A TEREAMGER KA

note 32 which contains information about the assumptions and the BT o BREIFES2E A A AT IR IE AR AE

risk factors relating to fair value of share options granted, certain ZAVFEZBEERBEERN B

critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting BEALASBEEHREBETEE

policies are described below. ZEETHIETE AT o
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37. SEH{AET R HE @
(a) FRIERE R RIEREY

37. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)
(@) Mining rights and mining structures

Mining rights and mining structures are amortised or depreciated
over the estimated useful lives of the mines, in accordance
with the production plans of the mines concerned, using the
unit of production method based on the actual production
volume over the estimated total proved and probable reserves
of the ore mines. Proved reserves refer to the economically
mineable part of measured resources. Probable reserves include
economically mineable part of indicated resources. The process
of estimating quantities of reserves is inherently uncertain and
complex. It requires significant judgements and decisions based
on available geological, geophysical, engineering and economic
data. These estimates may change substantially as additional
data from ongoing development activities and production
performance becomes available and as economic conditions
impacting mineral prices and costs change. Reserve estimates
are based on current production forecasts, prices and economic
conditions. The directors exercise their judgement in estimating
the total proved and probable reserves of the ore mines.

(b) Renewal of mining rights

The Group’s mining rights will expire during the period from June
2014 to June 2022 and, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Group will be able to renew the mining rights with
the relevant authorities in the PRC continuously at insignificant
cost.

(c) Depreciation and amortisation

Fixed assets, other than mining structures, are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking
into account their estimated residual values. The Group reviews
annually the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any.
Interests in leasehold land held for own use under finance and
operating leases are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the estimated useful lives of the leased assets and the
lease term. Both the period and methods of amortisation are
reviewed annually. The depreciation and amortisation expense
for future periods is adjusted if there are significant changes
from previous estimates.

RIZHEBARS N EER 8 - KB
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ETEEEREME  FTERE
ARZHE - HIB - T2 REHE
BURIFh E R NORTE - %F
Bt AT RE B BE & P ABUS A&
BRBREERR ZBINBIER
RN FERYER LKA Z &
R EE R MR NIRES -
MEMFIREREZLEER
Bl BRREEMRRIEL - BF
REFHR L 2 B E B R E
R & BTIEH HIE -

(b) B B LR IEHE
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37. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

202

(d)Valuation of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value at the end of the reporting period. Net realisable value
is determined on the basis of the estimated selling price less
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The directors
estimate the net realisable value for inventories based primarily
on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. In
addition, the directors perform an inventory review at each year-
end date and assess the need for write down of inventories.

(e)Impairments

In considering the impairment losses that may be required for the
Group’s mining rights, mining structures, fixed assets, deposits
paid for gold mining and exploration rights and fixed assets,
recoverable amounts of the assets need to be determined. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less costs of
disposal and the value in use. It is difficult to precisely estimate
fair value less costs of disposal because quoted market prices
for these assets may not be readily available. In determining
the value in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset
are discounted to their present value, which requires significant
judgement relating to items such as level of sales volume,
selling price and amount of operating costs. The Group uses
all readily available information in determining an amount that
is reasonable approximation of recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable assumptions
and projections of items such as sales volume, selling price
and amount of operating costs. Had different parameters and
discount rates been used to determine the fair value of the
intangible assets, the Group’s results of operations and financial
position could be materially different.

37. EEH{hsT R HE @
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37. SEH{AET R HE @
(e) BB (&)

37. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(e) Impairments (Continued)

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are assessed
and provided based on the directors’ regular review of ageing
analysis and evaluation of collectibility. A considerable level of
judgement is exercised by the directors when assessing the
credit worthiness and past collection history of each individual
customer.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment losses would
affect the net profit of the Group in future years.

(f) Interests in subsidiaries

Interests in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
losses. Judgement is required when determining whether an
impairment existed. In making this judgement, historical data
and factors such as industry, sector performance and financial
information regarding the subsidiaries are taken into account.

(g) Fair value of derivative financial instruments

The fair value of derivative financial instruments that are not
traded in active markets are determined by using valuation
techniques. Where valuation techniques are used to determine
fair values, they are periodically reviewed. To the extent practical,
models use only observable data, however areas such as credit
risk, volatilities and correlations require management to make
estimates. Changes in assumptions about these factors could
affect the fair values of derivative financial instruments.
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37. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

204

(h)Income tax

Determining income tax provision involves judgement on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions. The directors
carefully evaluate tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into account all
changes in tax legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised
for temporary deductible differences. As those deferred tax
assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
unused tax credits can be utilised, the directors’ judgement is
required to assess the probability of future taxable profits. The
directors’ assessment is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

(i) Functional currency of the Company

The Company is carrying out its operating activities and making
management decisions in Hong Kong, that is, raising finance
in Hong Kong dollars and has a significant degree of autonomy
from its subsidiaries in the PRC in the way its business is
managed. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, its
functional currency is Hong Kong dollars.

(i) Environmental contingencies

During the year and up to the date of approval of these financial
statements, the Group has not involved in any environmental
remediation at this initial stage of gold mining activities and
has complied with the existing environmental legislation
requirements. The PRC government, however, may move
further towards more rigorous enforcement of applicable laws
and the adoption of more stringent environmental standards.
Accordingly, the amount of such future costs is indeterminable
by the Group. Under existing environmental legislation,
management believes that there are no probable liabilities that
will have a material adverse effect on the financial position or
operating results of the Group for the current reporting period.
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38.

39.

40.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

During the year, the Company had given corporate guarantees
to certain financial institutions in connection with bank and
other borrowings facilities granted to certain subsidiaries.
At 31 December 2013, such facilities were drawn down by
the subsidiaries to the extent of HK$2,010,133,000 (2012:
HK$529,847,000). The maximum liability of the Company under
the guarantee issued represents the amount drawn down by the
subsidiaries of HK$2,010,133,000 (2012: HK$529,847,000). No
recognition was made because the fair value of the guarantee was
insignificant and the directors of the Company considered it is
unlikely that a claim would be made against the Company under
the guarantee.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group had major
non-cash transactions for the acquisition of subsidiaries. Part of the
considerations were settled by the issue of the Company’s shares
and the Group’s non-current payable, details of which are referred
to note 33.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group had the following material events subsequent to the
end of the reporting period and up to the date of approval of these
financial statements:

(a) The Group has obtained two three-year loans of US$51 million
(equivalent to HK$398 million) and HK$40 million and a short-
term loan of RMB98 million (equivalent to HK$124 million) from
certain banks.

(b) As further detailed in notes 20(e) and 24(b), the Group early
redeemed the RP shares together with the 2012 Warrants for a
consideration of US$69 million, of which US$17.3 million was
prepaid to CMMA during the year. The pledge of the RP Shares
Securities and Guarantees Package was fully released.

(c) The Group repaid certain bank loans with a total amount of
HK$268 million and the pledge of the Group’s assets and the
Company'’s guarantee were fully released (note 28).

38.

39.

40.
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41.

206

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS 41.

AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued the following amendments, new and revised standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2013.

The Group has not early applied any of the following new and
revised standards, amendments or interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective.

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle’
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle®

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts’
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7 and Transition Disclosures’
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities’
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
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41.

42.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS 41.

AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions®
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets

and Financial Liabilities'

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosure
for Non-Financial Assets'

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation
of Hedge Accounting'
HK (IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited exceptions.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

Available for application - the mandatory effective date will be determined when the
outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised.

°  FEffective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES 42.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with
current year’s presentation.
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Five Years Summary
hFEGEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars A 517K )

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—TTNE —ET-TF T——F —T-—F —E-=F%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAET FET FET FET THER

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BmEE 715,496 4,484,736 6,150,184 9,305,986 | 11,716,331
Total liabilities mes (199,983)  (1,463,385) (2,592,472) (3,700,918) | (5,793,484)
Net assets EEFE 515,513 3,021,351 3,557,712 5,605,068 | 5,922,847
Equity attributable to EATHEBA

the owners of the Company B 515,513 3,021,351 3,557,712 5,605,068 | 5,922,847
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AFEEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars LA 7R)

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—TENF —E2-%F —EB——4%F —T—-F| ZT-=F%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FER

(Restated)
(=)
RESULTS #E
Revenue g
Continuing operations FECEIEE 19,370 168,154 1,119,298 1,626,023 | 1,562,409
Discontinued operations ~ #X | F4C&TE B 75,778 4,880 - - -

Profit/(loss) before taxation BRBANER (BE)

Continuing operations BEK2IEE 193 80,722 571,441 662,319 330,053

Discontinued operations ~ #X|HAE&TEH (25,984) (36,354) 16,498 - -
(25,791) 44,368 587,939 662,319 330,053

Income tax Fiisst

Continuing operations FECETEH (3,399) (22,438) (170,533) (217,241) (148,670)

Discontinued operations ~ #X |F4E & 18 B - - - - -

Profit/(loss) for the year REERAN,(FB)

Continuing operations BB EIEE (3,2006) 58,284 400,908 445,078 181,383
Discontinued operations £ |F4E& 15 B (25,984) (36,354) 16,498 - -

(29,190) 21,930 417,406 445,078 181,383
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Corporate Information
AGTE-C

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

In Hong Kong:

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications Hong Kong Branch
Standard Chartered Bank
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Industrial & Commercial Bank of China
Bank of China
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http://cpm.etnet.com.hk
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